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Introduction
The Public Accounts of the Province of Prince Edward Island are presented through the
publication of Volume I: The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, Volume II, the financial
statements of the Operating Fund and the details of revenues and expenses of the Operating
Fund, and Volume III which presents a reproduction of the available audited financial
statements of the Province’s Agencies, Boards and Crown Corporations.

Internet Address – Volumes I, II, and III of the Public Accounts are available in PDF format on
the Province’s Website and they can be ordered through the website at:

www.gov.pe.ca/publications
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June 15, 2015
Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
consolidated statement of earnings, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Chartered Accountants
( 1)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

Assets (note 15)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 6 and 20)
Accounts receivable (notes 7 and 19)
Prepaid deposits and expenses
Mortgage receivable (note 8)
Current portion of property inventory
Current portion of investment in leases

3,169,918
886,520
2,838
304,468

2,526,861
3,799,351
6,809
4,402,996
461,264
285,336

4,363,744

11,482,617

Property inventory, less current portion (note 9)

2,910,075

2,340,795

69,658

104,537

1,609,734

1,914,199

Leasehold inducements, less accumulated depreciation of
$387,431 (2014 - $303,928)

Investment in leases (note 10)
Property and equipment (note 11)

415,127

332,378

54,246,889

55,579,766

2,619,348

312,313

66,234,575

72,066,605

1,536,601
1,473,020
2,372,041

4,835,674
1,103,669
6,683,653

5,381,662

12,622,996

926,744

916,010

Long-term debt, less current portion (note 15)

16,500,632

14,350,798

Deferred credits (note 16)

38,399,429

38,376,578

61,208,467

66,266,382

2,500

2,500

4,526,706

4,526,706

496,902

1,271,017

5,026,108

5,800,223

66,234,575

72,066,605

Investment properties (note 12)
Investment properties under development (note 13)

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Demand loans (notes 14 and 15)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 19)
Current portion of long-term debt

Deferred revenue

Shareholders' Equity
Capital stock (note 17)
Contributed surplus
Retained earnings

Approved by the Board of Directors
_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director
( 2)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2015

Retained earnings - Beginning of year
Net earnings (loss) for the year

2015
$

2014
$

1,271,017

871,388

(774,115)

Retained earnings - End of year

496,902

(3)

399,629
1,271,017
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Earnings
For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

131,589
46,891
125,187
16,664

121,961
155,045
147,576
162,836

320,331

587,418

37,681
44,550
2,830
17,204
10,500
3,322
305,704
50,031
66,322
23,062
6,162
567,050
5,565

982
40,500
2,212
8,563
10,000
3,591
439,593
43,507
93,861
24,737
5,354
557,895
3,268

1,139,983

1,234,063

Revenue
Management fee - leasing
Interest income
Interest on investment in leases
Miscellaneous

Expenses
Concept planning
Directors' fees (note 22)
Directors' meetings
Doubtful accounts
Insurance
Interest and bank charges
Interest on long-term debt (note 19)
Office operations and sundry
Professional fees
Telephone
Travel
Wages and benefits (notes 18 and 22)
Depreciation

Operating loss

(819,652)

(646,645)

614,264
183,000
(66,593)
133,897
(71,018)
261,212
(25,682)
492
(474)
(1,000,000)
16,439
-

819,290
71,320
(10,045)
110,947
(98,002)
36,444
(73,219)
498
21,943
(7,141)
174,239

Other income (expense)
Harbourside Complex (Schedule 1)
Invesco Building (Schedule 2)
Founders' Hall (Schedule 3)
Peake's Wharf (Schedule 4)
CGI Building (Schedule 5)
Biocommons (Schedule 6)
Venue Site and Parking Lot (Schedule 7)
Convention Centre (Schedule 8)
PEI 2014 projects (Schedule 9)
Writedown of investment property
Gain on sale of investment property
Gain on sale of property inventory
Writedown of property inventory
Recovery of investment properties under development

45,537

Net earnings (loss) for the year

(774,115)
( 4)

1,046,274
399,629
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net earnings (loss) for the year
Items not affecting cash
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Writedown of property inventory
Gain on sale of investment property
Recovery on investment properties under development
Gain on sale of property inventory
Writedown of investment property
Depreciation of deferred credits
Depreciation of leasehold inducements
Net change in non-cash working capital items
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease in prepaid deposits and expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(774,115)

399,629

119,521
1,127,663
(16,439)
1,000,000
(721,523)
34,879

61,331
940,674
7,141
(174,239)
(21,943)
(483,337)
48,624

769,986

777,880

2,912,831
3,971
369,351

(36,736)
61,507
(3,562,421)

4,056,139

(2,759,770)

(3,299,073)
4,402,996
3,300,000
(5,461,788)
744,371
(32,663)

(4,214,784)
456,894
1,628,846
(674,016)
6,423,348
87,471

Financing activities
Decrease in demand loans
Decrease in mortgage receivable
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Increase in deferred credits
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

(346,157)

3,707,759

Investing activities
Increase in property inventory
Proceeds on sale of property inventory
Decrease in leasehold inducements
Decrease in investment in leases
Purchase of property and equipment
Increase in investment properties
Proceeds on sale of investment properties
Increase in investment properties under development

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(108,016)
285,333
(202,274)
(1,216,649)
481,716
(2,307,035)

(159,717)
948,000
29,194
266,791
(301,689)
(625,720)
530,000
(6,004,119)

(3,066,925)

(5,317,260)

643,057

(4,369,271)

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

2,526,861

6,896,132

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

3,169,918

2,526,861

( 5)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1

General information
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation was established to provide innovation, investment, and
expertise for individual projects of economic and social benefit that government or the private sector are not
prepared to execute alone.
The corporation is owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island, the City of Charlottetown and the Town
of Stratford and is, therefore, a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the Income Tax Act.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation's head office is located in Charlottetown, Prince Edward
Island.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 15, 2015.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been presented on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments as indicated in note 2(f).

(b)

Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Harbourside Management Services Inc.

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation's functional currency.

(d)

Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, and the cost in
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency
differences arising on the translation are recognized in the statement of earnings.

(6)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
(e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
(f)

Financial instruments
i)

Recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and their
subsequent measurement is dependent on their classification as described below. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or
issued. At initial recognition, The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation classifies its
financial instruments as follows:


Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets held for trading are reported at FVTPL with changes in fair value
reported through the statement of earnings. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term, if so designated by
management or it is a derivative that is not designated or effective as a hedging
instrument. Transaction costs are expensed.
Assets in this category include cash and cash equivalents.



Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are recorded at
fair value on initial recognition and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
Assets in this category include accounts receivable and investment in leases.



Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Liabilities in this category include demand loans, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and long-term debt.

(7)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
ii)

Impairment of financial assets
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation assesses, at each statement of financial
position date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired, and
impairment losses are recorded, only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial
difficulty of the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a
loan or advance by The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation on non-market terms
that The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active
market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as conditions
that correlate with defaults in the group.


Financial assets classified as loans and receivables
For the purposes of individual evaluation of impairment, the amount of the impairment
loss on a loan or receivable is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the statement of earnings. The calculation of the carrying value reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. When a loan is
uncollectible, it is written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of loss has been determined. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognized in the statement of earnings in provision for loan loss expense.
Loans that were past due and either subject to collective impairment assessment or are
individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer
considered to be past due but are treated as new loans. In subsequent years, if the loan
becomes past due, this will be disclosed only if renegotiated again.

(8)

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

11

The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
(g) Investment properties
Investment properties includes buildings held to earn rental income and properties that are under
construction or development for future use as investment properties.
(i)

Property inventory
Properties being developed for resale are accounted for in accordance with IAS 2 – Inventories and
are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of property inventory is comprised
of the original purchase, costs of conversion to prepare the property for resale and borrowing costs
incurred during that period. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less selling costs and costs to complete development. To the extent there have been
write-downs to net realizable value, the reversal of these write-downs is recognized in the
subsequent period should net realizable value recover. Property inventory expected to be sold
within a year is reported as a current asset.

(ii) Investment properties
Initially, investment properties are recorded at cost, including transaction costs which include
transfer taxes and various professional fees. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
company allocates the amount recognized in respect of each item in investment properties to its
significant components and depreciates each component separately.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write-off the cost less the residual values over the useful lives of
the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at each year-end with the effect of any changes in estimates
accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation rates are as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings

40 years
1% - 4%

Investment property is derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on retirement
or disposal of investment properties are recognized in the income statement in the year of retirement
or disposal.
(iii) Investment properties under development
The cost of development properties includes direct development costs, realty taxes and borrowing
costs directly attributable to the development. Investment properties under development are
recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Once development has been completed, the properties are transferred to investment properties and
depreciated accordingly.
(9)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
(h) Leasehold inducements
Leasehold inducements relate to incentives paid to a long-term tenant as part of their lease agreement.
Amounts paid relating to fitting up the space for the tenant are included in the cost of the building. The
incentives are being amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the 10 year lease beginning
in 2007.
ih) Investment in leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in the arrangement.
As a lessor, the company classifies all leases which transfer substantially all risks and benefits incidental
to owner of the leased item to the lessor as a financing lease. The financing leases are recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position as investment in leases. The company has assessed all other leases to be
operating leases.
(j) Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent expenditures are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation and the cost can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation is calculated using the declining balance method as follows:
Equipment
Computer
Automotive

20% and 33.3%
30%
30%

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. No property and equipment were identified as
impaired as at March 31, 2015.

(10)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
Gains and losses on disposals of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds to
the net book value of the asset and are presented as a gain or loss on disposal in the statement of
earnings.
(k) Government assistance and capital donations
Grants relating to general operations are recorded as revenue in the period in which they are received or
receivable. Grants relating to the delivery of specific programs are recorded as revenue in the period in
which the related expenditures are made.
Government assistance received relating to property and equipment, investment properties and
investment properties under development are recorded as deferred credits and are depreciated on the
same basis as the related assets are being depreciated.
(l)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from rental operations are recognized over the terms of the leases when collection is reasonably
assured.
Interest income and interest on investment in leases is recorded in the period earned.

(m) Management fee - leasing
The Corporation charges management fees based on market rates for financing and administering rental
operations and the City's three parkades.
(n) Impairment of assets
At the end of each reporting period, non-financial assets, such as investment properties, are assessed for
any indication of impairment. Should the indication of impairment exist, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of an asset’s “fair value less cost to sell” and its “value in
use”. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset for which the estimate of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

(11)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount determined, an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of earnings. After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation
charge related to that asset is also revised for the adjusted carrying amount on a systematic basis over the
remaining useful life of an asset. Should this impairment loss be determined to be reversed in a future
period, a reversal of the impairment loss is recorded in the statement of earnings. However, the reversal
of an impairment loss will not increase the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized.
(o) Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity that is related to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation.
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation if that person:
i)

Has control or joint control over The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, with the
power to govern The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s financial and operating
policies;

ii)

Has significant influence over The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, participating
in financial and operating policy decisions, but not control over these policies; or

iii)

Is a member of the key management personnel of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation. Key management personnel, consistent with the definition under IAS 24, Related
Party Disclosures, are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation, directly or
indirectly, including any director of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation.

(p) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and report amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses during the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
The judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are detailed in note 3.

(12)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
(q) Standards issued but not yet effective
As at March 31, 2015, a number of standards and interpretations, and amendments thereto, had been
issued by the IASB, which are not effective for these financial statements. These changes are not
expected to a have a material impact on the financial statements.

3

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future
that will, by definition, seldom equal actual results. These estimates and judgments have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period the assumptions
changed. The principal areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity and/or area which require
significant estimates are described below:
(a)

Provision for loan losses
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation regularly reviews its investment in leases portfolio
to assess for impairment. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the
statement of earnings, The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation makes judgments as to
whether there is any observable data indicating an impairment trigger followed by a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of leases before the decrease can be
identified with that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of members in a group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows.

(b)

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
Management estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on
the period during which assets are expected to be available for use. The amounts and timing of
recorded depreciation expense of property and equipment and investment properties for any period
are affected by these estimated useful lives. The estimates are reviewed at least annually and are
updated if expectations change as a result of physical wear and tear and legal and other limits to use.
It is possible that changes in these factors may cause changes in the estimated useful lives of The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s property and equipment and investment properties in
the future.

(13)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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4

Risk management
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s principal business activities result in a Statement of
Financial Position that exposes it to a variety of financial risks. The principal financial risks that arise from
transacting financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risktaking activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies,
delegates limits and regularly reviews management’s risk assessments and compliance with approved policies.
Qualified professionals throughout The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation manage these risks
through comprehensive and integrated control processes, including regular review and assessment of risk
measurement and reporting processes.
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation if a
member or counterparty of a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk
arises primarily from The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s investment in leases.
Credit risk also arises from the possibility that tenants may experience financial difficulty and be
unable to fulfil their lease term commitments. The company mitigates this risk of credit loss through
diversification of it existing portfolio and limiting its exposure to any one tenant. Credit assessments
are conducted with respect to all new leasing and the company also obtains a security deposit to assist
in potential recovery requirements. The receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the company establishes an appropriate provision for doubtful accounts.
Credit risk is the single largest risk for The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s business;
management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Oversight for the credit risk
management and control is done by management who reports to the Board.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance
sheet date in relation to each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
indicated in the statement of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into
account the value of any collateral or other security held, in the event other entities or parties fail to
perform their obligations under the financial instruments in question. The principal collateral and
other credit enhancements The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation holds as security for
loans include (i) insurance and mortgages over residential lots and properties, and (ii) recourse to
liquid assets, guarantees and rents. The value of collateral held against individual exposures is
generally only assessed at the time of borrowing or when a specific review of that exposure is
undertaken in accordance with policy.

(14)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:
2015
2014
$
$
Cash and equivalents
Accounts receivable
Mortgage receivable
Investment in leases

3,169,918
886,520
1,914,202

2,526,861
3,799,351
4,402,996
2,199,535

5,970,640

12,928,743

Cash and equivalents have low credit risk exposure as these assets are cash and deposits at chartered
banks and high quality investments with low risk counterparties. The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation reviews the member’s capacity to repay the receivables rather than relying
exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing risk. See note 2(f) ii)
for further disclosure of credit risk on loans and receivables.
(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities as they come due.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation’s reputation.
Exposure to liquidity risk:
For this purpose, liquid assets are financial assets that are readily saleable or expected to generate
cash inflows to meet cash outflows on financial liabilities. Consequently, cash inflows by remaining
maturities are as follows:
Under 1
year
$
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Investment in leases

Over 1 to
5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2015
Total
$

3,169,918
886,520
304,468

1,609,734

-

3,169,918
886,520
1,914,202

4,360,906

1,609,734

-

5,970,640

(15)
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Under 1
year
$
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Mortgage receivable
Investment in leases

Over 1 to
5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

2014
Total
$

2,526,861
3,799,351
4,402,996
285,336

1,697,742

216,457

2,526,861
3,799,351
4,402,996
2,199,535

11,014,544

1,697,742

216,457

12,928,743

Cash flows payable under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities are as follows:
Under 1
year
$
Demand loans
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt

Over 1 to
5 years
$

1,536,601

-

-

1,536,601

1,473,020
2,372,041

7,028,685

9,471,947

1,473,020
18,872,673

5,381,662

7,028,685

9,471,947

21,882,294

Under 1
year
$
Demand loans
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Long-term debt

Over
5 years
$

March 31,
2015
Total
$

Over 1 to
5 years
$

Over
5 years
$

March 31,
2014
Total
$

4,835,674

-

-

4,835,674

1,103,669
6,683,653

4,166,614

10,184,184

1,103,669
21,034,451

12,622,996

4,166,614

10,184,184

26,973,794

(16)
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(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of exposure to changes to financial prices affecting the value of positions held by
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation as part of its normal trading activities. As The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation does not deal in foreign exchange contracts or
commodities, market risk consists solely of interest rate risk. The objective of market rate risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The borrowings of the company have fixed and floating rate
interest components resulting in an exposure to interest rate movements. The company’s debt consists of
$18,872,673 (2014 - $21,034,451) in fixed rate debt and $1,536,601 (2014 - $4,835,674) in floating rate
debt which is all in demand loans repayable in less than one year. The company has entered into interest
rate swaps in order to manage the fluctuating interest rates on $15,457,838 (2014 - $12,879,239) of its
debt. The swap contracts have an effective interest rate range of 2.6% to 4.43% and have maturity dates
ranging from February 2017 until April 2023.
The following table provides the potential impact of an immediate and sustained 1% increase or decrease
in interest rates on net interest expense, assuming no further hedging is undertaken. These measures are
based on assumptions made by management. All interest rate risk measures are based upon interest rate
exposures at a specific time and continuously change as a result of business activities and The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s management initiatives.
Net interest
expense
2015
$
1% increase or decrease in interest rates

15,366

Net interest
expense
2014
$
48,357

(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure,
and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to
balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict
initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls
to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.

(17)
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(e) Capital management
The primary objective of The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a healthy financial position in order to support its business. The Charlottetown
Area Development Corporation manages its capital structure and makes changes to it in light of changes
in economic conditions.

5

Financial instruments
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, are as follows:
2015
Carrying
amount
$

Fair
value
$

2014
Carrying
amount
$

Fair
value
$

Assets carried at fair value
Financial assets held for trading

3,169,918

3,169,918

2,526,861

2,526,861

Assets carried at amortized cost
Mortgages and receivables
Investment in leases

886,520
1,914,202

886,520
1,914,202

8,202,347
2,199,535

8,202,347
2,199,535

2,800,722

2,800,722

10,401,882

10,401,882

1,536,601

1,536,601

4,835,674

4,835,674

1,473,020
18,872,673

1,473,020
18,872,673

1,103,669
21,034,451

1,103,669
21,034,451

21,882,294

21,882,294

26,973,794

26,973,794

Liabilities carried at amortized cost
Demand loans
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Long-term debt

(18)
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6

Cash and cash equivalents
2015
$

7

2014
$

Cash at bank and on hand
Money market fund
Term deposit

2,864,062
305,856
-

1,911,973
303,484
292,529

Total cash and cash equivalents

3,169,918

2,507,986

Accounts receivable

Trade receivable
Funding receivables
HST/GST receivable
Other receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

2015
$

2014
$

213,160
520,711
101,389
64,604
(13,344)

145,280
3,511,940
31,916
111,922
(1,707)

886,520

3,799,351

Continuity of allowance for doubtful accounts

8

2015
$

2014
$

Balance - beginning of year
Provision for doubtful accounts
Write-off of doubtful accounts

1,707
17,204
(5,567)

8,563
(6,856)

Balance - end of year

13,344

1,707

Mortgage receivable
2015
$
2% mortgage, received during the year

Less: Current portion

(19)

2014
$

-

4,402,996

-

4,402,996

-

4,402,996

-

-
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9

Property inventory
2015
$
Balance - beginning of year
Capitalized expenditures
Capitalized interest
Write-down to net realizable value
Reimbursed expenses
Disposals

2014
$

2,802,059
19,147
88,869
-

3,597,483
70,786
89,531
(7,141)
(600)
(948,000)

2,910,075

2,802,059

Less: current portion

-

461,264

Balance - end of year

2,910,075

2,340,795

The company expects these properties to be completed within their normal operating cycle for such
properties, which may extend beyond one year.

10 Investment in leases
2015
$
Total minimum lease payments due June 1, 2018, receivable
in monthly instalments of $2,719, including principal and
interest
Less: Portion representing interest at 4.1%

Total minimum lease payments due October 1, 2019,
receivable in monthly instalments of $31,610, including
principal and interest
Less: Portion representing interest at 6.64%

Less: current portion

(20)

2014
$

471,197
52,397

503,827
69,909

418,800

433,918

1,824,006
328,604

2,203,326
437,709

1,495,402

1,765,617

1,914,202

2,199,535

304,468

285,336

1,609,734

1,914,199
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11 Property and equipment
Equipment
$

Computer
$

Automotive
$

Total
$
837,574
202,274
(19,226)

Balance - March 31, 2014
Additions
Disposals

672,687
188,980
-

123,034
-

41,853
13,294
(19,226)

Balance - March 31, 2015

861,667

123,034

35,921

Accumulated depreciation
Balance - March 31, 2014
Current year depreciation
Disposals

348,431
113,208
-

119,594
1,032
-

37,171
5,281
(19,222)

505,196
119,521
(19,222)

Balance - March 31, 2015

461,639

120,626

23,230

605,495

Carrying value
March 31, 2014
March 31, 2015

324,256
400,028

3,440
2,408

4,682
12,691

332,378
415,127

(21)
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12 Investment properties
Land
$
Cost
Balance - March 31, 2014
Capitalized expenditures
Writedown of investment
property
Disposals
Balance - March 31, 2015

Land
Improvements
$

4,704,616
587,227

4,250,011
147,022

-

(1,000,000)
-

Buildings
$
56,346,067
525,797
(477,414)

65,300,694
1,260,046
(1,000,000)
(477,414)

5,291,843

3,397,033

Accumulated depreciation
Balance - March 31, 2014
Depreciation
Disposals

-

827,747
141,664
-

8,893,181
985,999
(12,154)

Balance - March 31, 2015

-

969,411

9,867,026

10,836,437

4,704,616
5,291,843

3,422,264
2,427,622

47,452,886
46,527,424

55,579,766
54,246,889

Carrying value
March 31, 2014
March 31, 2015

56,394,450

Total
$

65,083,326
9,720,928
1,127,663
(12,154)

The fair value of the investment properties is estimated to be $32,120,000.
The net carrying value of the investment properties is reduced by the deferred credits.
An independent valuation was completed by an accredited appraisal firm for one of the investment properties
which represents 15% of the above portfolio. The remaining properties were valued internally by
management. Management's internal valuation model is based on the capitalization rate of normalized income
by property using specific capitalization rates. Management determined the normalized income for each
property based on current rents and assumptions about occupancy.
Investment property valuations are most sensitive to changes in the capitalization rates. The weighted average
of the capitalization rate used is 7.28% with a range of 6.65% to 8.64%.
The impact of a 10% change in the capitalization rate used to value the investment properties would affect the
fair value calculation as follows:



a 10% increase in the capitalization rate would result in a fair value amount of $29,910,909.
a 10% decrease in the capitalization rate would result in a fair value amount of $34,820,000.

(22)
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13 Investment properties under development
Land
$
Cost
Balance - March 31, 2014
Additions - acquisitions
Capitalized interest
Balance - March 31, 2015

Land
Improvements
$

Buildings
$

Total
$

312,313

-

-

312,313

-

-

2,290,943
16,092

2,290,943
16,092

312,313

-

2,307,035

2,619,348

14 Demand loans
2015
$
Prime minus .1% demand loan, due on demand, interest paid
monthly
Prime minus .1% demand loan, due on demand, interest paid
monthly
Prime minus .1% demand loan, repaid during the year
Prime minus .1% demand loan, repaid during the year

(23)

2014
$

1,431,601

1,431,601

105,000
-

105,000
2,855,000
444,073

1,536,601

4,835,674
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15 Long-term debt
2015
$
Debentures
2.6% term loan, due May 1, 2018, repayable in monthly
installments of $2,407 including principal and interest
6.64% debenture, due October 1, 2019, repayable in monthly
instalments of $31,610 including principal and interest
2% term loan, repaid during the year
6.13% debenture, repaid during the year
Mortgages payable
4% mortgage, due December 2015, payable in principal
amounts of net proceeds for each lot sold, interest paid
monthly
2.95% mortgage, due February 2017, repayable in monthly
instalments of $21,578, including principal and interest
4.43% mortgage, due March 1, 2018, repayable in monthly
instalments of $45,913, including principal and interest
4.18% mortgage, due December 2021, repayable in monthly
instalments of $6,092, including principal and interest
2.92% mortgage, due April 2023, repayable in monthly
instalments of $16,518 including principal and interest
3.11% mortgage, due April 2023, repayable in monthly
instalments of $9,410 including principal and interest
2.92% mortgage, due June 2020, repayable in monthly
instalments of $18,568, including principal and
interest, interest commencing June 2015
Less: Current portion

(24)

2014
$

419,277

437,000

1,495,402
-

1,743,775
4,402,997
46,691

1,200,000

1,200,000

3,675,396

3,823,372

3,705,540

4,083,217

719,433

761,749

2,791,937

2,906,804

1,565,688

1,628,846

3,300,000

-

18,872,673
2,372,041

21,034,451
6,683,653

16,500,632

14,350,798
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The aggregate amount of principal repayments required in each of the next five years to meet retirement
provisions are as follows:
$
Year ending March 31, 2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2,372,041
1,243,262
4,129,479
887,491
768,453

Security on long-term debt and demand loans


The 6.64% debenture is unsecured. These loans are payable to the majority shareholder.



A first mortgage on land and building located on the Stratford Waterfront and a promissory note have
been pledged as security for the 4% mortgage due December 2015.



The 2.6% term loan and the 2.95%, 4.43%, 4.18%, 2.92% and 3.11% mortgages and the demand loans
are secured by a general security agreement representing a first charge on all assets, continuing collateral
mortgages representing a first charge on all real property known as Harbourside Complex and an
undertaking not to encumber or mortgage the property at 119 Euston Street, assignment of mortgage
receivable and fire insurance for Harbourside Complex, and general assignment of rents representing a
first charge on rents on the Harbourside Complex.

Covenants
The company's debt agreement contains certain restrictive covenants which require the maintenance of a
specific ratio. As at March 31, 2015, the consolidated entity was able to maintain a total debt service ratio of
100%, and is therefore in compliance with the covenant.

(25)
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16 Deferred credits
Accumulated
depreciation
$

Cost
$
Harbourside Complex
Peakes Wharf
Founders' Hall
CGI Building
Invesco Building
Convention Centre
Biocommons
Concert site

2015

2014

Net
$

Net
$

117,500
520,537
500,000
4,124,499
4,625,000
27,174,459
2,300,303
2,252,917

66,012
300,876
131,700
1,073,774
828,699
486,399
63,775
264,551

51,488
219,661
368,300
3,050,725
3,796,301
26,688,060
2,236,528
1,988,366

53,586
228,970
378,711
3,144,128
3,389,715
26,957,369
2,262,038
1,962,061

41,615,215

3,215,786

38,399,429

38,376,578

During the year, $744,371 (2014 - $6,408,784) in deferred credit additions was the result of receiving
government grants to fund a number of ongoing projects by The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation

17 Capital stock
Authorized
5,000 common shares of the par value of $1 each
2015
$
Issued
2,500 shares

2,500

2014
$
2,500

18 Pension
Employees, who are members, contribute a minimum of 5% of earnings to a defined contribution pension
plan. The company matches 100% of the minimum contribution. Pension expense for the year was $22,334
(2014 - $22,506).

19 Related party transactions
Related parties
The Province of Prince Edward Island is the majority shareholder of The Charlottetown Area Development
Corporation and the City of Charlottetown and the Town of Stratford are minority shareholders.

(26)
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Balances
Included in accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due to
and from related parties:
2015
2014
$
$
Accounts receivable
Due from the City of Charlottetown
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Accounts payable
Due to the City of Charlottetown
Due to Province of Prince Edward Island

82,737
179,633

110,982
2,556,600

8,325
553

38,549
7,479

Transactions
During the year, the Corporation expensed interest on long-term debt of $122,496 (2014 - $311,496) paid to
the Province of Prince Edward Island on the 6.13%, 6.64% debentures, 2% term loan and former 4% term
loans.

20 Commitments
(a)

As at March 31, 2015, there is $1,029,840 remaining to be paid on $3,138,123 in a contract that was
awarded during the year for an ongoing project.

(b)

On October 9, 2014, the Corporation entered into an agreement to sell a piece of an investment
property for $629,000. This agreement has been extended to July 31, 2015 pending resolution of a
legal issue.

21 Contingent liabilities
(a)

During prior years, claims of liens by two contractors in the amounts of $2,052,151 and $1,639,296
were made against The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation.
The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation has entered Statements of Claim against the
original $2,052,151 and $1,639,296 claims and the design engineer. The defendants of The
Charlottetown Area Development Corporation claims are defending The Charlottetown Area
Development Corporation claims and counterclaimed in the amounts of $2,052,151 and $1,218,489.
There is no liability recorded in these financial statements for the claims as the potential liability and
the amount payable in respect of these claims cannot be determined at this time.

(27)
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22 Composition of key management
Key management includes the general manager, assistant general manager and controller. Compensation
awarded to key management included:
(a) Key management, excluding directors

Salaries and short-term employee benefits

2015
$

2014
$

292,548

271,062

2015
$

2014
$

44,550

40,500

(b) Directors' remuneration

Honorariums

23 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures presented for the 2014 fiscal year have been restated to conform with the
financial statement presentation adopted in the current year.

(28)
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Schedule 1
2015
$

2014
$

1,540,221
798,615
-

1,615,076
814,540
28,162

2,338,836

2,457,778

78,849
52,851
161,218
295,049
94,385
30,846
959
413,932
356,486
16,925
3,709
28,908
5,354
185,101

77,589
44,603
165,576
332,274
44,810
31,368
5,418
411,440
253,413
10,089
2,363
21,952
42,841
194,752

1,724,572

1,638,488

614,264

819,290

Revenue
Rental - commercial
- residential
- Deblois property

Expenses
Cleaning
Common area
Electricity
Fuel
Heating system
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt (note 19)
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Supplies and miscellaneous
Water
Deblois property expenses
Depreciation

Net revenue

(29)
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For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial

738,575

640,507

Expenses
Cleaning
Electricity
Heating system
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Telephone
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

64,007
154,574
19,800
8,816
111,578
67,081
18,415
12,553
2,409
2,022
187,735
(93,415)

63,631
134,633
25,102
8,244
113,172
66,879
45,665
11,603
2,394
3,545
187,735
(93,416)

555,575

569,187

183,000

71,320

Net revenue

(30)
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For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial
Attraction

Expenses
Electricity
Fuel
Heating system
Insurance
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies and miscellaneous
Telephone
Wages and benefits
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

Net expense

(31)

2014
$

230,076
55,576

219,131
55,244

285,652

274,375

37,718
33,231
9,685
6,869
87,664
41,546
4,385
3,432
30,016
2,909
105,201
(10,411)

35,223
36,918
4,205
6,885
67,313
30,433
2,264
3,231
1,995
106,364
(10,411)

352,245

284,420

(66,593)

(10,045)
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For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

Revenue
Base rent
Percentage rent
Parking lot

Expenses
Insurance
Operating, repairs and maintenance
Parking lot
Promotion
Property tax
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

Net revenue

(32)

2014
$

64,758
44,021
146,128

65,023
41,516
129,217

254,907

235,756

396
20,045
23,424
2,500
19,620
66,432
(11,407)

396
18,499
30,520
2,564
20,010
64,233
(11,413)

121,010

124,809

133,897

110,947
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Schedule of CGI Building Revenue and Expenses
Schedule 5

For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial

199,919

176,394

Expenses
Cleaning
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt
Lights
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Water
Depreciation
Depreciation of leasehold inducements
Depreciation of deferred credits

25,270
4,486
30,007
75,427
46,040
28,270
7,893
4,266
107,802
34,879
(93,403)

25,071
4,200
32,780
73,987
42,825
23,484
7,325
1,700
107,804
48,624
(93,404)

270,937

274,396

(71,018)

(98,002)

Net expense

(33)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Schedule of Biocommons Revenue and Expenses
Schedule 6

For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

2014
$

Revenue
Rent - commercial

526,875

350,132

Expenses
Common area
Fuel
Insurance
Interest on long-term debt (note 19)
Property taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Snow removal
Water
Heating system
Depreciation
Depreciation of deferred credits

654
43,652
5,076
83,285
69,284
2,861
10,780
5,531
9,137
60,913
(25,510)

903
56,701
3,794
88,713
97,797
11,912
8,568
9,933
60,877
(25,510)

265,663

313,688

261,212

36,444

Net revenue

(34)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Consolidated Schedule of Venue Site and Parking Lot Revenue and Expenses
Schedule 7

For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

Revenue
Rent
Expenses
Interest on long-term debt
Property taxes
Wages
Supplies
Miscellaneous
Depreciation of deferred credits
Depreciation

Net expense

(35)

2014
$

83,161

24,711

46,201
22,561
2,505
1,335
(162,656)
198,897

47,459
19,411
1,526
615
636
(87,505)
115,788

108,843

97,930

(25,682)

(73,219)
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Non-consolidated Schedule of Convention Centre Revenue and Expenses
Schedule 8

For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

Revenue
Operating grant
Recovery of expenses

Expenses
Interest on long-term debt
Property tax
Amortization of deferred credits
Amortization

Net revenue

(36)

2014
$

578,649
-

280,331
19,102

578,649

299,433

42,530
534,146
(324,720)
326,201

47,858
251,575
(161,679)
161,181

578,157

298,935

492

498
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The Charlottetown Area Development Corporation
Non-consolidated Schedule of PEI 2014 Projects
Schedule 9

For the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
$

Revenue
Prince Edward Island 2014 Inc.
Federal government
City of Charlottetown
Other sponsors

Expenses
Great George Heritage Walk
Historic Hillsborough Commons

Net expense

253,986
62,902
98,850
23,500

46,014
258,348
-

439,238

304,362

119,410
320,302

46,014
258,348

439,712

304,362

(474)

(37)

2014
$

-
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Management’s Responsibility For Financial Reporting
March 31, 2015
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management’s responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the
financial statements and schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where
appropriate, with the information contained in the financial statements. A summary of the
significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.
Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls
to provide reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced. The internal
controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded,
transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of
the financial statements.
The Board of Trustees is responsible for ensuring that management fulfils its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control, and exercises these responsibilities through the Board.
The Board reviews internal financial statements on a quarterly basis and external audited
financial statements yearly. The Board also discusses any significant financial reporting or
internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial statements.
The external auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, conduct an independent examination, in
accordance with Canadian auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial
statements. The external auditors have full and free access to financial management of the
English Language School Board and meet when required. The accompanying Auditor’s Report
outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the financial
statements.
On behalf of the English Language School Board

Director of Corporate Services

Coordinator of Corporate Services
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Independent auditors’ report
To the Board of Trustees
of the English Language School Board
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the English Language School Board,
which comprise the financial position as at March 31, 2015, and statements of operations and
changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of English Language School Board as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its
operations for the period then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Summerside, Prince Edward Island
June 29, 2015

Audit • Tax • Advisory
Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Chartered accountants
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English Language School Board
Statements of operations and changes in net financial
assets
Year Ended March 31
Revenue
Transfers from the Department
of Education
Administration
Renovations and equipment
Instructional supplies
Salaries and benefits
Maintenance and operation
Transportation
Other revenue (Note 3)

2015

2014
%

$

Expenses (Note 4)
Page
Administration
11
Renovations and equipment 12
Instructional
13
Salaries and benefits
14
Maintenance and operation 15
Transportation
16

Excess expenses
before other expense

2,040,500
984,609
2,318,700
180,885,310
10,720,699
2,976,800
1,266,922

1.0
0.5
1.2
89.9
5.3
1.5
0.6

201,193,540

%

$

2,040,500
1,078,900
2,318,700
182,532,354
10,620,700
2,976,800
1,181,561

1.0
0.5
1.1
89.9
5.4
1.5
0.6

100.0

202,749,515

100.0

1,776,398
1,039,328
2,430,474
180,806,445
11,512,295
3,640,548

0.9
0.5
1.2
89.9
5.7
1.8

1,772,057
916,840
2,085,017
181,883,377
12,554,670
3,549,213

0.9
0.5
1.0
89.5
6.3
1.8

201,205,488

100.0

202,761,174

100.0

(11,948)

Transfer of tangible capital assets

-

(11,659)
(190,237,589)

Excess expenses

$

(11,948)

$(190,249,248)

Net financial assets,
beginning of period

$

35,448

$ 190,284,696

Excess revenues
Net financial assets, end of period

(11,948)
$

23,500

(190,249,248)
$

35,448
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English Language School Board
Statement of financial position
March 31

2015

Financial assets
Current
Cash
Receivables
Department of Education
Trade and other

$

5,824,483
9,684,895
1,560,321

17,561,613
34,662,869
1,306,116
100,000
291,063

17,069,699
31,863,578
1,291,465
100,000
272,173

$ 53,921,661

$ 50,596,915

$

$

Post-employment benefits (Note 7)
Deferred salary program
Deferred revenue
Trust funds (Note 5)

Net assets

$

8,733,691
1,970,621

Department of Education - post-employment benefits
Department of Education - deferred salary plan
Restricted cash
Trust funds (Note 5)

Financial liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
General
Salaries and benefits
Department of Education
Deferred revenue (Note 6)

6,857,301

2014

5,193,832
6,395,315
3,230,062
2,718,904

5,052,057
7,256,640
2,324,716
2,400,838

17,538,113
34,662,869
1,306,116
100,000
291,063

17,034,251
31,863,578
1,291,465
100,000
272,173

53,898,161

50,561,467

$

23,500

$

35,448

Contingency (Note 9)
On behalf of the Board

Chairperson

Trustee

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
4
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English Language School Board
Statement of cash flows
Year Ended March 31

2015

2014

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Operating activities
Excess expenses
Items not affecting cash
Transfer of tangible capital assets

$

(11,948)
-

$ (190,249,248)
190,237,589

(11,948)

(11,659)

Change in non-cash working capital:
Receivables
Payables
Deferred revenue

(2,273,038)
3,018,628
318,066

(3,654,505)
4,525,925
635,971

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,051,708

1,495,732

6,196,656

4,700,924

$ 7,248,364

$ 6,196,656

$ 6,857,301
391,063

$ 5,824,483
372,173

$ 7,248,364

$ 6,196,656

Cash and cash equivalents,
Beginning of period
End of period

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
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English Language School Board
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015
1.

Nature of operations

The Board has the responsibility to provide primary and secondary education requirements
for English speaking students in Prince Edward Island. The Board is funded by the
Department of Education and Early Childhood Development of Prince Edward Island.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The Board prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting Standards.
Revenue recognition
The Board follows the deferral method of accounting for grants for special projects. Grants
restricted for special projects are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred. The unexpended portion of grants received for specific purchases is
deferred and used for the related future purchases. Unrestricted amounts are recognized as
revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.
Government transfers are recognized as revenues when the transfer is authorized and any
eligibility criteria are met. To the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that
meets the definition of a liability, transfers are recognized as deferred revenue.
Retirement allowances
The English Language School Board records an annual expense based on the change in the
actuarially determined obligation for retirement allowance benefits, net of payments during
the year. Funds to settle the obligation which are a liability of the Board will be reimbursed by
the Department of Education and Early Childhood Development of the Province of Prince
Edward Island at the time of payment. Therefore, a receivable from the Department is
recorded for the entire retirement allowance amount.
Vacation pay
Vacation entitlements are expensed as earned.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks, net of bank
overdraft.

6
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English Language School Board
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Pension plans
Instructional employees of the Board are members of the Teacher Superannuation Pension
Plan of the Province of Prince Edward Island. The expense of the Board is limited to current
year contributions as any shortfall in funding of the pension plan is the responsibility of the
Province of Prince Edward Island.
Non-instructional employees are members of the Prince Edward Island Education Sector
Pension Plan with both defined benefit/defined contribution components. The expense of the
Board is limited to a matching contribution equal to the employee’s portion.
Certain non-instructional employees of the Board are members of the Civil Service
Superannuation Pension Plan of the Province of Prince Edward Island. The expense of the
Board is limited to current year contributions as any shortfall in funding of the pension plan is
the responsibility of the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Workers’ compensation claims
The English Language School Board is a registered employer with the Worker’s
Compensation Board of Prince Edward Island for instructional and non-instructional staff. The
Board records an annual expense based on payroll assessments in accordance with the
Workers’ Compensation Act.
Deferred salary plan
Teachers employed with the English Language School Board can participate in a program
that allows them to defer a portion of their annual salary and take a paid leave of absence.
The deferral results in a liability to the teachers, which is satisfied during the paid leave of
absence. Funds to settle the obligation, which are a liability of the Board, will be reimbursed
by the Department of Education and Early Childhood Development of the Province of Prince
Edward Island, and therefore there is an offsetting receivable due from the Department.

3.

Other revenue

Special program funding and recoveries
Miscellaneous
Rentals
School overage reimbursements

2015

2014

$

915,768
181,465
76,634
93,055

$

807,715
146,496
91,389
135,961

$

1,266,922

$

1,181,561
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English Language School Board
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015
4.

Expenses by department

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the statement of operations by
department excluding employee benefits:

Instructional
Administration
Transportation
Maintenance and operations
Employee benefits

5.

2015

2014

$ 130,358,431
8,717,171
10,375,894
20,895,015
30,858,977

$ 130,775,630
8,589,261
10,357,788
21,530,424
31,508,071

$ 201,205,488

$ 202,761,174

Trust funds

Trust funds are comprised of contributions from various sources that are administered by the
Board. The interest that is earned on the contributions may be disbursed for specified
educational purposes. Investments are recorded at cost and are comprised of GIC’s. Cost
approximates fair market value.

6.

Deferred revenue

Funds designated for:
Capital funding
Special program funding
Staff professional development
Maintenance work
Technology
Student leadership and school development

2015

2014

$

1,841,564
155,488
604,355
117,497

$

272,815
1,496,971
138,593
200,000
182,000
110,459

$

2,718,904

$

2,400,838

8
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English Language School Board
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015
7.

Post-employment benefits

An analysis of the components of, and changes in, post-employment benefits liabilities is as
follows:

Retirement allowance
Balance, April 1, 2014 (2014 - April 1, 2013)

2015

2014

$ 32,208,994

$ 29,030,240

Amortization of actuarial gain
Current service cost
Interest accrued
Less: payments made

740,243
2,645,490
1,481,060
(1,744,562)

1,008,313
1,971,437
1,683,761
(1,484,757)

Balance, March 31, 2015 (2015 – March 31, 2014)

35,331,225

32,208,994

962,776

971,927

36,294,001

33,180,921

(1,631,132)

(1,317,343)

Vacation pay

Less: current portion

$ 34,662,869
Unamortized actuarial adjustment

$ 31,863,578

$ (10,202,327) $ (7,386,148)

The retirement allowance balances are based on an independent actuarial valuation dated
April 1, 2014, provided to the Pension and Benefits Division of the Province Of Prince
Edward Island Civil Service Commission. The report was subsequently amended for a
change in the discount rate to be used in the valuation of the liability the amendment was
dated April 1, 2015. The Province Of Prince Edward Island projects the total liability in the
years between the tri-annual actuarial valuations. The amendment dated April 1, 2015 is
reflected in the 2015 projection prepared by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The economic assumptions used in determining the actuarial value of accrued retirement
allowances were developed by reference to expected long term market conditions. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuations and projections are:
Discount rate
Expected inflation rate
Expected average remaining service life

2.64% per annum
2.25% per annum
14 years
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English Language School Board
Notes to the financial statements
March 31, 2015
8.

Grant Allocations figures

The Board’s activities are funded by the Department of Education and Early Childhood
Development (the Department). The annual grant allocation from the Department provides
details as to the funding allocations for each operational area with the exception of salaries.
The grant for salaries is for an approved number of full time employees for the Board.
Funding for the approved number of positions is provided by The Department but the actual
dollar value of the approved positions is not included in the identified grant. Since a dollar
value was not provided for salaries, the grant associated with this expenditure has been
excluded from the financial statements, the following figures are the operational budget
allocations provided by the Department compared to the actual results for 2015:
Grant
allocation
by category
March 31,
2015
Administration
Renovations and equipment
Instructional
Maintenance and operations
Transportation

9.

$

2,040,500
1,078,900
2,318,700
10,720,700
2,976,800

Actual
expenditures
by category
March 31,
2015
$

1,776,398
1,039,328
2,430,474
11,512,295
3,640,548

Contingency

The Board has elected to self insure itself related to collision coverage. During the year, no
events were reported in accordance with the policies of the collision contingency fund.
The Board has received funding from the Department of Education to fund expenditures which
qualify for the collision contingency fund. These funds are being deferred on the balance sheet
and unspent funds are reported as restricted cash.

10.

Comparative figures

Certain of the figures on the 2014 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2015 financial statement presentation.

10
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English Language School Board
Schedule of administration expenses
Year Ended March 31
Advertising
Courier services
Equal chances at learning
Graduation
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Office supplies
Postal services
Professional development
Professional services
Public, staff and student relations
Telephone
Travel
Trustees remuneration
Trustees travel and other

2015

2014

$

12,571
36,575
26,206
48,269
131,945
9,765
87,299
39,236
153,405
261,566
112,138
349,895
452,738
36,878
17,912

$

14,715
65,193
22,142
20,186
301,439
20,324
95,097
26,904
112,393
87,693
118,014
355,064
473,890
36,312
22,691

$

1,776,398

$

1,772,057
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English Language School Board
Schedule of renovations and equipment expenses
Year Ended March 31
Audio-visual equipment
Classroom furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Maintenance equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Musical instruments
Office furniture and equipment
Playground
Vehicles

2015

2014

$

150,854
104,658
274,400
133,901
200,926
52,119
33,041
89,429
-

$

105,970
65,610
391,170
31,311
178,773
15,912
25,695
53,794
48,605

$

1,039,328

$

916,840

12

56

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

English Language School Board
Schedule of instructional expenses
Year Ended March 31
Academic supplies
Art
Computer literacy
Curriculum programs
Duplicating supplies
English and language arts
French
Guidance and resource
Home economics and family living
Industrial arts
Library and resource centres
Mathematics
Music
Physical education
Science
Student services
Vocational education

2015

2014

$

454,731
31,400
2,256
519,239
451,381
9,873
14,602
1,646
49,023
35,103
220,601
8,347
126,061
96,601
102,572
102,337
204,701

$

380,136
33,470
4,416
233,341
579,508
11,754
890
4,592
58,839
29,125
198,651
10,010
148,981
114,928
54,399
4,048
217,929

$

2,430,474

$

2,085,017
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English Language School Board
Schedule of salaries and benefits expenses
Year Ended March 31
Board administration support
Board management
Instructional
Maintenance and operation
School administration support
Educational assistants and youth service workers
Transportation
Benefits

2015
$

1,889,287
1,872,632
115,454,421
8,343,392
3,178,854
12,473,536
6,735,346
25,992,176

2014
$

1,763,941
1,981,434
116,103,026
8,044,710
3,038,815
12,607,208
6,817,754
26,803,181

175,939,644

177,160,069

4,866,801

4,723,308

$ 180,806,445

$ 181,883,377

Retirement allowance

Note:
Board administration support includes board office, clerical and secretarial staff.
Board management includes superintendent of education; directors and leaders of school
effectiveness, curriculum, student services, human resources, and corporate services; and
property and transportation management and supervisors.
Instructional salaries include consultants, principals, vice-principals, department heads, and
teachers.
Maintenance and operations salaries include building, janitorial and maintenance staff.
School administration support includes school secretarial staff.
Transportation salaries include bus driver staff.
Benefits include the employer’s share of Canada pension and employment insurance, group
insurance, workers’ compensation premiums, pension and teacher superannuation
premiums.
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English Language School Board
Schedule of maintenance and operation expenses
Year Ended
Building repairs
Contract cleaning
Electricity
Fire department dues
Fuel - heating
Insurance
Ground maintenance
Miscellaneous
Rentals
Property taxes
Service contracts and professional services
Service vehicles
Sewer and water
Snow removal
Supplies
Travel
Waste disposal

2015
$

1,403,102
8,307
3,030,947
35,169
4,521,700
214,890
55,251
13,962
214,127
40,745
92,296
89,387
276,419
616,827
500,138
19,929
379,099

$ 11,512,295

2014
$

1,375,256
5,494
2,935,882
40,236
5,257,242
503,836
121,273
12,201
209,080
41,324
94,399
94,764
420,520
541,572
570,795
19,600
311,196

$ 12,554,670
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English Language School Board
Schedule of transportation expenses
Year Ended March 31
Bus parts and repairs
Communications
Contracted services
Extra-curricular transportation
Fuel
Insurance
Professional services
Snow removal
Supplies
Travel

2015

2014

$

1,274,440
104,782
134,150
20,948
1,799,361
187,022
13,258
90,850
6,102
9,635

$

988,458
90,294
138,123
27,308
2,082,614
174,005
11,881
22,174
5,486
8,870

$

3,640,548

$

3,549,213
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Finance PEl
Consolidated Financial Statement
March 31, 2015
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ArsenaultBestCameronEllis
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
A Member Firm of The AC Group of Independent Accounting Firms Limited

Chartered Accountants &
Business Advisors
Prince Edward Place
80 Water Street
POBox455
Charlottetown. Prince Edward Island
Canada C1A 71.1
Telephone (902) 368·3100
Fax (902) 566-5074
www.acgca.ca

June 10,2015
Independent Auditor's R eport
To the Boar d of Directors of
Finance PEl
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of f'inance PEI, which comprise the
consolidated statements of
consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and
operations, accumulated surplus, changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair pre entation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion,
financial statements
in all material
the consolidated
of its operations and its
position of Finance PEl as at March 3 I, 20 15, and the consolidated
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
(l)
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Finance PEl
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2015
2015

2014

$

$

Assets
Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (notes 2 and 11 )
Loans receivable (note 3)
Advances to related companies (note 11)
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island (note 11)
Investment in private companies (note 4)

2, 809,449
622,320
173,492,981
31 8,25 7
11,163,650
290,002

6,758,298
4 11 ,800
177,570,1 56
1,332,439
11, 163,650
290,002

188,696,659

197,526,345

l ,590,147
1,303,277
11 ,401 ,734
12,6 18,502
166,609,509

1,393,522
1,28 1,632
14,005,225
32,203,502
156,014,948

193,523 ,169

204,898,829

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 11)
Deferred revenue
Advances from related companies (note 11)
Short-term notes payable (note 5)
Long-term debt (note 6)

Net debt

(4,826,5 10)

(7' 372,484)

116,998
95 7,030
21 7,630
27,994,377

127,077
914,030
423,508
28,592,625

29,286,035

30,057,240

24,459,525

22,684,756

Contingent liabilities (note 9)
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Net investment in lease (note 7)
Foreclosed properties (note 8)
Property holdings (note 11) (Schedule 2)

Accumulated surplus

(2)
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Con olidated Statement of Accumulated Surplu
For the year ended March 31, 2015

Accumulated surplus - Beginning of year
Operating surplus for the year

Accumulated surplus - End of year

(3)

2015

2014

$

$

22,684,756

20,922,369

1,774,769

1,762,3 7

24,459,525

22,684,756
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Finance PEl
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
(Unaudited)

Actual
2015

Actual
2014

$

$

$

Revenue
Interest from borrowers
Interest from deposits
Property operations (note 11)
Service fees
Post-receivership income
Management fees (note 11)
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Expenses (note II) (Schedule 1)
Administration
Lending operations
Propetty operations (note 1)
Provision for possible losses

Operating surplus (deficit)

10,400,000
30,000
3,925,000
210,000

9,41 7,047
41,538
4,068,375
253 ,26 1
49,773
500,000

25,000

25,304

9,877,299
42,961
4,648, 182
36 1,560
20,009
500,000
19,200
91,981

14,590,000

14,355,298

15,561, 192

645,500
7,676,600
5,052,600
1,600,000

490,596
6,774,898
5,131,077
183,95 8

597,948
7,074,625
5,21 4,407
911 ,825

14,974,700

12,580, 529

13,798,805

1,774,769

1,762,387

(3 84,700)
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Con olidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2015
20 15

2014

$

$

Annual surplus

1,774,769

1,762,387

Acquisition of property holdings
Amortization of property holdings
Gain on disposal of property holdings
Proceeds on disposal of property holdings
Additions to foreclosed properties
Decrease in provision for foreclosed properties
Payments received on foreclosed properties
Disposal of foreclosed properties

(747,423)
1,345,671

(2,079,117)
1,267,3 57
(771,639)
909,064
(3 ,506,631)
(1,017,333)
12,989,574
3,382,924

(327,595)
(693,000)
1,226,473
804, 126

Change in net investment in lease
Increase in prepaid expenses

11 ,174,199

(43,000)

(43,000)

10,079

(2,244)

77 1,205

11 ,128,955

2,545,974

12,89 1,342

Net debt- Beginning of year

(7,372,484)

(20,263,826)

Net debt- End of year

(4,826,5 10)

(7,372,484)

Decrease in net debt

(5)

Ill
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Cash provided

2015

2014

$

$

(used in)

Operating activities
L
Amortization
vH(1H~;~ in net investment in lease
Provision for uv ''""u''"'
Gain on sale

Net

Decrease in accrued interest receivable
Decrease
in
expenses
Increase
in accounts
and accrued liabilities
Increase in deterred revenue

Financing activities
Decrease (increase) in advances to related companies
Increase
in advances from related companies
Decrease in investment in private companies
Increase in short-term notes payable
Repa;rment of short-term notes payable
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment on
debt

Investing activities
Additions to and
nrrv• p ,nfi"

of property "V'''""""''
on disposal of property holdings

1,014,182
(2,603,491)

(

67,941,133

(193,147)
1
69,999
ll
165,119)
19,280,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
March 31, 2015

1

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of CPA Canada. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these statement :

a) General
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the wholly-owned subsidiaries, Atlantic
Technology Centre Inc., P .E. I. Biocommons Inc. and 10041 7 P .E. I. Inc., all having March 31, 201 5 year
ends.
b) Cash

Cash is comprised of cash on hand and cash in banks and is recorded at cost.

c) Financial instruments
The Corporation's financial instruments consists of cash, accounts receivable, loans receivable, advance to
related companies, due from the Province of Prince Edward Island, investment in private companies,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, advances from related companies, short-tenn notes payable and
long-term debt.
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initia lly recognized at fair value and subsequently measured
at cost or amortized cost.

d) Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable arise from tenant rents, trade sales, staff advance and Harmonized Sales Tax
receivable. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been calculated through discussions with
management, assessment of the other circumstances influencing the collectibility of amounts, and using
historical loss experience. Amounts deemed uncollectible are written off and deducted from the carrying
value of the receivable. Amounts subsequently recovered from accounts previously written off are
credited to the allowance account in the period of recovery.

e) Loans receivable
Loans are recorded at amortized cost less an allowance for possible losses.
An
loan is a loan where in
optmon
is no longer reasonable assurance as to
the
collection of the full amount of principal and interest. Allowances for possible
are
calculated on loans receivable as outlined in note lj).

(7)
~e\11

A
... r·s·e·r·l·a·ul·lB·
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f) Due from Province of Prince Edward Island

amount due
Province
credit losses.

>J'""'""'H"'

g) Investments in private companies

losses.

investments not considered to
was
to development programs
any applicable
for
is taken into revenue

The two investments in "'"'''~"',..,.."'"
companies that are not
cost are
at the
of cost and estimated
value.

of their

Investment in private companies are reviewed annually for potential declines in value and are written down
or an allowance is recorded if a decline in value is considered evident Write downs are included in
lending operations expense.
It is not practical within the constraints of timeliness and cost to determine the fair market value of the

investment in private companies as these investments are in closely held private companies that have no
organized financial market The
realizable value of these investments is based on Pvnp,('tf'•rl
future cash flows.
h) Property holdings, foreclosed properties and amortization
i)

Property holdings are reported at the lower cost and estimated
value. Property holdings
are amortized
the
method at the following annual rates:
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to realization

the

is recorded as

to

value
Fair value
held
resale or under
purchase utJ!,'"''"
nrf\r\Portv tax
value. Fair value for industrial sites is the extJectec!
industrial
on resale. Fair value
the test cells is the net cost to construct the assets supported
payments
a
lease
If property and equipment
value should ex•::ee:a
fair value, additional amortization or a writedown is
i) Net investment in leases

Net investment in
represents the net '"'"""''""''" value of the minimum
leases with a deferred
the term of the lease plus the purchase option

payments receivable over
option.

j) Allowance for possible losses

An allowance for possible
is maintained which is considered adequate to
all credit and
investment related losses of financial position items including guarantees. The allowance is deducted from
the applicable asset on the statement of financial position,
for guarantees. The allowance for
guarantees is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
The allowance consists of specific
Specific provisions include the accumulated allowances for
the book values to estimated realizable amounts.
m
compames
total

on particular assets required to reduce
for
receivable and investments
4-

1

1).
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Finance PEl
otes to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

k) Employee pension plan
The Corporation's staff are members of the Province of Prince Edward Island pension plan. The pension
plan obligation is a liability of the Province and not Finance PEl and no liability for these costs has been
accrued by the Corporation at March 31,2015.

I) Post retirement benefits
The Corporation provides retirement benefits to eligible employees. The benefit is based on one week's
salary per year of service to a maximum of 26 weeks and is expensed on an accrual basis.

m) Deferred revenue
Contributions received and not expended on land purchases and grants to finance infrastructure costs and
contributions to occupants of the Biocommons park are recorded as deferred revenue.

n) Revenue recognition
Grants from the Province of Prince Edward Island, federal government contributions and investment
income are recorded in the period earned.
Interest on loans from borrowers is recogni zed as revenue in the period earned except where a loan is
classified as impaired. Interest earned on an impaired loan is reco6111ized as revenue only when it has been
received.
Revenue from property operations are recorded when collection is reasonably assured and all other
significant conditions of service are met.
Revenue from service fees, post-receivership income and management fees are recorded when earned and
collection is reasonably assured.

o) Government transfers
Government transfers are the transfer of assets from senior levels of government that are not the result of
an exchange transaction, are not expected to be repaid in the future, or the result of a direct financial
return. Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in which
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have
been met, and reasonable estimates on the amounts can be deternlined.

p) Management estimates
The
of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the year. Actual results could differ from the following estimates:

(10)

II
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•
well as the

•
•
2

Accounts receivable
The accounts

3

have been reduced

an

possible losses

15

14-

Loans receivable
2015

Total
$
Working capital loans
Agriculture
Tourism
Manufacturing and prc,ce,;sntg

Fisheries
Small business

11

Long-term loans

Tourism
Fisheries

Allowance
for
possible
losses
General
$

Allowance
for
possible
losses
Specific
$

Net
$

2014

Net
$
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are

various tenns

max1mum

10

5

interest rates

interest rates

Continuity of allowance for possible losses

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Less: Loans
off
year
Less: Transferred to foreclosed nrc,nP·rt11
Less: Recoveries during year
3

2014

$

$

(32,083)

"

35,208,797

Allowance for possible losses - End of year

4

2015

35,528,233

Investment in private companies

Investment in private companies
Small Business
Venture Capital Equity Program investments
Less: Allowance
possible losses

cost

2015

2014

$

$
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March

Corttinuity

5

2015

2014

$

$

Allowance for possible losses Beginning of year
Less:
the year

92 1

Allowance for possible losses - End of year

921 721

921

Short-term notes payable
2015

2014

$

$

Demand note payable to Island Investment Development Inc.
Demand notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island
12,618,502

32,203,502

The demand notes payable to Island Investment Development Inc. includes a $15,000,000 available operating
line of credit with an outstanding balance $6,998,502 (20 14 $6,998,502).
The demand note to Island Investment Development Inc. is
by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and
a revolving credit
The demand notes to Province of Prince Edward Island are unsecured.
Interest paid
Finance PEI is included in the expenditure
1 (20 13 for 2014 in the amount of

to

it relates. Included is interest

Demand notes payable are issued
the Province of Prince Edward Island with interest set monthly based on
the Province's short-term lending rate in existence at the first day of the month. These notes are renewed on
an ongoing basis with interest payable

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015
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6

Long-term debt

6.01

2015

2014

$

$

and interest
Nova Scotia
monthly plus
note payable, due

note payable, due December
monthly including
and
Notes payable to Province of Prince Edward Island with interest
rates from 1
to
maturing at various dates
between 2015 and 2019

721,182

166,609,509

156,014,948

Island Investment Development Inc. is a provincial Crown corporation. The repayment terms of the $556,846
and $1,430,499 loans are to be determined at a future date.
The

mortgage is secured by a full guarantee provided by the Province of Prince Edward Island.

The 6.01 and
notes payable are secured by a
holdings with a net book value of nil.

agreement covering certain property

All other notes payable are unsecured.
estimated to be

in each of the next

years to meet
$

l'
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7

Net investment in lease
Net

a

due

1 20 5.
a

2015

2014

$

$

Total lease
Less: Portion
957,030

8

914,030

Foreclosed properties
2015

2014

$

$

Foreclosed projects -land, buildings and equipment held for
resale
Less: Allowance for possible losses
217,630

423,508

Co11tinuity of allowa11ce for possible losses

Allowance for possible losses - Beginning of year
Add: Transferred from loans
Less:
year
Less :
Allowance for possible losses - End of year

2015

2014

$

$
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The

31

lS

follows:

2015

2014

$

$

1, 16,033

Loan
The

14.

loan program

IS

have various

dates

,241,037

July 2019 to

2023.

,.,,..H""'"'"' are secured by various assets and

the
There is no

for possible losses included in the financial statements

the

l 0 Commitments
Loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2015 total $4,500,019 (20 14 -

11 Related party account balances and transactions
Related parties
The related companies are provincial Crown corporations or subsidiaries of provincial Crown corporations.

Statement of Financial Position

Advances to related cornmmH~s
F.T.C.
Limited
Inc.

31

2015

2014

$

$

78

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

Finance PEl
Note to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31 , 2015

The advances to/from related companies and due from the Province of Prince Edward Island, are non-interest
Island Investment Development Inc. are
bearing
no specific tenus of repayment. Innovation PEl
provincial Crown corporations. Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. and F.T.C. Enterprises Limited
are subsidiaries of provincial Crown corporations. Biocommons Development Inc. is a non-profit company
with a similar Board of Directors as P.E.I. Biocommons Inc.'s Board of Directors. P.E.I. Biocommons Inc is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Finance PEL
Included in accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due
from/due to related parties:
2015
2014
$
$
Accounts receivable:
Due from Province of Prince Edward Island
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Due to Province of Prince Edward Island
Due to related companies

52,600

59,052

129,279
506,537

109,180
429,486

635,8 16

538,666

Property holdings
The Province of Prince Edward Island conveys land to the Corporation periodically to be used for
development purposes. The exchange and carrying amounts of land when transferred into the Corporation is
nil.
Statement of operations
Included in property operations revenue is $440,582 (20 14 - $51 0,903) from related parties.
During the year, management fees of $500,000 (20 14 - $500,000) were received from Island Investment
Development Inc., a provincial Crown corporation.
Included in expenditures is 4,335,403 (2014- $4,469,461) in interest paid to Province of Prince Edward
Island and $207,369 (2014- $156,839) in interest paid to Island Investment Development Inc., a provincial
Crown corporation.

The above transactions were recorded in the normal course of operations and measured at exchange amounts.

Other
The Corporation rents land for the annual amount of $2,120 plus applicable taxes from Siemon Park
Corporation under a fifty-year lease agreement, effective for the term September 28, 2001 to September 28,
2051.
10041 7 P.E.L Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Finance PEl, owns 56% of the common shares of Siemon
Park Corporation. 100417 P.E.L Inc has not consolidated Siemon Park Corporation into its operations as
100417 P.E.L Inc. does not have voting control of Slemon Park Corporation.
(17)
ArsenaultBestCameronE!Iis
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March

12 Financial risk management objectives and policies
Finance PEl's

activities result in statement
awcuw'~' risks that arise
all

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk
loss to
company if a customer or
a
instrument
to meet its contractual obligations.
risk arises primarily from the "''-''"IJ'"

loans

position date in relation to
The company's maximum exposure to credit
at the statement of
each class recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value any
collateral or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under
the financial instruments in question.
The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Advances to related companies
Investment in subsidiaries and private company
Due
the
Prince
Island

2015

2014

$

$

31

290,002
11 '1
1
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Note to Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

Credit is approved by staff and the company's Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million
approval by
Board. The company
the financial strength each
borrower, the security available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing
all potential loans.
A loan is considered past due when a party has not made a payment by the contractual due date.
The following table presents the carrying value of loans that are past due but not classified as
impaired:

As at:
March 31 , 2015
March 31 , 2014

0- 60 days

60- 120 days

+120 days

Total

$

$

$

$

133,769
738,266

775,210
488, 172

6,456,569
8,427,370

7,365 ,548
9,653,808

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, advances from related companies, notes payable and mortgages as they come due.
The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its cash flows and forecast the
expected receipts and obligations.
The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date.

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Advances from related
companies
Short-term notes payable
Long-term debt

Under 1
year

Between
1-5 years

Over
5 years

$

$

$

2015

Total
$

1,590,147

1,590,147

11,401,734
12,618,502
29,445,434

117,870,574

19,293,501

11 ,401,734
12,618,502
166,609,509

55,055,817

117,870,574

19,293,501

192,219,892

(19)
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Under 1
year

Between
1- 5 years

Over
5 years

2014
Total

$

$

$

$

Short-tenn notes

98,728,658

97,039,079

7,849,460

203,617,197

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that
in
such as
rates and equity prices will
the company's income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market
mamagerne11t is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk.
i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the
value or future cash
of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. For the Corporation, mismatches in the
balances of assets, liabilities and
of financial position financial instruments that
mature and
in
reporting periods generate interest rate
These mismatches will
arise through the ordinary course of business as the Corporation manages member portfolios of
loans and deposits with changing tern1 preferences and through the
positioning of the credit
union to enhance profitability.

interest
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(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with
the company's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted tandards of corporate behaviour.
The company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of fmanciallosses
and damage to the company's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity. The prima.ry responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management.
(e) Capital management
The primary objective of Finance PEl's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
financial position in order to support its business. Finance PEl manages its capital structure and make
changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions.

(21)

Operating
Property operations
Allowance for credit losses and guarantee
payments
Lending operations

JK'lpenses

i\dministration
Property operations
Allowance for credit losses and
guarantee payments

Expenses

2,772,2 75

1,321,398

347,570

5,762,824

5,245,108

il
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! 3,798,805

9 11 ,825
7,074,625

597,948
5,2 14,407

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSI..l...

I ,224,350

1,224,350

$

$

5 17,7 16

Total
Amortization
$

2014

12,580,529

183,958

490,596
5,131 ,077

$

Total

$

l ,300,598

1,300,598

$

Amortization

Interest
Expense

5,499,223

464,849

$

Inter·est
Expense

2015

Schedule 1

Lending
Operations

2,370,388

(22)

RR6

577,844

N~

183,958

911,825
409,5 73

2,772,275

Property
Operations
$

Operating
Goods &
Services
$
268,768
78,802

2,44 1,885

367,921

2,441 ,885

$

$

$
194,055
173 ,866

Lending
Operations

Property
Operations

Operating
Goods &
Services

1,41 9,944

329,180
621,264

Saluies
Benefits
$

2,393,058

I

296,541
749,879

Salaries
Benefits
$

Non-consolidated Schedule of Expenses by Type
For the year ended March 31,2015

Finance PEl
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Test cell

i ndustrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equ ipment

Property holdings held
for res~tl.e
Land
Buildings

General
Land
Land improvements
Building

4,937,000

747,423

4,937,000
49,403 ,490

(23)

50,150,913

38,21 6,973

740,553

37,476,420

-

4,037,384
2,769,648
1,001,339
23 ,268,067
7, 140,535

4,284 ,302

1,584,302
2,700,000

2,7 12,638

3,540
687,213
49,800

-

$

$

981 ,500
44,765
1,686,373

Disposals/
Ending

Transfers

-

Cost

4,037,384
2,769,648
997,799
22,580,854
7,090,73 5

4,284,302

-

6,870

2,705,768

1,584,302
2,700,000

6,870

$

$

98 I ,500
44,765
1,679,503

Additions

Ueginning

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2015

Schedule of Property Holdings

Finance PEl

20,8 10,865

2,812,268

16,418,762

2,722,718
87 ,149
6,586,572
7,022,323

683,580

68 3,580

896,255

44,765
851 ,490

$

1,345,67 1

246,850

878,503

4,665
69,970
767,6 12
36,256

153 ,000

153,000

-

67,3 18

67,3 18

-

$

Beginning Amortization

-

-

836,580

-

.,

.

---- ---------------------

,.

27,994,3 77

1,877,882

20,9 19,708

4,037,384
42,265
844,220
15,9!3,883
81,956

3,447,722

1,584,302
1,863,420

1,749,065

767,565

*rI
~"'l', 'J C::HMTERt:D
ArsenaultBest(_,
·····.l··n·.·.1....tl..J..·.o.. nEllis
ACCOUNTANfS
..
--

22, 156,536

3,059,118

17,29 7,265

2,727,383
157,119
7,354,184
7,058 ,579

836,580

-

-

963,573

-

$

$

981 ,500

Net book
value

2015
Ending

44,765
918,808

-

Disposnls
$

Accumulated amortization

Schedule 2
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Test cell

Industrial Sites
Land
Land improvements
Leasehold improvements
Building
Equipment

2,079,117

47,464,320

1,9 16,384

35,699,983
4,937,000

26,0 13
502
1,846,2 17

4,1 22,902
2,743 ,635
997,297
20,789,066

150,000

4,134,302

12,733

150,000

981,500
44,765
1,666,770

Transfe rred
in
$

2014

P r operty holdings held for resale
Land
l ,434,302
Buildings
2,700,000

General
Laud
Land improvements
Building

Hegin ning
$

Schedule of Property Holdings
at and fo r the
ended Mauch

Finance PEl

(139,947)

( 139,947)

(54,429)

(85,5 18)

-

-

Additions
$

(24)

49,403,490

4,937,000

37,476,420

4,037,384
2,769,648
997,799
22,580,854
7,090, 73 5

4,284,302

1,584,302
2,700,000

98 1,500
44,765
l ,6 79,503

Ending
$

19,546,030

2,565,4 18

15,620,702

2,7 19,094
17,32 1
5,898,048
6,986,239

530,580

530,580

1,267,357

246,850

800,582

3,624
69 ,828
691 ,046
36,084

-

153 ,000

153,000

(2 ,522)

(2,522)

(2 ,522)

20,81 0,8 65

2,8 12,268

16,41 8,762

2,72 2,7 18
87, 149
6,586,572
7,022 ,323

683 ,580

683 ,580

44,765
85 1,490

Ending
$

amortization

-

-

l>isposals
$

A (~ Ctmmlated

44, 765
784,565
66,925

Beginning Amortization
$
$

Cost

13

28,592,625

2,124,732

2 1,057,658

4,037 ,384
46,930
91 0,650
15,994,282
68,412

3,600,722

1,584,302
2,0 16,420

l

828,0 13

98 1,500

Net book
value
$

2014

Schedule 2
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
Management is accountable to the Board of Directors of Health PEI on matters of financial reporting
and internal controls. Management provides internal financial reports to the Board of Directors on a
regular basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of Health PEI to meet as
required.
On behalf of Health PEI

_____________________________
Dr. Richard Wedge
Chief Executive Officer

June 26, 2015

____________________________
Denise Lewis Fleming
Executive Director of Financial Services
and Pharmacare
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Health PEI
I have audited the financial statements of Health PEI, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net debt,
and cash flow for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net debt, and cash flow for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 26, 2015
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HEALTH PEI
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$
Financial Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (Note 4)
Due from the Department of Health and Wellness
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7)
Employee future benefits (Note 8)
Deferred revenue (Note 9)

12,316,834
5,226,297
36,265,175
53,808,306

2,846,880
7,708,390
30,763,408
41,318,678

81,413,180
58,970,197
287,600
140,670,977

75,056,659
53,126,903
57,503
128,241,065

(86,862,671)

(86,922,387)

242,145,128
3,511,427
584,920
246,241,475

247,494,224
3,436,146
719,917
251,650,287

159,378,804

164,727,900

891,715
750,830

672,954
691,644

Net Debt
Non Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 11)
Inventories held for use (Note 5)
Prepaid expenses (Note 6)

Accumulated Surplus

2014
$

Designated assets (Note 16)
Trusts under administration (Note 17)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of Health PEI

___________________________________
Chair

Board Member
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HEALTH PEI
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
(Note 19)
2015
$
Revenues
Grants - Dept. of Health and Wellness
Fees - patient and client (Note 14)
Food services
Federal revenues
Sales
Other
Operational Revenues
Capital grants - Dept. of Health and Wellness
Other capital contributions
Capital Revenues

Expenses (Note 20)
Community Hospitals
Acute Care
Addiction Services
Acute Mental Health
Community Mental Health
Continuing Care
Private Nursing Home Subsidies
Public and Dental Health
Provincial Pharmacare Programs
Home Care and Support
Provincial Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging
Provincial Hospital Pharmacies
Emergency Health Services
Corporate and Support Services
Medical Programs - In Province
Medical Programs - Out of Province
Primary Care
Operational Expenses
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Annual (Deficit) Surplus (Note 15)
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated Surplus, end of year

2015
$

2014
$

581,134,300
20,651,800
1,064,900
517,200
895,600
1,283,200
605,547,000
11,356,600
4,026,500
15,383,100
620,930,100

577,262,681
19,799,741
956,663
246,792
771,100
1,762,265
600,799,242
7,124,300
3,390,484
10,514,784
611,314,026

565,701,700
20,125,007
1,042,997
583,577
811,173
1,674,974
589,939,428
18,114,364
4,897,790
23,012,154
612,951,582

21,618,400
162,707,400
11,793,900
17,785,800
8,243,900
62,042,000
21,716,500
10,296,200
35,355,900
15,253,100
28,912,200
5,841,300
15,171,100
22,674,200
107,181,500
46,282,100
12,671,500
605,547,000
605,547,000

22,121,082
163,293,431
10,779,799
18,053,006
7,650,471
63,975,423
20,926,847
10,035,731
31,041,451
15,131,149
29,626,106
5,339,495
14,608,105
21,630,820
108,607,074
46,004,258
11,974,994
600,799,242
15,863,880
616,663,122

21,634,622
160,292,461
10,070,563
17,507,649
7,552,408
62,182,516
18,737,257
9,608,398
34,904,191
14,464,781
29,253,264
4,985,790
14,179,581
23,143,221
103,485,063
46,792,153
10,433,044
589,226,962
15,869,352
605,096,314

15,383,100

(5,349,096)
164,727,900
159,378,804

7,855,268
156,872,632
164,727,900

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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HEALTH PEI
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
For the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

Net Debt, beginning of year

(86,922,387)

(86,922,387)

(87,546,892)

Changes in year:
Annual (deficit) surplus
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Change in Net Debt

15,383,100
(15,383,100)
-

(5,349,096)
(10,514,784)
15,863,880
(75,281)
134,997
59,716

7,855,268
(23,012,154)
15,869,352
(12,330)
(75,631)
624,505

Net Debt, end of year

(86,922,387)

(86,862,671)

(86,922,387)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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HEALTH PEI
Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
(Deficit) surplus for the year
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from the Department of Health and Wellness
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee future benefits
Deferred revenue
Inventories held for use
Prepaid expenses
Cash provided by operating activities
Capital Activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Cash used by capital activities
Change in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

(5,349,096)
15,863,880

7,855,268
15,869,352

2,482,093
(5,501,767)
6,356,521
5,843,294
230,097
(75,281)
134,997
19,984,738

(802,003)
(4,344,147)
(1,264,141)
2,386,575
(67,186)
(12,330)
(75,631)
19,545,757

(10,514,784)
(10,514,784)

(23,012,154)
(23,012,154)

9,469,954
2,846,880

(3,466,397)
6,313,277

12,316,834

2,846,880

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

114

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
Health PEI is a provincial Crown corporation established on April 1, 2010, and operates
under the authority of the Health Services Act. Health PEI is a government organization
named in Schedule B of the Financial Administration Act and reports to the Legislative
Assembly through the Minister of the Department of Health and Wellness. The mandate of
Health PEI is to be responsible for the operation and delivery of all health services in the
Province of Prince Edward Island. These services are categorized as follows:
Community Hospitals
Acute Care
Addiction Services
Acute Mental Health
Community Mental Health
Continuing Care
Private Nursing Home Subsidies
Provincial Pharmacare Programs
Primary Care

Home Care and Support
Public and Dental Health
Provincial Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging
Provincial Hospital Pharmacies
Emergency Health Services
Corporate and Support Services
Medical Programs - In Province
Medical Programs - Out of Province

Health PEI is a provincial Crown corporation and as such is not subject to taxation under the
federal Income Tax Act.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards. Health PEI complies with the recommendations of the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada (CPA) wherever applicable. PSAB standards are supplemented, where appropriate,
by other CPA Canada accounting pronouncements.
Since Health PEI has no unrealized remeasurement gains or losses attributable to foreign
exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments, or other financial instruments, a statement of
remeasurement gains and losses is not prepared.
For the year ended March 31, 2015, Health PEI adopted the new Public Sector Accounting
Standard PS3260 “Liability for Contaminated Sites,” which establishes standards on
accounting for and reporting liabilities associated with the remediation of contaminated sites.
The adoption of the new PS3260 standard has not resulted in any changes to the
measurement and recognition of liabilities in Health PEI’s financial statements. Two former
continuing care facilities, which are no longer in productive use by Health PEI, are owned by
the Province of Prince Edward Island, and the responsibility for remediation of
contamination, if any, is the responsibility of the province’s Department of Transportation,
Infrastructure and Energy and the Department of Family and Human Services.
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
a) Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and balances on deposit with financial institutions, net of
overdrafts.
b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provision when collection is in doubt.
c) Inventories Held for Use
Inventories of supplies as described in Note 5 are recorded at the lower of the moving
average and replacement cost. Damaged, obsolete, or otherwise unusable inventory is
expensed as identified. Inventories of supplies that are resold to the public are not
segregated due to their immaterial value.
d) Due from the Department of Health and Wellness
Amounts due to or from the Department of Health and Wellness arise from the difference
between cash flows provided to Health PEI and expenditures up to a maximum of the
approved grant from the Department. These balances have no repayment terms and are
non-interest bearing.
e) Deferred Revenue
Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation, or agreement and may
only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and
transactions. These amounts are recognized as revenue when eligibility criteria, if any,
have been met.
f)

Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement, and/or
betterment of the assets. Cost includes overhead directly attributable to construction and
development. Interest, if any, on capital projects is expensed as incurred.
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Tangible Capital Assets (continued...)
The cost of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Building improvements
Paving
Equipment
Computer hardware
Computer software systems
Motor vehicles

40 years
10 years
10 years
5 years
5 years
5-20 years
5 years

For each category of tangible capital assets, only those individual assets meeting a
minimum dollar threshold for that category are recorded as capital assets.
The cost of assets under construction is not amortized until construction is complete and
the asset is available for use. In the year of acquisition, one half of the annual
amortization is recorded.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate they no longer
contribute to Health PEI’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of the
future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their
net book value. Write downs are expensed when identified.
g) Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses, as described in Note 6, are charged to expenses over the periods
expected to benefit.
h) Revenues
Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or
event which gave rise to the revenue occurred. When accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable, revenues
are recorded as received.
Transfers (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenue when
the transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made. Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when amounts
have been received but eligibility criteria have not been met.
Grants from the Department of Health and Wellness are recognized as revenue on a
monthly basis as services are delivered by Health PEI in accordance with its legislated
mandate.
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
i) Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or
event which gave rise to the expense occurred.
Transfers include entitlements, grants, and transfers under cost shared agreements.
Grants and transfers are recorded as expenses when the transfer is authorized, eligibility
criteria have been met by the recipient, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be
made.
j) Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at year-end. Foreign currency
transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Health PEI has limited exposure to foreign currency, as substantially all of its
transactions are conducted in Canadian dollars and year-end foreign currency balances
are not significant.
k) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates include the useful life of capital assets, employee retirement and sick leave
benefits, provisions for doubtful accounts, accrued liabilities for out-of-province health
services including academic funding premiums payable to Nova Scotia, and negotiated
settlements with unions and other employees.
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3.

Financial Instruments
Fair Value
Health PEI’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, amounts due from
the Department of Health and Wellness, accounts payable, deferred revenue, and accrued
liabilities. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of these financial instruments
approximate their fair value.
Risk Management
Health PEI is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the financial instruments on its
statement of financial position that can affect its operating performance. These risks include
credit and liquidity risk. Health PEI’s financial instruments are not subject to significant
market, interest rate, foreign exchange, or price risk.
Credit Risk
Health PEI is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable. Health PEI has a
collection policy and monitoring processes intended to mitigate potential credit losses. Health
PEI maintains provisions for potential credit losses that are assessed on an on-going basis.
The provision for doubtful accounts is disclosed in Note 4.
Liquidity Risk
Health PEI is subject to minimal liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that Health PEI will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Health PEI's approach to managing
liquidity is to evaluate current and expected liquidity requirements, and to communicate
these requirements with the Province of Prince Edward Island to ensure that provincial
funding grant payments are timed accordingly.

4.

Accounts Receivable
2015
$
Fees and revenues receivable
Less: provision for doubtful accounts
Hospital foundations
Province of Prince Edward Island
Employee advances
Other

4,028,516
(1,473,310)
2,555,206
482,778
498,822
735,236
954,255
5,226,297

2014
$
3,621,970
(1,574,628)
2,047,342
3,133,903
588,622
802,728
1,135,795
7,708,390
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

4.

Accounts Receivable (continued...)
The aging of fees and revenues receivable is as follows:

Current
61-90 days
91-180 days
Greater than 180 days

5.

2,326,611
86,009
155,743
1,460,153
4,028,516

1,683,235
94,274
702,853
1,141,608
3,621,970

2015
$

2014
$

1,885,237
1,410,728
215,462
3,511,427

1,720,636
1,303,638
411,872
3,436,146

2015
$
579,815
5,105
584,920

2014
$
702,854
17,063
719,917

2015
$

2014
$

20,672,896
23,320,207
19,706,134
17,713,943
81,413,180

21,600,315
17,834,159
17,591,732
18,030,453
75,056,659

Prepaid Expenses

Maintenance contracts
Other

7.

2014
$

Inventories Held for Use

Medical supplies
Drugs
Food and other supplies

6.

2015
$

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued vacation pay

Included in accrued liabilities are academic funding premiums payable to the Province of
Nova Scotia in the amount of $1,862,944 which are currently subject to negotiation.
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HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

8.

Employee Future Benefits
a) Retirement Allowance
Health PEI provides a retirement allowance to its permanent employees in accordance
with the applicable collective agreement. The amount paid to eligible employees at
retirement is one week’s pay per year of eligible service based on the rate of pay in effect
at the retirement date to the maximum specified in the applicable collective agreement.
These benefits are unfunded. The benefit costs and liabilities related to these allowances
are included in these financial statements.
The most recent actuarial valuation for accounting purposes prepared by the actuarial
consulting firm Morneau Shepell, disclosed an accrued benefit obligation of $45,638,200
as at April 1, 2014. The total liability is projected by Health PEI in the years between the
tri-annual valuations.
The economic assumptions used in the determination of the actuarial value of the
accrued retirement allowance were developed by reference to the expected long-term
borrowing rate of the Province of Prince Edward Island as of April 1, 2014. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuation and projection are:

Discount rate
Expected salary increase
Expected average remaining service life

2015

2014

3.80% per annum
2.75% per annum
and promotional scale
12 years

4.47% per annum
2.50% per annum
15 years

Retirement age: varying by age and service, with all employees retiring between the
ages of 55 and 66. Employees age 66 and older at the valuation date are assumed to
retire one year after the valuation date. (2014 - when age plus service equals 90, but no
earlier than 55 and no later than 63).
Assumptions used for March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2015, have been revised by Health
PEI based on a reduction in the province’s long term borrowing rate. A revised rate of
2.64 percent based on the province’s April 1, 2015, long term borrowing rate has been
applied resulting in an increase of $5,903,342 to the accrued benefit obligation and a
corresponding increase in the unamortized gains and losses.
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8.

Employee Future Benefits (continued...)
a) Retirement Allowance (continued...)
2015
$
Balance, beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest accrued on liability
Amortization of actuarial losses
Less: payments made
Balance, end of year
Gross accrued benefit obligation
Less: unamortized actuarial losses
Net accrued benefit obligation

2014
$

35,059,810
3,310,900
1,738,142
1,372,364
(3,106,146)
38,375,070

33,564,842
2,170,688
1,833,472
877,338
(3,386,530)
35,059,810

52,653,200
(14,278,130)
38,375,070

44,806,962
(9,747,152)
35,059,810

b) Accrued Sick Leave
Health PEI employees working full-time/part-time hours receive sick leave that
accumulates at a rate of 11.25 hours per month. Members of the excluded
(management) group can accumulate to a maximum of 1950 hours with the exception of
20 grandfathered members whose sick leave balances are currently higher than 1950
hours. All other employees can accumulate to a maximum of 1612.50 hours. An actuarial
estimate for this future liability has been completed and forms the basis for the estimated
liability reported in these financial statements.
The most recent actuarial valuation for accounting purposes, prepared by the actuarial
consulting firm Morneau Shepell, disclosed an accrued benefit obligation of $26,204,000
as at April 1, 2014. The total liability is projected by Health PEI in the years between the
tri-annual valuations.
The economic assumptions used in the determination of the actuarial value of accrued
sick leave benefits were developed by reference to the expected long-term borrowing
rate of the Province of Prince Edward Island as at April 1, 2014.
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8.

Employee Future Benefits (continued...)
b) Accrued Sick Leave (continued...)
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation and projections are:

Discount rate
Expected salary increase
Expected average remaining service life
Termination rates

2015

2014

3.80% per annum
3.00% per annum
15 years
0.5% terminate per year

3.21% per annum
2.50% per annum
14.63 years
None

Retirement age: age 61, or in one year if employee has attained age 61. (2014 - when
age plus service equals 90, but no earlier than 55 and no later than 63.)
Assumptions used for March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2015, have been revised by Health
PEI based on a reduction in the province’s long-term borrowing rate. A revised rate of
2.64 percent based on the province’s April 1, 2015, long-term borrowing rate has been
applied resulting in an increase of $9,554,468 to the accrued benefit obligation and a
corresponding increase in the unamortized gains and losses.
2015
$

2014
$

Balance, beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest accrued on liability
Amortization of actuarial losses
Less: payments made
Balance, end of year

18,067,093
3,190,600
1,013,995
553,894
(2,230,455)
20,595,127

17,175,486
2,885,817
586,597
72,100
(2,652,907)
18,067,093

Gross accrued benefit obligation
Less: unamortized actuarial losses
Net accrued benefit obligation

30,505,700
(9,910,573)
20,595,127

18,977,093
(910,000)
18,067,093
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8.

Employee Future Benefits (continued...)
c) Pension and Other Benefits
i)

All permanent employees of Health PEI, other than physicians, participate in the
multi-employer contributory defined benefit pension plan as defined by the Civil
Service Superannuation Act. This plan provides a pension on retirement based on
two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times the number of
years of pensionable service, for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of
the career average salary indexed with cost-of-living adjustments, for service after
2013. Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December 31, 2016.
The Plan is administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. Additional
information on the pension plan as defined in the Civil Service Superannuation Act
can be found in the notes to the Public Accounts of the Province of Prince Edward
Island. The province is responsible for any unfunded liabilities of the Plan. A total of
$17,183,892 (2014 - $17,011,003) was contributed towards the Civil Service
Superannuation Plan as the employer share of contributions.

ii) Salaried physicians maintain their own personal RRSP accounts to which Health PEI
makes contributions in accordance with the Master Agreement between the Medical
Society of Prince Edward Island and the Province of Prince Edward Island. Health
PEI’s contributions are equivalent to 9 per cent of the physician’s base salary and
shall not exceed 50 per cent of the maximum permissible contribution provided for in
the Income Tax Act. Health PEI’s liability is limited to its required contributions in
accordance with the agreement. A total of $945,945 (2014 - $978,291) was
contributed towards salaried physicians’ personal RRSP accounts.
iii) The Public Sector Group Insurance Plan provides life insurance, long-term disability,
and health and dental benefits to eligible employees of Health PEI. The Plan is
administered by a multi-employer, multi-union Board of Trustees who are responsible
for any unfunded liabilities of the plan. The cost of insured benefits reflected in these
financial statements are the employer’s portion of the insurance premiums owed for
employee coverage during the period.
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9.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenues set aside for specific purposes as required either by legislation,
regulation, or agreement as at March 31, 2015:

Health promotion projects
Conference hosting revenues
Staff education

10.

Balance,
beginning
of year
$

Receipts
during
year
$

Transferred
to
revenue
$

Balance,
end of
year
$

24,464
19,208
13,831
57,503

278,940
8,660
287,600

24,464
19,208
13,831
57,503

278,940
8,660
287,600

Contingent Liabilities
Health PEI is subject to legal actions arising in the normal course of business. At
March 31, 2015, there were a number of outstanding legal claims against Health PEI. Costs
and damages, if any, related to these outstanding claims are the responsibility of the Prince
Edward Island Self-Insurance and Risk Management Fund. The Fund provides general
liability, errors and omissions, primary property, crime, and automobile liability insurance.
The Fund is administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island and the province is
responsible for any liabilities of the Fund.

11.

Tangible Capital Assets
Equipment
and
Vehicles
$

Computer
hardware
and
_software
$

Land
improve__ments
$

Cost
Opening balance 1,877,240 263,378,687
Additions
4,866,256
Disposals
Closing balance 1,877,240 268,244,943

106,192,432
3,678,715
(895,968)
108,975,179

54,351,953
1,455,851
55,807,804

1,125,499
23,920
1,149,419

5,305,494 432,231,305
490,042 10,514,784
(895,968)
5,795,536 441,850,121

409,315,151
23,012,154
(96,000)
432,231,305

Accumulated
Amortization
Opening balance
- 68,347,187
Disposals
Amortization
5,463,488
Closing balance
- 73,810,675
Net book value 1,877,240 194,434,268

89,534,549
(895,968)
6,061,042
94,699,623
14,275,556

24,063,085
3,702,720
27,765,805
28,041,999

760,391
81,700
842,091
307,328

2,031,869 184,737,081
(895,968)
554,930 15,863,880
2,586,799 199,704,993
3,208,737 242,145,128

168,963,729
(96,000)
15,869,352
184,737,081
247,494,224

Land
$

Buildings
$

Buildings
major
improve__ ments
$

2015
Total
$

2014
Total
$
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11.

Tangible Capital Assets (continued...)
Cost at March 31, 2015 includes assets under construction as follows:

Queen Elizabeth Hospital redevelopment
Palliative Care Centre
Other buildings - major improvements
Other
Computer software

12.

2015
$

2014
$

1,363
898,837
900,200

6,863,123
634,945
286,260
7,784,328

Contractual Obligations

Private nursing home
subsidies
Ambulance services
IT support services
(Cerner)
PEI Medical Society
Maintenance contracts
Education funds
Facility rental/overhead
Other
Contractual obligations
for operating expenses

2016
$

2017
$

2018
$

2019
$

2020
$

Thereafter
$

20,074,125
8,074,733

8,074,733

8,074,733

-

-

-

2,739,439
1,493,992
1,445,000
608,016
3,116,550

2,739,439
1,104,674
1,445,000
310,940
2,907,955

2,739,439
970,818
1,150,000
265,079
2,395,354

2,739,439
887,786
800,000
269,744
1,100,453

415,356
165,098
430,472

5,705,499

37,551,855 16,582,741

15,595,423

5,797,422

1,010,926

5,705,499

-

Health PEI has $570,343 in outstanding contractual commitments for capital projects which
commenced on or before March 31, 2015, and are still incomplete.

126

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

HEALTH PEI
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

13.

Related Party Transactions
Health PEI had the following transactions with the Province of Prince Edward Island and
other government controlled organizations:
2015
2014
$
$
Transfers from the Province of Prince Edward Island:
Operating grant - Department of Health and Wellness
577,262,681 565,701,700
Capital grant - Department of Health and Wellness
7,124,300
18,114,364
Salary recoveries
947,398
1,203,692
PEI Lotteries Commission
223,996
243,656
693,288
Other sales and expenses
507,678
586,056,053 585,956,700
Transfers to the Province of Prince Edward Island:
Salary reimbursements
Insurance premiums
Public Service Commission
Other expenses

1,248,292
1,777,398
566,300
1,481,731
5,073,721

2,324,731
1,695,781
566,300
1,768,966
6,355,778

Included within the accounts receivable balance at year-end are $498,822 (2014 - $588,622)
of transfers from the Province of Prince Edward Island. Included within the accounts payable
balance at year-end are $896,188 (2014 - $1,467,138) of transfers to the Province of Prince
Edward Island.
The Province of Prince Edward Island provides the use of several facilities and certain
maintenance services for some of these facilities at no cost to Health PEI. Health PEI is
responsible for most operational and maintenance costs related to these facilities.
14.

Fees - Patient and Client

Continuing Care resident fees
Hospital medical services:
Non-residents
Uninsured hospital services - workers compensation
Other uninsured hospital services
Hospital preferred room accommodations
Other

2015
$

2014
$

12,002,713

11,939,123

4,071,993
2,034,180
1,266,325
390,140
34,390
19,799,741

4,070,140
2,093,361
1,597,199
395,967
29,217
20,125,007
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15.

Annual Deficit
Throughout the fiscal year, Health PEI regularly communicates with the Department of
Health and Wellness and the Department of Finance on the expected operational results for
the year and action plans developed to address potential deficits.
The annual deficit for the year ended March 31, 2015 is comprised of:

Revenues
Expenses
Deficit

Operational
$
600,799,242
600,799,242
-

Capital
$
10,514,784
15,863,880
(5,349,096)

2015
$
611,314,026
616,663,122
(5,349,096)

A special warrant is not required for capital as the tangible capital asset additions, as
described in Note 11, are less than the approved capital budget. Amortization expenses are
budgeted by the province as described in Note 19.
16.

Designated Assets
At March 31, 2015, the balance of funds held as designated assets was $891,715 (2014 $672,954). Designated assets consist of funds received as donations by a health facility or
program that are restricted for the purchase of equipment, supplies, and/or other needs of
the specific facility or program. These amounts are not included in the statement of financial
position.

17.

Trusts Under Administration
At March 31, 2015, the balance of funds held in trust for residents of facilities in Continuing
Care was $750,830 (2014 - $691,644). These trusts consist of a monthly comfort allowance
provided to Continuing Care residents who qualify for subsidization of resident fees. These
amounts are not included in the statement of financial position.

18.

Comparative Figures
Certain 2014 comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the 2015 financial
statement presentation.
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19.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from
the estimates approved by the Legislative Assembly of the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The budget for amortization of tangible capital assets remains with the Province of Prince
Edward Island. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Province budgeted
$15,763,300 for amortization of Health PEI’s tangible capital assets.
Subsequent to the tabling of the 2014 P.E.I. Estimates of Revenue and Expenditures, Health
PEI reallocated certain budget amounts among its divisions. The following table shows the
reallocation of the original approved budget.
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19.

Budgeted Figures (continued...)
Original
Approved
Budget
$

Adjustments
Between
Divisions
$

Budget Statement of
Operation
$

581,134,300

-

581,134,300

20,212,300

439,500

20,651,800

1,398,400

(333,500)

1,064,900

Revenues
Grants - Dept. of Health and Wellness
Fees - patient and client
Food services
Federal revenues

463,400

53,800

517,200

Sales

1,209,000

(313,400)

895,600

Other
Operational Revenues
Capital grants - Department of Health
and Wellness

2,101,800

(818,600)

1,283,200

606,519,200

(972,200)

605,547,000

Other capital contributions
Capital Revenues

11,356,600

-

11,356,600

4,026,500

-

4,026,500

15,383,100

-

15,383,100

621,902,300

(972,200)

620,930,100

Expenses
Community Hospitals

21,817,300

(198,900)

21,618,400

162,308,700

398,700

162,707,400

Addiction Services

11,570,300

223,600

11,793,900

Acute Mental Health

17,924,700

(138,900)

17,785,800

Acute Care

Community Mental Health

8,276,700

(32,800)

8,243,900

Continuing Care

62,117,900

(75,900)

62,042,000

Private Nursing Home Subsidies

21,930,200

(213,700)

21,716,500

Public and Dental Health

10,332,800

(36,600)

10,296,200

Provincial Pharmacare Programs

36,352,500

(996,600)

35,355,900

Home Care and Support

15,606,700

(353,600)

15,253,100

Provincial Laboratory and Diagnostic
Imaging

28,976,800

(64,600)

28,912,200

Provincial Hospital Pharmacies

5,599,400

241,900

5,841,300

Emergency Health Services

15,210,200

(39,100)

15,171,100

Corporate and Support Services

22,942,300

(268,100)

22,674,200

Medical Programs - In Province

107,098,600

82,900

107,181,500

Medical Programs - Out of Province

45,600,300

681,800

46,282,100

Primary Care

12,853,800

(182,300)

12,671,500

606,519,200

(972,200)

605,547,000

Annual Surplus

15,383,100

-

15,383,100
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20.

Expenses by Type
The following is a summary of expenses by type:

Compensation
$

Supplies
$

Sundry*
$

Equipment
$

Contracted
Out
Services
$

Building
and
Grounds
$

2015
Total
$

Community
Hospitals

17,124,358

3,550,619

435,927

251,158

394,483

364,537

22,121,082

Acute Care

116,120,908

36,248,725

2,610,001

5,029,525

1,822,669

1,461,603

163,293,431

9,242,150

700,784

489,104

88,766

150,827

108,168

10,779,799

15,783,067

1,488,390

191,821

225,696

202,429

161,603

18,053,006

Addiction
Services
Acute Mental
Health
Community
Mental Health

7,281,195

47,274

232,390

20,016

69,596

-

7,650,471

Continuing Care

55,091,691

6,136,044

822,109

542,858

266,378

1,116,343

63,975,423

Private Nursing
Home Subsidies

-

-

20,926,847

-

-

-

20,926,847

Public and
Dental Health

8,602,128

341,617

388,276

19,593

654,294

29,823

10,035,731

Provincial Pharmacare
Programs

1,196,626

63,481

28,523,627

2,038

1,255,679

-

31,041,451

Home Care and
Support

13,623,165

397,162

804,255

34,455

219,315

52,797

15,131,149

Provincial
Laboratory and
Diagnostic Imaging

17,818,344

10,351,928

377,768

182,404

888,405

7,257

29,626,106

Provincial Hospital
Pharmacies

5,230,148

22,957

61,902

4,302

-

20,186

5,339,495

Emergency Health
Services

322,568

9,577

12,740,008

-

1,535,952

-

14,608,105

Corporate and
Support Services

14,537,365

2,109,484

3,224,936

1,092,274

653,387

13,374

21,630,820

Medical Programs In Province

98,476,515

88,700

3,595,069

3,685

6,443,059

46

108,607,074

Medical Programs Out of Province
Primary Care

426,496

1,571

93,285

607

45,482,299

-

46,004,258

10,012,086
390,888,810

453,389
62,011,702

676,058
76,193,383

34,208
7,531,585

626,864
60,665,636

172,389
3,508,126

11,974,994
600,799,242

*Sundry expenses are defined by the Management Information System Standards of the Canadian Institute for Health
Information and consists of expenses that cannot be otherwise classified as Compensation, Supplies, Equipment,
Contracted Out Services, or Buildings and Grounds. Sundry expenses includes operating grants to non government
organizations, public drug program subsidies, and grants established under union collective agreements.
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Grant Thornton LLP
Suite 710
98 Fitzroy Street, PO Box 187
Charlottetown, PE
C1A 7K4
T +1 902 892 6547
F +1 902 566 5358
www.GrantThornton.ca

To the Board of Directors of
Island Waste Management Corporation
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Island Waste Management
Corporation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, the
consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Corporation’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the

Audit • Tax • Advisory
Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Island Waste Management Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and its
financial performance and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 15, 2015

Audit • Tax • Advisory
Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Chartered Accountants
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets
Year ended March 31
Revenues
Household user fees (Page 19)
Disposal fees (Page 19)
Tires
Decommissioning and monitoring
Environmental Industrial Services Inc. (Page 23)
Other

2015

$

Expenditures
Administration (Page 20)
Advertising, education and public relations (Page 20)
Operational costs
Residential collection (Page 20)
Disposal (Pages 21-22)
Tire collection and disposal (Page 22)
Decommissioning and monitoring
Interest on long term debt
Depreciation
Environmental Industrial Services Inc. (Page 23)
Other

13,740,596
3,954,392
812,029
21,374
871,495
421,204

2014

$

13,611,047
3,825,759
760,825
21,127
823,093
416,805

19,821,090

19,458,656

1,461,384
134,215

1,411,063
109,744

5,510,078
6,886,899
812,029
21,374
1,372,185
2,450,225
871,495
102,599

5,297,580
6,820,795
760,826
21,134
1,435,303
2,538,182
823,093
113,996

19,622,483

19,331,716

Excess of revenues over expenditures

$

198,607

$

126,940

Net assets, beginning of year

$

1,165,456

$

1,038,516

Excess of revenues over expenditures
Net assets, end of year

198,607
$

1,364,063

126,940
$

1,165,456

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated statement of financial position
March 31
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Cashable guaranteed income certificates
Receivables (Note 3)
Prepaids

Performance deposits
Property and equipment (Note 4)

Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals
Current portion of long term debt (Note 5)
Debt due on demand (Note 5)
Unearned revenue

Contractor deposits
Deferred government assistance (Note 2)
Long term debt (Note 5)
Asset retirement obligation (Note 6)

Net assets

2015

2014

$ 1,503,593
4,000,000
3,438,103
99,113
9,040,809

$ 3,477,615
2,500,000
1,251,175
100,006
7,328,796

199,404
19,628,399

199,404
19,410,017

$ 28,868,612

$ 26,938,217

$ 3,665,349
1,093,262
168,111
177,144
5,103,866

$ 1,387,830
1,026,006
168,111
114,174
2,696,121

199,000
166,313
19,701,444
2,333,926
27,504,549

199,000
180,747
20,794,706
1,902,187
25,772,761

1,364,063

1,165,456

$ 28,868,612

$ 26,938,217

Commitments (Note 7)

On behalf of the Board

Director

Director

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended March 31

2015

2014

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Operating
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees
Interest paid
Interest received

$

19,186,526
(11,873,395)
(3,175,087)
(1,376,900)
110,287

$

2,871,431
Financing
Government assistance received
Repayment of long term debt

Investing
Increase in performance deposits
Purchase of guaranteed income certificates
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchase of property and equipment

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

19,121,192
(12,316,156)
(2,934,730)
(1,442,787)
80,327
2,507,846

(1,026,006)

55,822
(962,889)

(1,026,006)

(907,067)

(1,500,000)
10,723
(2,330,170)

1,328
(2,500,000)
8,841
(995,826)

(3,819,447)

(3,485,657)

(1,974,022)

(1,884,878)

3,477,615

5,362,493

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year
End of year

$

1,503,593

$

3,477,615

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
March 31, 2015
1.

Nature of operations

The corporation is a Prince Edward Island crown corporation established under the provisions
of the Environmental Protection Act and therefore is exempt from income taxes under
paragraph 149(1)(d) of the Canadian Income Tax Act. The corporation’s objective is to
implement and manage a province-wide waste management system. This includes the
collection and disposal of solid waste generated in Prince Edward Island.
Environmental Industrial Services Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Waste
Management Corporation. The corporation’s objective is to operate water and wastewater
facilities.
The Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary are located at 110 Watts Avenue,
Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island.
The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on June 15, 2015.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation and adoption of IFRS
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The financial statements of the Island Waste Management Corporation comply, in all material
respects, with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in
effect as at March 31, 2015.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statement are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied, except where departure from IFRS
is explicitly permitted under the transitional provisions for first time application of IFRS or
another IFRS.
Basis of measurement
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The Corporation’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Corporation operates, which is also the
presentation currency of the financial statements.

6
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Principals of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the corporation and its whollyowned subsidiary, Environmental Industrial Services Inc. Significant intercompany transactions
are eliminated upon consolidation.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks, net of bank
overdrafts, and highly liquid temporary money market instruments with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank borrowings are considered to be financing activities.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property plant and
equipment are added to the cost of the assets until they are substantially ready for their
intended use.
Revenue recognition
Household user fees are based on an annual assessment applied to the household’s
property tax assessment. Revenue is recognized evenly on a monthly basis based on the
annual assessment rate.
Disposal revenues are recognized when the waste has been delivered to the drop off
facilities.
Tire revenues are recognized when the tires have been disposed of at disposal sites.
Revenues and earnings from utility user fees and excess expenditure recoveries are recorded
when collection is reasonably assured and all other significant conditions of service are met.
Deferred government assistance
Government grants relating to the acquisition of assets and equipment purchased by
Environmental Industrial Services Inc. are recorded as deferred credits. This account is being
amortized on the same basis as the related assets are being depreciated and is reflected as a
reduction in current depreciation expense.

7

182

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

Island Waste Management Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
March 31, 2015
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial Instruments
The Corporation designates its financial assets as loans and receivables. Financial assets are
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Financial assets designated as loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These
assets are comprised of accounts receivable and performance deposits. These are initially
measured at fair value and then at amortized cost less impairment. When impaired, the
carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly.
Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost. These liabilities included accounts payable and accrued liabilities, long term
debt, debt due on demand and contractor deposits.
Accounting estimates and measurement uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of judgements,
assumptions, and estimates as at the date of the financial statements that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented.
Measurement uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized amount and
another reasonable amount. Some accounting measurements require management’s best
estimate, based on assumptions as at the financial statement date, that reflect the most
probable set of economic conditions and planned courses of action.
Asset retirement obligations, employee future benefits, allowance for doubtful accounts and
depreciation are the most significant items that are based on accounting estimates. Actual
results could differ from the estimates made by management in these financial statements, and
these differences, which may be material, could require adjustment in subsequent reporting
periods. See Note 6 for additional details on the asset retirement obligation.
Provisions
Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of
past events where it is probable that an outflow or resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows.
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Corporation from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its
obligations under the contract.

8
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Specific accounting policies
To facilitate a better understanding of the Corporation’s financial statements, significant
accounting policies are disclosed in the notes, where applicable, of the related accounting
topics. A listing of these notes is as follows:
Note

Topic

Page

4

Property and equipment

10

6

Asset retirement obligation

12

9

Employee future benefits

16

Future Accounting Standards and Reporting Changes
In December 2013, the IASB issued narrow scope amendments to a total of nine standards
as part of its annual improvement process. Amendments were made to clarify items
including the measurement of short term receivables and payables under IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement, definition of related party in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures and
other amendments. Most amendments will apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2014. The Corporation intends to adopt these amendments in its financial
statements for the annual period beginning April 1, 2015. The extent of the impact of
adoption of the amendments has not yet been determined.
The IASB is currently working on revisions to IAS 17 (Leases), and IAS 18 (Revenues). At
the current time, the impact of proposed revisions is not determinable.

9
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3.

Receivables

Trade
Sales tax, net

2015
$

986,786
2,451,317

$ 3,438,103

4.

2014
$

970,807
280,368

$ 1,251,175

Property and equipment

Accounting policy
Property and equipment are reported at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of property and equipment includes expenditures that are directly attributable
to their acquisition or construction, including borrowing costs, and any other cost directly
attributable to the installation and decommissioning of the asset. Property and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated lives on the diminishing balance basis. When parts of an item
of property and equipment have materially different useful lives or patterns of benefit
consumption, they are accounted for separately (i.e., as major components). The rates used
are as follows:
Buildings
20 yrs,
Motor vehicles
5 yrs,
Computer equipment
5 yrs,
Computer software
5 yrs,
Leasehold improvements
5 yrs,
Site equipment
5 and 10 yrs,
Leachate facility
15, 25 and 30 yrs,
Compost facility
10, 15, 20 and 25 yrs,
Waste Watch drop-off centers
15 yrs,
Waste and compost carts
10 and 20 yrs,
Waste water infrastructure
40 yrs,

straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line
straight line

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at
least annually.
IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, requires an entity to test assets for impairment if indications of
impairment exist. Based on an analysis of cash flows, the Corporation has established that
the appropriate cash generating unit for impairment review is the entire entity. As the
Corporation has the power to increase disposal and sewer rates to ensure full funding into
the foreseeable future, impairment at the entity level is remote. As at March 31, 2015,
management conducted an impairment review at the entity level, which confirmed that there
were no significant indicators of impairment which would have a material impact on the
Corporation’s ability to generate future economic benefits from its operating non-financial
assets.

10

$

826,420

483,770

(109,072)
(30,508)
(109,949)

591,530
2,189
593,719

454,084

(109,949)
(29,686)
(139,635)

593,719
593,719

Buildings

1,569,045

(5,924,230)
(686,148)
(6,610,378)

8,179,423

8,118,193
61,230

3,032,574

(6,610,378)
(626,890)
(7,237,268)

8,179,423
2,090,419
10,269,842

Landfill
cells
21,180,532
21,180,532

Compost
facility
2,237,037
27,440
2,264,477

WasteWatch
drop-off
6,455,293
191,923
(163,301)
6,483,915

Waste
carts

21,180,532
21,180,532

8,899,170

2,222,389
14,648
2,237,037

925,743

6,193,126
426,381
(164,214)
6,455,293

2,967,834

1,288,870

9,955,319

1,048,353

3,118,273

(298,224) (10,169,067) (1,040,037) (3,135,009)
99,884
(69,173) (1,056,146)
(148,647)
(301,895)
(367,397) (11,225,213) (1,188,684) (3,337,020)

1,656,267
1,656,267

1,219,697

(367,397) (11,225,213) (1,188,684) (3,337,020)
130,320
(69,173) (1,056,149)
(150,050)
(309,381)
(436,570) (12,281,362) (1,338,734) (3,516,081)

1,656,267
1,656,267

Leachate
facility

693,489

(791,074)
(174,948)
(800,352)

1,294,705
199,136
1,493,841

735,710

(800,352)
140,652
(137,296)
(796,996)

1,493,841
186,750
(147,885)
1,532,706

Site
equipment

351,744

776,233

4,361

66,836

20,236

(490,000) (326,261)
82,262
11,341
(68,263) (11,796)
(476,001) (328,716)

550,289 436,140
79,672
22,489
(87,124) (109,677)
542,837 348,952

247,299

(476,001) (328,716)
(52,933) (18,667)
(528,934) (347,383)

348,952
2,792

Office
equip

542,837
233,396

Motor
vehicles

339,406

(33,652)
(27,111)
(60,763)

377,979
22,190
400,169

311,828

(60,763)
(27,578)
(88,341)

400,169
400,169

EISI
equip

Total

11

$ 19,410,017

(24,506,955)
193,487
(2,574,635)
(24,504,473)

$ 43,125,570
1,149,935
(361,015)
43,914,490

$ 19,628,399

(24,504,473)
270,972
(2,478,803)
(26,711,304)

$ 43,914,490
2,736,399
(311,186)
$ 46,339,703

As of the end of the year, cell number six at the East Prince Waste Management Facility was under construction and was not available for use. The addition of $1,681,148 is included in
landfill cell additions above and has not been depreciated as of yearend.

Carrying amount

-

504,420
322,000
826,420

Gross carrying
Balance Apr 1, 2013
$
Additions
Dispositions
Balance Mar 31, 2014

Depreciation and
Impairment
Balance Apr 1, 2013
Disposals
Depreciation
Balance Mar 31, 2014

830,099

-

$

Carrying amount

Depreciation and
Impairment
Balance Apr 1, 2014
Disposals
Depreciation
Balance Mar 31, 2015

826,420
3,679
830,099

Land

Property and equipment (cont’d)

Gross carrying
Balance Apr 1, 2014
$
Additions
Dispositions
Balance Mar 31, 2015

4.

March 31, 2015
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
March 31, 2015
5.

Long term debt

6.40% debenture amortized to and maturing
in December 2027, payable in quarterly
instalments of principal and interest of $599,547.
The debenture is unconditionally secured by the
Province of Prince Edward Island.

2015

$

Prime plus 3% demand loan advanced to
Environmental Industrial Services Inc. As security
for the loan, the borrower has provided a
promissory note for the full amount of the loan.
The loan will not be outstanding for a period a
period greater than 120 months.
Less: current portion
debt due on demand
$

2014

20,794,706 $

21,820,712

168,111
20,962,817
1,093,262
168,111

168,111
21,988,823
1,026,006
168,111

19,701,444 $

20,794,706

Based on normal repayment terms, annual principal repayments in each of the next five years
are due as follows: 2016 - $1,093,261; 2017 - $1,164,925; 2018 - $1,241,287;
2019 - $1,322,653; 2020 - $1,409,354 and beyond 2020 - $14,731,337.

6.

Asset retirement obligation

Accounting policy
An asset retirement obligation is recognized as a liability for obligations associated with the
closure of the Corporation landfill site and returning such land to its original condition as set
by standards of environmental regulations.
Asset retirement obligations are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of the
statement of financial position. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a risk free rate. The expected cash flows reflect current market assessments
and the risks specific to the liability.
The obligation is reviewed regularly by the Corporation’s management based on current
regulations, cost, technologies and industry standards. The discounted obligation is initially
capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the related landfill and a corresponding liability is
recognized. The increase in the landfill site asset is depreciated over the estimated life of the
corresponding landfill while the liability is accreted as finance expense in earnings, until
settled or sold. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the obligation is adjusted at the end of
each period to reflect the passage of time, changes in the estimated future cash flows
underlying the obligation and changes in the risk free rate. Estimated future cash flows are
based on estimated current costs adjusted to the future expected closure date by applying an
estimate of inflation. The increase in the obligation due to the passage of time is recognized
as finance expenses whereas increases and/or decreases due to changes in the estimated
12
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6.

Asset retirement obligation (cont’d)

future cash flows or changes in the risk free rate are capitalized. Actual costs incurred upon
settlement of the obligation are charged against the obligation to the extent the obligation
was established.
Any reduction on the obligation, and, therefore, any deduction from the asset to which it
relates, may not exceed the carrying amount of that asset. If it does, any excess over the
carrying value is taken immediately to profit or loss.
If the change in estimate results in an increase in the obligation, and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Corporation considers whether this is an indication of
impairment of the asset as a whole, and if so, tests for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.
If the revised assets net of obligation exceeds the recoverable value, that portion of the
increase is charged directly to expenses.
The following presents the reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying
amount of the obligation:
2015
2014
Asset retirement obligation, beginning of year
Liabilities incurred
Accretion expense

$ 1,902,187
406,233
25,506

$ 1,802,741
55,757
43,689

Asset retirement obligation, end of year

$ 2,333,926

$ 1,902,187

The key assumptions, on which the carrying amount of the obligation is based, include a risk
free rate of 1.36% (2014 – 2.46%) and inflation rate of 2%. The total undiscounted amount of
the estimated cash flows required to settle the remaining obligation is $4,173,000 (2014 $4,173,000). The expected timing of payment of the cash flow required for settling the
obligation is 8 years.

7.

Commitments

The Corporation conducts a portion of its operations, the compost facility, pursuant to an
operating agreement with a third party operator. Effective April 1, 2014, the agreement provides
for the payment by the Corporation to the operator of the facility a minimum annual fee plus an
excess tonnage fee. The minimum annual fee commitment under the operating agreement is
as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 2,026,281
$ 2,066,807
$ 2,108,143
$ 2,150,306
$ 2,193,312

13
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7.

Commitments (cont’d)
2021
2022
2023
2024

$ 2,237,178
$ 2,281,921
$ 2,327,560
$ 2,374,110

The Corporation has entered into various agreements for the collection of recyclables, waste
and compost materials. Minimum payments for the contracts currently in place are as follows:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 4,509,932
$ 4,655,404
$ 4,704,569
$ 3,980.991
$ 2,021,452

The Corporation has entered into a long term lease agreement for office space. Annual lease
payments are as follows:
2016

$ 12,600

The Corporation has entered into a waste processing agreement dated August 8, 1995 to
supply PEI Energy Systems with a minimum annual guaranteed amount of 30,617 metric
tonnes of waste. The 30 year agreement, expiring in August 2025, provides for the payment by
the Corporation of a $45 per metric tonne quarterly fee adjusted for consumer price index
fluctuations. Any shortage is the responsibility of the Corporation. Current annual costs for the
waste processing are estimated at $2,041,000 (2014 - $2,017,000).
The corporation has entered into an agreement to construct cell number six at the East Prince
Waste Management Facility. The contract to construct the cell is for $5.6M of which $1,681,148
has been incurred up to March 31, 2015.

8.

Financial risk management

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and long term debt.
Financial risk factors
The following sections describe the Corporation’s financial risk exposure and related mitigation
strategies:
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Corporation is subject to credit risk
through trade receivables. The Corporation mitigates credit risk associated with its trade
receivables through establishing credit approval limits and a regular monitoring process. The
Corporation generally considers the credit quality of its financial assets that are neither past
due or impaired to be solid. Credit risk is mitigated due to the large number of customers.
Allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Corporation
updates its estimates of allowances for doubtful accounts based on customer history.
14
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8.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Household user fees are collected by the Province of Prince Edward Island through its
provincial tax system.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the potential for financial loss arising from changes in interest rates.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Corporation to interest rate risk include
financial liabilities with floating interest rates. The Corporation currently has no financial
instruments which are exposed to interest rate risk due to floating rates but is exposed to risk
associated with fixed term debt that does not mature until 2027.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation may not have cash available to satisfy financial
liabilities as they come due. The Corporation prepares an annual cash flow budget which it
monitors on a monthly basis to ensure that it has sufficient available funds to meet current
and foreseeable future financial requirements.
Market risk
The Corporation is subject to market risk related to the price of diesel fuel. The Corporation
has entered into various agreements for the collection of recyclables, waste and compost
materials. These contracts include a provision that requires the corporation to pay an annual
fuel adjustment based on the annual average price of diesel fuel as compared to the base
rate per the contract. For the year end March 31, 2015, had the average price of diesel fuel
increased or decreased by 10% during the year, the earnings of the corporation would have
increased or decreased by approximately $59,000 (2014 - $68,000). The Corporation
currently has no strategy in place to mitigate this risk. Management does monitor the current
price of fuel on a regular basis.
Fair values
The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to the short term maturity of these instruments
or terms of the instrument. The carrying amount for the long term debt approximated fair
value as the interest rate was reflective of rates available for similar debt.
IFRS 7, “Financial Instruments – Disclosures”, prescribes the following three-level fair value
hierarchy for disclosure purposes based on the transparency of the inputs used to measure
the fair values of the asset and liabilities:
a) Level 1 – quoted price (unadjusted) of identical instruments in active markets that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.
b) Level 2 – inputs are quoted prices of similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, inputs other
than quoted prices used in a valuation model that are observable for that instrument,
and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.
c) Level 3 – one or more significant inputs used in a valuation technique are
unobservable for the instruments.

15
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8.

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market
data whenever available. The classification of a financial instrument in the hierarchy is based
upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the measurement of fair value
The Corporation’s financial instruments measured at fair value are cash and cash equivalents
and are recorded based on level 1 measurement.

9.

Employee future benefits

Short term benefits
The Corporation’s short term benefits for qualified active employees include base salary,
compensated absences, group life insurance, dental and medical coverage.
Pension plan
The permanent employees of the Corporation participate in the mutli-employer contributory
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island under the
Civil Service Superannuation Act. The Civil Service Superannuation Fund provides pensions
to employees of the Provincial Government and certain crown corporations and agencies
based on the length of service and average salary. Since sufficient information is not readily
available to account for the Corporation’s participation in the plan using defined benefit
pension plan accounting, these financial statements have been prepared using accounting
rules for defined contribution pension plans. The current year expense for this pension plan is
$161,000 (2014 - $154,000).
At March 31, 2014, the Civil Service Superannuation Fund reported that the pension plan was
100% funded.
Retirement pay benefits
The Corporations currently provides a retirement pay benefit equal to one weeks pay for each
year of service, subject to a maximum benefit equal to 26 weeks pay. The retirement pay
benefit is payable upon retirement. Employees qualify at retirement if they have accrued 10
years of service, attained age 55 and are eligible to receive a pension from the Civil Service
Superannuation Fund. Retirement pay benefits are accrued on an annual basis based on
eligibility and are reflected in the accounts payable at year end.
Employee benefits risks
The Corporation’s defined benefit plan is indirectly exposed to economic risks with respect to
measurement risk from assumptions based on economic factors, such as discount rates
affected by volatile bond markets. Benefit obligations are exposed to uncertainty of future
economic conditions, primarily inflation risk due to uncertainty of the timing of the payments.
Demographic factors affect current and future benefit costs with respect to the amount and
time horizon of expected payments due to such factors as workforce average age and
earnings levels, attrition and retirement rates.

16

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

191

Island Waste Management Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
March 31, 2015
9.

Employee future benefits (cont.)

The Corporation is also exposed to funding risk in the multi employer plans arising from
legislative changes affecting eligibility for and amount of pension and related benefits and
performance of plan assets affected by investment policies set by the government. Because
these plans are governed by legislation rather than contract, there is little flexibility for
participants with respect to withdrawal from the plan, plan wind up or amendments, and
funding requirements.

10. Related party transactions
Included in these financial statements are transactions with various Prince Edward Island crown
corporations, departments, agencies, and boards related to the Corporation by virtue of common
influence by the Government of Prince Edward Island. Routine operating transactions in the
ordinary course of business with related parties are settled at prevailing market prices under
normal trade terms.
The table below presents total compensation of the key management personnel, which
includes the Board of Directors and senior executive management. Board of Director
honorariums are paid based on standards set and approved by the Treasury Board.
2015
Short term employee benefits
Post employment benefits

$
$

199,631
24,655
224,286

2014
$
$

200,583
23,450
224,033

11. Rate regulation
The Corporation is subject to rate regulation on the household user fees and disposal fees
charged to residents of Prince Edward Island under the Island Regulatory Appeals
Commission Act. The purpose of this Act, which is administered by the Island Regulatory and
Appeal Commission (IRAC), is to regulate the rate the Corporation may charge for collection
and disposal of solid waste within Prince Edward Island and to ensure at all times a just and
reasonable price for this service. Changes in household user fees and disposal fees can only
be implemented with the approval of IRAC.

12. Capital management
The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Corporation’s ability to
support the normal operating requirements on an ongoing basis, support any capital
expenditures that may be required in the normal operations of the Corporation and generate
sufficient cash flow to manage its existing debt.
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
March 31, 2015
12. Capital management (cont.)
The Corporation’s capital consists of cash and cash equivalents, long term debt and net assets.
The Corporation’s primary uses of these funds are to finance capital expenditures, repay debt
obligations and fund normal operations. In order to facilitate the management of its capital
requirements, the Corporation prepares annual operating budgets and actual to budget
forecasts on a quarterly basis. To maintain or obtain additional capital, the Corporation may
issue new debt, reduce operating costs, utilize the central banking credit agreement or make a
request to IRAC to increase household user and disposal fees.
The Corporation is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and there have been
no changes with respect to the overall capital risk management strategy during the year.

13. Other matters
Costs associated with the closure and decommissioning of provincial dump sites are the
responsibility of the Province of Prince Edward Island.

18

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

193

Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated schedule of revenues
Year ended March 31

2015

2014

Household user fees
Billed by Island Waste Management Corporation
Billed through property taxes
Cart revenues
Refunds and adjustments

$

71,505
13,751,322
1,275
(83,506)

$

106,710
13,582,930
450
(79,043)

$

13,740,596

$

13,611,047

Disposal fees
East Prince Waste Management facility
Energy from Waste
Central Compost facility
Brockton
Dingwells Mills
Murray River
New London
Other

$ 2,240,025
1,075,767
351,698
89,214
67,520
50,745
79,708
(285)

$ 2,094,914
1,082,068
374,793
80,148
67,777
48,223
74,875
2,961

$ 3,954,392

$ 3,825,759
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated schedule of expenditures
Year ended March 31

2015

2014

Administration
Dues and memberships
Insurance
Interest and bank charges
Miscellaneous
Office equipment
Office supplies
Professional fees
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits
Supplies
Telephone
Travel
Utilities

$

2,486
23,541
4,715
5,144
1,461
22,472
21,508
16,800
16,068
1,244,356
5,250
37,473
34,269
25,841

$ 1,461,384

$

2,730
22,744
7,484
10,200
1,197
21,344
22,371
16,800
21,057
1,188,287
397
38,958
35,227
22,267

$ 1,411,063

Advertising, education and public relations
Advertising
Education
Public relations
Wages and benefits

$

1,791
63,196
9,294
59,934

$

$ 134,215

55,290
6,861
47,593

$ 109,744

Residential collection
Cart purchases and write-offs
Collection contracts
Compost and waste
Recyclables
Operations support technicians
Wages and benefits
Vehicle and supplies

$

52,706

$

72,801

3,781,014
1,242,926

3,639,302
1,232,846

384,738
48,694

300,300
52,331

$ 5,510,078

$ 5,297,580
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated schedule of expenditures
Year ended March 31

2015

2014

Disposal
East Prince Waste Management facility
Accretion
Equipment rental
Gas and oil
Household hazardous waste
Leachate disposal
Office and miscellaneous
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries, wages, and benefits
Security
Supplies and materials
Telephone
Travel and conferences
Utilities

$

25,510
15,224
74,568
16,250
85,135
14,856
163,007
446,224
6,411
91,167
3,269
8,122
41,029

$

43,690
9,650
78,431
18,027
48,974
17,914
138,746
420,600
12,468
99,765
3,133
7,495
35,799

$

990,772

$

934,692

$

3,067
1,534

$

3,053
1,460

$

4,601

$

4,513

$

184,312
2,107,128
5,973
6,490
110,491

$

204,542
2,145,637
5,578
4,061
99,517

Queens County Regional Landfill
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Energy from Waste
Fly ash disposal
PEI Energy Systems
Repairs and maintenance – scale
Scale house supplies
Wages and benefits – scale operator and inspector

$ 2,414,394

$ 2,459,335

$ 1,933,249
53,564
271
77,017
120,400

$ 1,937,453
53,265
242
79,886
128,477

$ 2,184,501

$ 2,199,323

Central Composting facility
Contract
Insurance
Property tax
Repairs and maintenance
Wages and benefits
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated schedule of expenditures
Year ended March 31

2015

2014

Disposal (cont’d)
Waste Watch Drop-Off Centers
Blue bag disposal
Green Isle Environmental contract
Household hazardous waste
Material and supplies
Miscellaneous and asphalt shingles
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Signage
Telephone
Travel
Utilities
Wages and benefits

$

32,000
368,868
106,468
24,042
15,655
186,350
984
1,585
5,616
21,633
10,204
306,287

$

29,000
330,767
106,821
22,123
16,339
190,648
738
900
5,477
26,181
9,573
287,417

$ 1,079,692

$ 1,025,984

$

96,772
3,733
112,434

$

84,588
4,118
108,242

$

212,939

$

196,948

Transportation of material
Motor vehicle
Supplies
Wages and benefits

$ 6,886,899

$ 6,820,795

$

265,103
546,926

$

273,185
487,640

$

812,029

$

760,825

Tire collection and disposal
Collection
Disposal
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Island Waste Management Corporation
Consolidated schedule of utility operations
Year ended March 31, 2015
2015

Albany
Bloomfield
Bloomfield school project
Brudenell
Business development
Correctional Services
Crowbush
Eastern School
Eastern School project
Georgetown
Golf Links
Humpty Dumpty
Innovation PEI
Mill River
Northport - Alberton
Parks
Western School
Western School project

Revenues

2015
Operating
costs

2014
Revenues

2014
Operating
costs

$ 365,617
20,702
14
85,252
4,500
14,162
65,362
4,408
101,929
140
2,254
9,183
58,280
40,600
74,816
24,276
-

$ 365,617
20,702
14
85,252
4,500
14,162
65,362
4,408
101,929
140
2,254
9,183
58,280
40,600
74,816
24,276
-

$ 324,966
16,659
103,666
13,718
52,703
7,637
23,880
107,882
490
2,468
8,248
59,003
29,355
44,456
23,017
4,945

$ 324,966
16,659
103,666
13,718
52,703
7,637
23,880
107,882
490
2,468
8,248
59,003
29,355
44,456
23,017
4,945

$ 871,495

$ 871,495

$ 823,093

$ 823,093
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ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE
STATUS OF WOMEN
Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

217

218

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Advisory Council members are responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control. The Council members review internal
financial reports on a regular basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Advisory Council on the Status of Women to meet as required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Advisory Council on the Status of Women

____________________________________
Jane Ledwell
Executive Director

May 25, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the
Prince Edward Island Advisory Council on the Status of Women
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Advisory Council on the
Status of Women, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash flow
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Council as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets,
and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
May 25, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

57,681
2,251
59,932

7,636
1,732
9,368

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 3)

19,483

17,483

Net Financial Assets (Debt)

40,449

(8,115)

1,209

1,156

41,658

(6,959)

Financial Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable

Non Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Advisory Council on the Status of Women

__________________________________
Council Vice-Chair

_________________________________
Council Member
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

198,000
7,525
205,525

250,260
4,955
255,215

149,701
6,264
110
156,075

14,775
4,250
27,160
3,831
155,509
205,525

9,045
4,450
25,744
1,552
9,225
156,582
206,598

12,040
4,000
28,388
810
8,779
152,881
206,898

-

48,617

(50,823)

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

(6,959)

43,864

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year

41,658

(6,959)

Revenues
Grants - Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 6)
Program revenue (Note 6)
Other

Expenses
Administration
Contracts
Council meetings/business
Equipment
Materials and supplies
Salaries and benefits

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$
Net Financial Assets (Debt), beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual surplus (deficit)
Change in prepaid expenses
Change in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year

(8,115)

(8,115)

2015
$

2014
$

(8,115)

42,691

48,617
(53)
48,564

(50,823)
17
(50,806)

40,449

(8,115)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Annual surplus (deficit)
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

48,617

(50,823)

(519)
2,000
(53)
50,045

(1,260)
2,905
17
(49,161)

7,636

56,797

57,681

7,636

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Purpose of the Organization
The Prince Edward Island Advisory Council on the Status of Women is a government
appointed provincial advisory agency. The Council works for equality and supports women’s
full and active participation in social, legal, cultural, and political spheres of life. The Council
is a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the federal Income Tax Act.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.
Since the Council has no material unrealized remeasurement gains or losses attributed to
foreign exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments, or other financial instruments, a
statement of remeasurement gains and losses has not been prepared.
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of
these financial statements.
a) Cash
Cash consists of balances on deposit at a financial institution.
b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any specific provision when collection is in
doubt.
c) Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit.
d) Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded for all amounts due for work
performed and goods or services received during the year.
e) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost provided the threshold of $3,000 is met and
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of five to fifteen
years. Tangible capital asset purchases that do not meet the threshold are expensed. No
capital assets have been recognized because purchases did not meet the threshold for
capitalization. During the year, equipment totalling $1,552 (2014 - $810) was expensed.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Revenues
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event that gave rise to
the revenue occurred. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their
estimation is impracticable.
Transfers (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenues when
the transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made.

g) Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or
event that gave rise to the expense occurred.
h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
accrued liabilities. Due to their nature, financial instruments are carried at cost or
amortized cost, less any provision on accounts receivable, which approximates their fair
value.
i)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates are accrued liabilities.
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the difference could be material.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued vacation and overtime

4.

2015
$

2014
$

6,742
4,204
8,537
19,483

6,021
3,424
8,038
17,483

Employee Benefits
a) Sick Leave
Employees of the Council are granted a base amount of 18 days of paid sick leave on
April 1 of each fiscal year. Unused sick days may be accumulated to a maximum of 36
days. The use of accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on
termination of employment and there is no obligation to settle these amounts with cash
payments. A liability has not been calculated or recognized in these financial statements
based on an analysis which indicated the liability was not significant.
b) Pension Benefits
Permanent employees of the Council participate in the Province of Prince Edward Island
Civil Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer
contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement
based on two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times the number
of years of pensionable service for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of the
career average salary indexed with cost-of-living adjustments for service after 2013.
Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December 31, 2016. The Plan is
administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Council’s annual portion of
contributions to the Plan of $11,859 (2014 - $11,442) was paid by the Province and not
reflected in these financial statements. Any unfunded liability of the Plan is the
responsibility of the Province and therefore no liability has been recognized in these
financial statements. For additional information on the Plan, see the Province’s
consolidated financial statements.

5.

Contractual Obligation
A photocopier is leased until January 15, 2020, with annual lease payments of $2,900 plus
applicable taxes.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

6.

Related Party Transactions
The Council received the following grants from the Province:

Operating Grant
Other Grants

2015
$

2014
$

246,750
3,510
250,260

146,250
3,451
149,701

The Council received a grant of $2,014 (2014 - $2,014) from another Crown corporation of
the Province of Prince Edward Island which is included with program revenue.
Certain costs incurred by the Province of Prince Edward Island on behalf of the Council are
not reflected in these financial statements. These costs include rental of office space, related
office expenses, and certain employee benefits.
7.

Financial Management
The Council’s risk exposure, as a result of the financial instruments on its statement of
financial position at March 31, 2015, is limited to liquidity risk. The Council’s financial
instruments are not subject to significant market or credit risk.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will not be able to meet all its cash outflow
obligations as they come due. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the level of financial assets
in relation to amounts due and implementing fiscal restraint when necessary.

8.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and were derived from
estimates approved by the Council.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE
CORPORATION
Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes and schedules to the financial statements
and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained
in the financial statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control. The Board reviews internal financial reports on a regular
basis and externally audited financial statements yearly.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Agricultural Insurance Corporation and can meet when required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Agricultural Insurance Corporation

_____________________________
Dave Aiton
Manager

June 9, 2015

____________________________
Danny Jenkins
Accounting Office Supervisor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Prince Edward Island Agricultural Insurance Corporation
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Agricultural Insurance
Corporation, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash flow, and
supplementary schedules for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Schedules
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, the preparation of the supporting
schedules in accordance with Annex A of the Canada - Prince Edward Island Agreement, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
and supplementary schedules that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on my
audit. I conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements and supplementary schedules are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements and supplementary schedules. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and supplementary
schedules in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements and supplementary schedules present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations,
changes in net financial assets, and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 9, 2015

30,910,330

127,775
221,928
495,124

3,713,269
3,741,195
-

714,745

27,926
27,926

75,342
1,381,656
2,412,475
3,869,473
3,741,195

(128,278)

AgriStability
$

31,625,075

3,841,044
221,928
4,236,319

173,347
173,347

12,040
873,349
1,762,055
4,491,886
7,139,330
35,861,394

28,722,064

2015
$

_________________________________
Chair

_________________________________
Director

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Agricultural Insurance Corporation

(The accompanying notes and supplementary schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Net Financial Assets and Accumulated Surplus

Indemnities payable (Note 2(f))
Deferred revenue (Note 2(c))

-

363
363
714,745

12,040
798,007
380,036
2,079,411
3,269,494
31,405,454

145,421
145,421

714,382

Bacterial Ring
Rot Program
$

28,135,960

AgriInsurance
$

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 2(b))
General
Province of Prince Edward Island

Financial Assets
Cash and short-term investments
(Notes 2(a) and 5)
Accounts receivable (Note 2(b))
General
Producer
Province of Prince Edward Island
Federal government

Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION

21,320,190

6,456,344
113,675
6,806,388

108,586
127,783
236,369

640,810
2,437,613
6,548,124
9,626,547
28,126,578

18,500,031

2014
$
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30,910,330

714,745

605,341

109,404

-

-

-

-

-

-

109,404

34

34

-

-

-

-

-

-

72,906
36,464
109,370
109,370

Bacterial Ring
Rot Program
$

-

-

-

3,992,514

-

10,967

21,338

860,196

3,100,013
-

3,992,514

3,132,318

32,305

356,386

1,646,176

1,097,451

860,196

495,038
30,690

334,468

-

AgriStability
$

(The accompanying notes and supplementary schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.)

21,320,190

Accumulated Surplus, end of year

10,195,481
20,714,849

21,320,190

2,312,960
18,153,028

2,376,000

654

115,744

1,924,139

13,100,080
699,451

32,387,106

-

20,000

2,971,988

26,261,918
757,200

28,348,509

32,387,106

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

Annual Surplus

Reinsurance premiums (Note 6)

Interest and bank charges

Bad debt

Administration (Schedule 1)

Indemnities (Note 2(f))
Other payments (Notes 4(b - d))

Expenses

428,891
1,128,342

288,900

Interest

-

4,412,100

330,000

1,821,600

699,451

1,924,139

2,971,988
1,971,600

1,158,285
-

765,854

9,279,315
7,446,619
8,721,192
25,447,126
(151,098)
25,296,028

AgriInsurance
$

1,763,393
33,000

1,175,595

9,209,044
7,370,000
8,568,974
25,148,018
(145,000)
25,003,018

Budget
2015
$

Producer contribution (Note 4(e))

Federal grant (Note 4(e))

Other
Provincial grant (Notes 4(b - e))

Federal
Producer

Contributions to Administrative Expense
Provincial

Less: premium discounts

Revenue
Insurance premiums
Producer
Provincial
Federal

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION

31,625,075

21,320,190

10,304,885

22,145,542

2,312,960

11,621

137,082

2,784,335

16,200,093
699,451

32,450,427

4,260,694

461,230

356,386

1,646,176

1,796,902

2,784,335

1,653,323
30,690

1,100,322

9,352,221
7,483,083
8,721,192
25,556,496
(151,098)
25,405,398

2015
$

21,320,190

10,671,210

10,648,980

22,273,874

2,376,916

30,725

5,308

2,988,063

15,983,968
888,894

32,922,854

3,824,974

382,724

347,976

1,323,228

1,771,046

2,988,063

1,769,532
32,780

1,185,751

9,614,631
7,695,393
8,943,902
26,253,926
(144,109)
26,109,817

2014
$
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual surplus
Net Financial Assets, end of year

Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

21,320,190

21,320,190

10,671,210

-

10,304,885

10,648,980

21,320,190

31,625,075

21,320,190

(The accompanying notes and supplementary schedules are an integral part of these financial
statements.)

(128,278)

714,382

28,135,960

Cash and short-term investments, end of year

28,722,064

18,500,031

(The accompanying notes and supplementary schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.)

(1,068,701)

605,341

18,963,391

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year

9,469,855
10,928,086
14,033,904
(18,815,395)
(699,451)
(2,792,658)
461,230
(11,621)
(2,351,917)
10,222,033

$

$

444,756
2,487,879
3,913,018
(5,068,536)
(858,032)
32,305
(10,967)
940,423

2015

AgriStability

72,906
36,101
34
109,041

Bacterial Ring
Rot Program
$

8,952,193
8,404,106
10,120,886
(13,746,859)
(699,451)
(1,934,626)
428,891
(654)
(2,351,917)
9,172,569

AgriInsurance
$

Operating Activities
Premiums and Contributions
Producers
Province of Prince Edward Island
Federal Government
Indemnities
Other payments
Payments for program administration
Interest received
Interest paid
Reinsurance premiums
Cash provided by operating activities

Cash provided (used) by:

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION

18,500,031

19,056,844

9,956,939
8,904,270
10,097,847
(23,618,171)
(888,894)
(2,977,810)
382,724
(30,725)
(2,382,993)
(556,813)

$

2014
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Agricultural Insurance Corporation is a provincial Crown
corporation operating under the Agricultural Insurance Act. The objective of the Corporation
is to deliver safety net programs to the agricultural sector including crop and livestock
insurance programs as well as income stability programs for producers in Prince Edward
Island. Programs are cost shared between the producer and the federal and provincial
governments.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Since the Corporation has no
unrealized gains or losses attributed to foreign exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments,
or other financial instruments, a statement of remeasurement gains and losses is not
prepared.
The following accounting policies are considered significant.
a) Cash and Short-term Investments
Cash includes amounts on deposit at a financial institution. Amounts presented on the
statement of financial position are an allocation of the cash to each program.
Short-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred.
b) Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provisions when collection is in doubt.
Provisions are calculated on a specific basis.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded for all amounts due for work
performed and goods or services received during the fiscal year.
c) Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue represents revenue received for insurance coverage beyond
March 31, 2015. Revenue is recognized in the period in which the insurance coverage is
in effect.
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AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
d) Revenues
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event that gave rise to
the revenue occurred. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their
estimation is impractical.
Transfers (revenue from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenues when
the transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made.
e) Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event
which gave rise to the expense occurred. The cost of all goods consumed and services
received during the year is expensed.
f)

Indemnity Expense
Indemnity expense includes claims processed, accrual estimates of claims to be
processed, and any adjustments to prior years’ claims based on additional information
received.

g) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are expensed when purchased.
h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and accrued liabilities. All financial instruments are recorded at cost or
amortized cost. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying values of these financial
instruments approximate their fair value.
i) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of the
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates are: allowance for doubtful accounts, AgriStability indemnity accruals, and the
federal and provincial revenue directly related thereto.

238

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
i)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty (continued...)
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the difference could be material. Additional
information on the estimate for AgriStability indemnities is provided in Note 8.

3.

Risk Management of Financial Instruments
The Corporation is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the financial instruments on its
statement of financial position that can affect its operating performance. These risks include
interest rate, credit, liquidity, and price risk. The Corporation has no significant exposure to
foreign currency risk.
a) Interest Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The corporation manages interest rate risk by investing
in short-term investments. Based on year-end cash and short-term investment balances,
a one percent increase (decrease) in the bank’s prime lending rate would increase
(decrease) interest income by approximately $275,000.
b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises primarily from the Corporation’s accounts receivable. The Corporation’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at March 31, 2015, is $7,139,330 as noted on the
statement of financial position.
Receivables from the Province of Prince Edward Island ($1,762,055) and the federal
government ($4,491,886) are not considered to have material credit risk as payment in
full is typically collected when due. Total receivables due from producers are $873,349.
Risks are mitigated for receivables from producers through a regular monitoring process.
Exposure to credit risk is also mitigated through a policy which offsets any amounts
receivable from producers from indemnity or other payments under programs the
Corporation administers. In addition, producers may not participate in AgriInsurance
programs until arrears from prior crop years are paid in full.
At March 31, 2015, the following accounts receivable from producers were greater than
120 days old but not considered impaired.
AgriInsurance
AgriStability

$341,491
72,012
$413,503

The total value of accounts receivable considered to be impaired at March 31, 2015, is
$248,001. No accounts receivable were written off during the year.
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March 31, 2015

3.

Risk Management of Financial Instruments (continued...)
c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation is unable to meet its financial obligations as
they become due. The Corporation has obligations to pay indemnities and other
payments required by the programs it delivers. The Corporation manages this risk by
purchasing reinsurance, maintaining cash and short-term investments, maintaining
operating credit, and reviewing cash flow projections on a monthly basis.
d) Price Risk
The Corporation is subject to price risk in that the price of farming commodities will affect
indemnities paid in the Agristability program. The Corporation manages this risk through
its federal - provincial funding of the program.

4.

Program Descriptions
a) AgriInsurance
The AgriInsurance program is treated as a separate fund and is intended to be selfsustaining. The assets, liabilities, and fund balance are segregated for presentation
purposes.
The agreement between the federal and provincial governments covers the cost sharing
arrangements for insurance premiums and administrative expenses. Insurance revenues
include government contributions to insurance premiums. Administration expenses are
cost shared on a 60-40 basis between the federal and provincial governments.
b) Seed Incentives
The provincial government provided a subsidy on elite seed producer crop insurance
premiums, reducing the premium amount to be paid by producers to 27 percent.
Incentive payments of $525,289 (2014 - $508,764) are recorded as other payments and
are offset by provincial grants in the AgriInsurance program.
c) Soil Fertility Enhancement
The provincial government provided a subsidy of two and a half percent of premiums for
grains and one percent for other crops (2014 - five percent for grains and two percent for
other crops) to insured producers through the Soil Fertility Enhancement Program, if
criteria were met. Incentive payments of $174,162 (2014 - $379,939) are recorded as
other payments and are offset by provincial grants in the AgriInsurance program.

240

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
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March 31, 2015

4.

Program Descriptions (continued...)
d) Late Blight Management Incentive
This program provides compensation to producers to kill potato fields infected with blight
in order to reduce the spread of the disease to neighbouring fields. No incentive
payments were paid for the year ended March 31, 2015 (2014 - $191). Payments are
recorded as other payments and are offset by provincial grants in the AgriInsurance
program.
e) AgriStability
AgriStability, which is a continuation of the former Canadian Agricultural Income
Stabilization (CAIS) Program, is designed to provide Canadian agricultural producers
with an ongoing whole farm risk management tool that provides protection against
decreases in income. The federal government will contribute 60 percent and the province
40 percent towards eligible claim payments and administration. The federal and
provincial cost sharing is based on total claim payments and administration expenses
less the producer’s contribution.
f)

Bacterial Ring Rot Program (BRRP)
This program provides protection against bacterial ring rot infection. The premium is cost
shared 33.3 percent by the province and 66.7 percent by the producer.

5.

Cash and Short-term Investments

Cash
Short-term investments

2015
$

2014
$

1,187,588
27,534,476
28,722,064

1,092,948
17,407,083
18,500,031

Short-term investments consist of high interest savings and GICs with interest rates between
1.30 and 1.85 percent and terms from 4 to 24 months.
6.

Reinsurance
The Corporation purchases reinsurance to protect against significant losses in the
AgriInsurance program. For 2015, reinsurance coverage provided protection against all
indemnities between $31.8 million and $99.5 million (2014 - $31.4 million to $92.4 million) for
most programs. The insured value of programs not included in the excess insurance
coverage is $3.6 million (2014 - $4.3 million).
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7.

Employee Future Benefits
a) Sick Leave
All employees are credited 1.25 (excluded employees 1.5) days per month for use as
paid absences in the year, due to illness or injury. Under existing employment
agreements, employees are allowed to accumulate unused sick day credits each year up
to the allowable maximum. Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the
extent the employee’s illness or injury exceeds the current year’s allocation. The use of
accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on termination of
employment and there is no obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. A
liability has not been calculated and no accrual has been recorded in these financial
statements. The related liability is recorded by the province. Salary expense is included
in these financial statements.
b) Pension Benefits
Permanent employees of the Corporation participate in the Province of Prince Edward
Island Civil Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer
contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement
based on two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times the number
of years of pensionable service for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of the
career average salary indexed with cost-of-living adjustments for service after 2013.
Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December 31, 2016. The Plan is
administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Corporation’s required
contributions to the Plan of $126,785 (2014 - $131,869) were paid by the province and
are not reflected in these financial statements. Any unfunded liability of the Plan is the
responsibility of the province and therefore no liability has been recognized in these
financial statements. For additional information on the Plan, see the province’s
consolidated financial statements.
c) Retirement Allowance
Permanent employees of the Corporation earn one week’s pay for every year of service
to a maximum of 26 weeks pay as a retiring allowance. Retirement allowances are
recoverable from the Province of Prince Edward Island and the federal government
under existing cost sharing agreements. The method and timing of recovering the costs
of providing retirement allowances to employees varies between the cost sharing
agreements of the programs administered. Related expenses and contributions to
administrative expenses are recognized in the period in which they are recoverable.
d) Insurance Benefits
The Public Sector Group Insurance Plan provides life insurance, long-term disability,
health, and dental benefits to eligible employees of the Corporation. This plan is
administered by a multi-employer, multi-union Board of Trustees who is responsible for
any unfunded liabilities of this plan. The cost of insured benefits reflected in these
financial statements is the employer’s portion for the insurance premiums owed for
coverage of employees during the period. The total for the period is $51,383 (2014 $54,042).
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8.

AgriStability Indemnity Estimate
Management has prepared an estimate of the Corporation’s accrued liability for indemnity
payments with respect to unprocessed AgriStability files. Estimates are determined using an
average payment and average pay rate applied to enrolled producers that are expected to
meet all the requirements of the program as of March 31, 2015. Actual results may be
significantly different from the estimated amounts.
Indemnities paid in the AgriStability program vary significantly from year to year. In the past
five years, program payments have varied from $2,000,000 to $11,000,000. The estimate for
the most recent program year (2014) is based on historical averages (adjusted for benefit
coverage under the Growing Forward 2 Agreement, which is applicable for the 2013 - 2018
program years) with one percent of individual participant files processed as of March 31,
2015. A ten percent increase/decrease in the average payment will increase/decrease the
indemnity revenue and expense by $254,000. A five percent increase/decrease in the
percentage of files requiring a payment will increase/decrease the indemnity revenue and
expense by $645,000.

9.

Credit Facility
A credit facility was in place as of March 31, 2015, which entitled the Corporation to a
demand loan for $1,000,000 at the Bank of Montreal’s prime lending rate. No amounts were
owing on the credit facility at year-end.

10.

Related Party Transactions
During the year, two MLAs, seven Board members, eight Appeal Board members, and
fourteen employees participated in various programs offered by the Corporation. Premiums
and program fees of $872,798 were collected while indemnities of $1,486,951 were paid to
these related parties. Provincial discounts of $116,116 were also granted on premiums.
Accounts receivable from related parties at year-end were $63,993. These transactions were
in the normal course of operations and were measured at the normal exchange amounts
established by the Corporation.

11.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from
the estimates approved by the Board of Directors.

12.

Prior Period Comparative Figures
Certain prior period comparative figures have been restated to conform to the presentation
format adopted in the current period.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Schedule of Administrative Expenses
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

AGRIINSURANCE
Administrative Expenses - 2015 Functional Cost Allocation
Method
Toll free (call centre)
Operations - insurance processing
Operations - adjusting
Audit (field)
Policy administration
Finance
Research, development and underwriting
Program sales & promotion
Human resources
Systems maintenance and support
Accommodations
Capital
Meeting translation costs (100% federal cost)
Change in accrued vacation pay

Administrative Expenses - 2014 Functional Cost Allocation
Method
Personnel costs
Transportation and communication
Information costs
Professional services
Accommodations and equipment rental
Equipment repairs and maintenance
Utilities, materials, and supplies
Capital purchases under $100,000
Change in accrued vacation pay

3,307
859,982
244,033
27,706
62,329
128,002
73,299
289,019
31,835
43,445
78,461
83,699
1,925,117
9,504
(10,482)
1,924,139

-

-

1,531,599
209,142
18,758
121,858
54,463
840
8,346
70,897
2,015,903
8,601
2,024,504

Note: In 2014, Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada implemented new functional cost allocation
methodology resulting in revised categories for AgriInsurance for 2015.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Schedule of Administrative Expenses
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

1,597
302,257
88,747
7,708
96,320
24,302
41,724
6,324
60,429
5,499
43,530
3,834
6,630
105,914
35,939
22,835
4,443
858,032
2,164
860,196

5,593
357,120
87,685
7,446
93,104
23,469
39,709
6,155
78,361
22,238
43,967
5,240
6,443
98,066
36,645
44,604
6,062
961,907
1,652
963,559

2,784,335

2,988,063

AGRISTABILITY
Administrative Expenses
Mail room/data capture
Forms processing
Finance
Statistics reporting
Systems support and development
BPU and price support
Accommodations
Human resources
Program promotion
Audit
Federal/provincial policy
Appeals
Program related training
Prepayment review/quality assurance
Administrative policy interpretation
Capital purchases under $10,000
Provincial share of federal administration fees
Change in accrued vacation pay

Total
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Reconciliation of CAIS/AgriStability Program Payments and Receipts
all program years as of March 31, 2015
Total as of
March 31, 2014
$

Fiscal year
2014-15
$

Total as of
March 31, 2015
$

Claimant: Province of Prince Edward Island
Payer:
Canada
2003 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Gross shareable benefits

20,863,654
(734,090)
20,129,564

(5,830)
(5,830)

20,863,654
(739,920)
20,123,734

2004 Program Year
Special advances
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Gross shareable benefits

35,595
24,002,650
(1,150,812)
22,887,433

(258)
(258)

35,595
24,002,650
(1,151,070)
22,887,175

2005 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

8,278,139
(137,535)
(4,500)
8,136,104

2006 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

10,099,350
(342,932)
(451,956)
(10,000)
9,294,462

(8,421)
(55)
(8,476)

10,099,350
(351,353)
(452,011)
(10,000)
9,285,986

2007 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

6,585,498
(99,232)
(324,591)
(11,175)
6,150,500

(45)
(45)

6,585,498
(99,232)
(324,636)
(11,175)
6,150,455

2008 Program Year
Special advances
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

19,689
7,919,388
(230,948)
(326,089)
(11,000)
7,371,040

(2,239)
366,669
(12,551)
351,879

17,450
8,286,057
(243,499)
(326,089)
(11,000)
7,722,919

-

8,278,139
(137,535)
(4,500)
8,136,104

246

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015
Schedule 2
Page 2 of 3

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Reconciliation of CAIS/AgriStability Program Payments and Receipts
all program years as of March 31, 2015
Total as of
March 31, 2014
$

Fiscal year
2014-15
$

Total as of
March 31, 2015
$

2009 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

11,768,622
(454,444)
(327,041)
(13,003)
10,974,134

2010 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

5,184,507
(174,348)
(370,636)
(8,693)
4,630,830

365,029
(53,372)
(45)
(1,500)
310,112

5,549,536
(227,720)
(370,681)
(10,193)
4,940,942

2011 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

2,527,810
(374,245)
(2,500)
2,151,065

233,780
(53,402)
(45)
(1,500)
178,833

2,761,590
(53,402)
(374,290)
(4,000)
2,329,898

2012 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

2,158,486
(378,586)
1,779,900

3,017,591
(77,746)
3,247
(7,000)
2,936,092

5,176,077
(77,746)
(375,339)
(7,000)
4,715,992

2013 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

250,363
(330,509)
(80,146)

837,105
(1,933)
835,172

1,087,468
(332,442)
755,026

2014 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits

(2,111)
(2,111)

393,529
(344,607)
48,922

393,529
(346,718)
46,811

-

11,768,622
(454,444)
(327,041)
(13,003)
10,974,134
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Reconciliation of CAIS/AgriStability Program Payments and Receipts
all program years as of March 31, 2015
Total as of
March 31, 2014
$
2015 Program Year
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits
Summary - All Program Years
Special advances
Final benefits
Overpayment recoveries
Program fees
Late filing charges
Gross shareable benefits
Payer Share (60%)
Received to Date
Outstanding Balance
Reconciliation of Final Benefits
CAIS/AgriStability indemnities per
financial statements
Add: Prior year indemnities accrual
Accrued indemnities receivable
Less: Current year indemnities accrual
Final Benefits

Fiscal year
2014-15
$

Total as of
March 31, 2015
$

-

(2,284)
(2,284)

(2,284)
(2,284)

55,284
99,638,467
(3,324,341)
(2,885,764)
(60,871)
93,422,775
56,053,665
55,345,482
708,183

(2,239)
5,213,703
(211,580)
(345,767)
(10,000)
4,644,117
2,786,470
3,399,758
(613,288)

53,045
104,852,170
(3,535,921)
(3,231,531)
(70,871)
98,066,892
58,840,135
58,745,240
94,895

3,100,013
5,681,790
145,169
(3,713,269)
5,213,703
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Schedule 3
Page 1 of 1

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
AGRICULTURAL INSURANCE CORPORATION
Reconciliation of AgriStability Program Administrative Costs
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$
Administrative costs per financial statement
Less: provincial share of federal administration fees
Less: change in accrued vacation pay
Total costs eligible for cost sharing

860,196
4,443
2,164
853,589

Salary
$

Non Salary
$

2015
Total
$

1,558
295,135
70,188
7,523
93,504
23,717
6,175
58,981
5,369
41,630
3,744
6,473
103,104
35,144
752,245

39
7,122
18,559
185
2,816
585
41,724
149
1,448
130
1,900
90
157
2,810
795
22,835
101,344

1,597
302,257
88,747
7,708
96,320
24,302
41,724
6,324
60,429
5,499
43,530
3,834
6,630
105,914
35,939
22,835
853,589

Administration Cost Details
Toll free (call centre)
Mailroom/data capture
CRA costs
Forms processing
Finance
Statistical reporting
Systems support and development
BPU and price support
Accommodations
Human resources
Program promotion (non advertising)
Program promotion (advertising)
Audit
Federal/provincial policy administration
Appeals
Program related training
Prepayment review/quality assurance
Administrative policy interpretation
Capital purchases
Total
Less: administrative cost share collected

(31,515)

Net shareable administrative costs

822,074

Payer share (60% of net shareable costs)

493,244

Payments received from Agriculture and AgriFood Canada during the year

(509,901)

Outstanding amount from prior years

135,924

Total outstanding, end of year

119,267
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control. The Board reviews internal financial reports on a regular
basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Corporation to
meet as required.
On behalf of the P.E.I. Aquaculture and Fisheries Research Initiative Inc.

____________________________________
Chair

August 4, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of the
P.E.I. Aquaculture and Fisheries Research Initiative Inc.
I have audited the financial statements of the P.E.I. Aquaculture and Fisheries Research Initiative
Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of
operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash flow for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial
assets, and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
August 4, 2015
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Statement of Financial Position
as at March 31, 2015

Financial Assets
Cash and short-term investments (Note 3)
Accounts receivable (Note 6)
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Grants payable

Net Financial Assets and Accumulated Surplus (Note 4)

2015
$

2014
$

294,310
75,000
369,310

425,983
425,983

30
16,009
16,039

30
35,396
35,426

353,271

390,557

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the P.E.I. Aquaculture and Fisheries Research Initiative Inc.

__________________________________
Director

_________________________________
Director
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

9,000
9,000

75,000
3,464
78,464

4,273
4,273

9,000
192,000
201,000

11,016
104,734
115,750

9,871
48,573
58,444

(192,000)

(37,286)

(54,171)

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

390,557

444,728

Accumulated Surplus, end of year

353,271

390,557

Revenues
Grants - Province of Prince Edward Island
Interest revenue

Expenses
Administration
Grants

Annual Deficit

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

390,557

390,557

444,728

Changes in year:
Annual deficit
Decrease in Net Financial Assets

(192,000)
(192,000)

(37,286)
(37,286)

(54,171)
(54,171)

Net Financial Assets, end of year

198,557

353,271

390,557

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Annual deficit
Changes in working capital:
Accounts receivable
Grants payable
Cash used by operating activities

(37,286)

(54,171)

(75,000)
(19,387)
(131,673)

75,000
(21,525)
(696)

Cash and Short-term Investments, beginning of year

425,983

426,679

Cash and Short-term Investments, end of year

294,310

425,983

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
The P.E.I. Aquaculture and Fisheries Research Initiative Inc. (the Corporation) was
incorporated on March 27, 1996, under Part 1 of the Companies Act. The main objective of
the Corporation is to provide funds for aquaculture, commercial fisheries, and processing
research in the Province of Prince Edward Island.
The Corporation is a provincial Crown corporation and as such is not subject to taxation
under the federal Income Tax Act.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.
Since the Corporation has no material unrealized remeasurement gains or losses attributed
to foreign exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments, or other financial instruments, a
statement of remeasurement gains and losses has not been prepared.
The following accounting policies are considered significant.
a) Cash
Cash includes bank deposits.
b) Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest.
c) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provision when collection is in doubt.
d) Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded at cost for all amounts due for
work performed and goods and services received during the year.
e) Revenues
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event that gave rise to
the revenue occurred. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their
estimation is impracticable.
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued…)
e) Revenues (continued...)
Transfers (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenues when
the transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made. Transfers are recognized as liabilities when amounts have been
received but eligibility criteria have not been met.
Recovery of contributed amounts are recorded as accounts receivable when there is
sufficient evidence that the applicant has not met eligibility conditions and is required,
under the terms of the agreement, to repay all or a portion of the amount contributed.
Recoveries are recognized in the period in which the amount is determined.
f)

Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event
that gave rise to the expense occurred.
Grants include payments under shared cost arrangements. Advances are recorded as
expenses when the grant is authorized and the amount has been disbursed. Grants are
recorded as expenses when the grant is authorized, eligibility criteria are met by the
recipient, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

g) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and grants payable. All financial instruments are
recorded at cost or amortized cost. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of
these financial instruments approximate their fair value.
h) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of the
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates include grant expenses and grants payable.
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3.

Cash and Short-term Investments
Cash and short-term investments consist of the following:

Cash
Short-term investments

2015
$

2014
$

65,885
228,425
294,310

144,225
281,758
425,983

Short-term investments consist of guaranteed investment certificates with maturity dates
ranging from eight months to two years and rates of return ranging from 2.05 percent to 2.20
percent.
4.

Accumulated Surplus
Accumulated surplus consists of the following:

Accumulated operating surplus
Share capital

2015
$

2014
$

353,171
100
353,271

390,457
100
390,557

The Corporation has authorized 5,000 common shares with a $1 par value. As at
March 31, 2015, there were 100 common shares issued and outstanding. The Province of
Prince Edward Island, as represented by the Minister of Agriculture and Fisheries, is the sole
shareholder.
5.

Contractual Obligations
The Corporation has entered into multi-year funding agreements. These contractual
obligations will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the agreement are met. At
March 31, 2015, the Corporation has contractual commitments of $42,000 (2014 $110,943), which are expected to be fulfilled between April 1, 2015 and March 31, 2016.
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

6.

Related Party Transactions
The Corporation had the following transactions with the Province of Prince Edward Island
and other provincially controlled organizations:

Funding from the province
Payments to the Prince Edward Island Self-Insurance
and Risk Management Fund

2015
$

2014
$

75,000

-

9,408

8,960

Costs incurred by the Department of Agriculture and Fisheries on behalf of the Corporation
are not reflected in these financial statements. These costs include salary and related
employee benefits, office accommodations, directors’ honoraria, and other administrative
expenses.
Accounts receivable of $75,000 consists of a grant from the Province of Prince Edward
Island (2014 - $0).
7.

Financial Management
The Corporation’s risk exposure, as a result of the financial instruments on its statement of
financial position at March 31, 2015, is limited to liquidity and market risk. The Corporation’s
financial instruments are not subject to significant credit risk.
a) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet all its cash outflow
obligations as they come due. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the level of financial
assets in relation to amounts due and implementing fiscal restraint when necessary.
b) Market Risk
Market risk is comprised of currency, interest rate, and price risk. The Corporation does
not hold or operate in foreign currency and is not subject to price risk. Thus, market risk
is derived from interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Corporation manages interest rate risk by investing
in short-term investments. Maximum exposures are equal to the balances as disclosed in
Note 3.
Based on the average of year-end short-term investment balances, a 0.5 percentage
point increase (decrease) in the interest rate would increase (decrease) interest income
by approximately $1,275.
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P.E.I. AQUACULTURE AND FISHERIES
RESEARCH INITIATIVE INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

8.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year-end, a decision was made by the Department of Agriculture and
Fisheries to cease funding support to the Corporation. Upon completion of previously
approved projects, the Corporation will be dissolved and any remaining assets will be
transferred to the department.

9.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and have been derived from
estimates approved by the Board of Directors.
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P.E.I. Civil Service Superannuation Fund
Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Civil Service Superannuation Fund for the year
ended March 31, 2015 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by
Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements
were used in the preparation of the Public Accounts.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
CROWN BUILDING CORPORATION
Financial Statement
March 31, 2015
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement
The financial statement has been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of this statement are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statement and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statement.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Minister of the Department of Transportation and Infrastructure Renewal is responsible for
ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statement. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Crown Building Corporation and can meet when required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Crown Building Corporation

_____________________________
Brian Douglas
Director

April 29, 2015

____________________________
Wendy MacDonald, CPA, CA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister of the
Department of Transportation and Infrastructure Renewal
I have audited the financial statement of the Prince Edward Island Crown Building Corporation,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial statement that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on my audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. These standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statement is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at March 31, 2015, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
April 29, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
CROWN BUILDING CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

Financial Assets

-

-

Liabilities

-

-

Net Financial Assets

-

-

Non Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 3)

271,340

271,340

Accumulated Surplus

271,340

271,340

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Crown Building Corporation

_______________________________________________
Minister
Department of Transportation and Infrastructure Renewal
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
CROWN BUILDING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statement
March 31, 2015

1.

Description of Business
The Prince Edward Island Crown Building Corporation (the Corporation) is a Crown
corporation established under the Crown Building Corporation Act.
The Corporation owns the Shaw and Sullivan Buildings, which house various provincial
departments, agencies, Crown corporations, and equipment used by the province. Rent is
not charged for space occupied. Maintenance and operating costs are the responsibility of
the province.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
The financial statement is prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.
The statements of operations and accumulated surplus and changes in net financial assets
are not presented. The Corporation had no financial activity for the years ended
March 31, 2014, and March 31, 2015, and therefore these statements are not considered
necessary.
a) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
related to the acquisition, design, and/or construction of the asset. The province is
responsible for the development, improvement, and/or betterment of the assets.
The cost of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Equipment

3.

40 years
5 years

Tangible Capital Assets
2015
$

Land - cost
Buildings and equipment - cost
Less: accumulated amortization
Net book value

271,340
6,116,139
(6,116,139)
271,340

2014
$

271,340
6,116,139
(6,116,139)
271,340
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
CROWN BUILDING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statement
March 31, 2015

4.

Building Remediation
The materials within some building components in the Shaw and Sullivan complex contain
levels of asbestos requiring remediation. The province monitors the condition of those
materials containing asbestos to ensure they are not posing a risk to the occupants of the
buildings and will remove the material as the complex is repaired and/or renovated. Total
cost to remediate has not been determined. Costs and potential liabilities associated with the
remediation are the responsibility of the province.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Financial Statements
July 31, 2014
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control. The Board reviews internal financial reports on a regular
basis and externally audited financial statements yearly.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards, and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Grain Elevators Corporation and can meet as required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators Corporation

_____________________________
Neil Campbell
General Manager

May 13, 2015

____________________________
Debbie Montgomery
Financial Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators Corporation
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators Corporation,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at July 31, 2014, and the statements of
operations and accumulated operating surplus, remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net
debt, and cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Corporation as at July 31, 2014, and the results of its operations, changes in its
remeasurement gains and losses, net debt, and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
May 13, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position
as at July 31, 2014

Financial Assets
Accounts receivable (Note 3)
Inventories for sale (Note 4)
Short-term investments (Note 5)
Liabilities
Cash and bank advances (Note 6)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7)
Employee future benefits (Note 8 (b))
Due to pool participants (Note 9)
Long-term debt (Note 10)

Net Debt
Non Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 11)
Prepaid expenses
Accumulated Surplus
Accumulated surplus is comprised of:
Accumulated operating surplus
Accumulated remeasurement gains (losses)

2014
$

2013
$

1,785,263
441,830
198,525
2,425,618

1,765,698
301,540
132,942
2,200,180

951,281
408,491
100,260
718,527
2,812,337
4,990,896

1,131,991
432,855
143,063
748,531
3,034,337
5,490,777

(2,565,278)

(3,290,597)

4,418,566
417,347
4,835,913
2,270,635

4,602,927
376,227
4,979,154
1,688,557

2,186,769
83,866
2,270,635

1,735,807
(47,250)
1,688,557

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators Corporation

__________________________________
Chair of the Board

_________________________________
Director
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Operating Surplus
for the year ended July 31, 2014

Revenues
Sales (Note 14)
Cost of goods sold (Note 14)
Gross profit
Other income (Note 15)

Expenses
Bad debts
Board
Freight
General (Note 16)
Insurance
Interest
Interest on long-term debt
Investment loss
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits
Utilities
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Annual Operating Surplus (Deficit) (Note 9)

Budget
2014
$

2014
$

2013
$

27,786,342
25,949,841
1,836,501
1,033,500
2,870,001

27,124,619
25,088,358
2,036,261
1,061,786
3,098,047

25,858,930
24,438,861
1,420,069
965,068
2,385,137

34,000
37,000
22,000
382,500
45,000
72,500
70,000
105,000
324,118
1,095,000
398,000
2,585,118
225,000
2,810,118

19,924
33,918
22,643
356,048
37,738
74,149
73,261
32,083
207,346
1,095,532
471,828
2,424,470
222,615
2,647,085

10,050
35,267
8,703
337,410
44,228
109,364
77,154
152,535
199,593
1,005,712
369,930
2,349,946
229,159
2,579,105

59,883

450,962

(193,968)

Accumulated Operating Surplus, beginning of year

1,735,807

1,929,775

Accumulated Operating Surplus, end of year

2,186,769

1,735,807

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
for the year ended July 31, 2014
2014
$
Accumulated Remeasurement Losses, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Unrealized gains (losses) attributable to:
Foreign exchange
Short-term investments
Amounts reclassified to the statement of operations:
Short-term investments
Change in remeasurement gains and losses
Accumulated Remeasurement
Gains (Losses), end of year

2013
$

(47,250)

(79,064)

8,632
90,401

(120,721)

32,083

152,535

131,116

31,814

83,866

(47,250)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
for the year ended July 31, 2014
Budget
2014
$
Net Debt, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual operating surplus (deficit)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Increase in prepaid expenses
Remeasurement gains
Change in net debt
Net Debt, end of year

(3,290,597)

59,883
225,000
284,883
(3,005,714)

2014
$

2013
$

(3,290,597)

(2,417,068)

450,962
(38,254)
222,615
(41,120)
131,116
725,319

(193,968)
(867,497)
229,159
(73,037)
31,814
(873,529)

(2,565,278)

(3,290,597)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended July 31, 2014
2014
$

2013
$

450,962
222,615

(193,968)
229,159

(19,565)
(140,291)
(24,364)
(42,803)
(30,003)
(41,120)
375,431

(32,263)
3,150
(400,957)
18,053
228,554
(73,037)
(221,309)

(38,254)
(38,254)

(867,497)
(867,497)

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Annual operating surplus (deficit)
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories for sale
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee future benefits
Due to pool participants
Prepaid expenses
Cash provided (used) by operating activities
Capital Activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Cash used by capital activities
Investing Activities
Net disposals of investments
Cash provided by investing activities
Financing Activities
Net long-term debt advances (repayments)
Cash provided (used) by financing activities
Change in cash and bank advances
Cash and Bank Advances, beginning of year
Cash and Bank Advances, end of year

65,533
65,533

(222,000)
(222,000)

4,476
4,476

1,628,837
1,628,837

180,710
(1,131,991)

544,507
(1,676,498)

(951,281)

(1,131,991)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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Notes to Financial Statements
July 31, 2014

1.

Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators Corporation (the Corporation) is a provincial
Crown corporation operating under the authority of the Prince Edward Island Grain Elevators
Corporation Act. The Corporation is a government organization named in Schedule B of the
Financial Administration Act and reports to the Legislative Assembly through the Minister of
Agriculture and Forestry. The objectives of the Corporation are:





To stimulate feed grain production in the province;
To bring uniformity to the industry through marketing of grain produced in the province;
To provide facilities for the central marketing, drying, and storage of grain; and
To provide distribution outlets for grain producers, livestock feeders, and the feed
industry.

The Corporation is a provincial Crown corporation and as such is not subject to taxation
under the federal Income Tax Act.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.
a) Cash and Bank Advances
Cash and bank advances are net of bank advances, bank deposits and cash on hand.
b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provision when collection is in doubt.
Provisions are calculated on a specific basis plus a general provision of one percent of
trade receivables.
c) Inventories for Sale
Inventories for sale, including grain and grain products, are recorded net of contract
sales and third party stored grain at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net
realizable value is determined using the FIFO method for all inventories except for pool
inventories which are valued at the next crop year’s estimated sales value less estimated
standard operating costs. Net realizable value is the estimated amount that is expected
to be received as sale proceeds less costs to be incurred to realize these sales values.
Inventory is reviewed at year-end to ensure that the carrying value does not exceed net
realizable value. Damaged, obsolete, or otherwise unusable inventory is expensed as
identified.
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Notes to Financial Statements
July 31, 2014

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
d) Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are option contracts used to manage market price risk of
inventories for sale. These investments are measured at fair value. Fair value is
determined by the value on an active market. The initial cost and the transaction fees are
recorded at the purchase date.
e) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement, and/or
betterment of the assets. Cost includes overhead directly attributable to construction and
development. Interest costs are not capitalized. Assets less than $5,000 are expensed.
The cost of tangible capital assets, excluding land, is amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Elevator equipment
Computer hardware and software
Motor vehicles

5-25 years
5 years
5 years

The cost of assets under construction is not amortized until construction is complete and
the asset is available for use. Amortization is recorded starting one month after the
asset’s acquisition or when the asset is available for use.
Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate they no longer
contribute to the Corporation’s ability to provide goods and services or when the value of
the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than
their net book value. Write downs are expensed when identified.
The province provides elevator facilities to the Corporation. All repairs and capital
upgrades to these facilities were paid by the Corporation.
f)

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses include grain contracts, utilities, memberships, technical support, and
insurance which are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit.
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GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
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July 31, 2014

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
g) Revenues
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event which gave rise
to the revenue occurred. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
amount cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when estimation
is impractical.
Transfers (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenues when
the transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made. Transfers are recognized as liabilities when amounts have been
received but not all eligibility criteria have been met.
h) Expenses
Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or
event which gave rise to the expense occurred. The cost of all goods consumed and
services received during the year is expensed.
i)

Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian dollars at the exchange rate prevailing at year-end. Foreign currency
transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
The Corporation has limited exposure to foreign currency as substantially all of its
transactions are conducted in Canadian dollars and year-end foreign currency balances
are not significant.
Realized exchange differences are recognized in the statement of operations. Unrealized
exchange differences are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and
losses.

j)

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, short-term investments, cash and
bank advances, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, employee future benefits, due to
pool participants, and long-term debt. All except for short-term investments are carried at
cost or amortized cost, less any provision on accounts receivable, which approximates
their fair value. Short-term investments are measured at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and
losses and recognized in the statement of operations. Transaction costs attributable to
financial instruments are reported in the statement of operations.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
k) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of the
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates include inventories for sale, short-term investments, the useful life of tangible
capital assets, provision for doubtful accounts, and employee future benefits.
Estimates are based on the best available information at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.

3.

Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Grain contracts receivables
Long-term employee receivables
HST/GST receivable
Less provision for doubtful accounts

4.

2014
$

2013
$

1,569,463
17,665
152,228
18,058
59,452
(31,603)
1,785,263

992,848
25,006
734,591
22,048
16,494
(25,289)
1,765,698

2014
$

2013
$

123,340
232,069
13,488
9,301
13,509
1,899
48,224
441,830

54,489
125,578
3,845
13,154
24,601
13,266
66,607
301,540

Inventories for Sale

Feed grain
Soybean
Milling wheat
Corn
Extruded and roasted soybean
Extruded barley
Soybean meal
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5.

Short-term Investments

Grain options, at cost
Provision for gain (loss) in fair value

2014
$

2013
$

123,275
75,250
198,525

180,192
(47,250)
132,942

Grain options are for 53 corn put options purchased for $63,107, 20 wheat put options
purchased for $23,958, both expiring in November 2014, and 20 soybean put options
purchased for $36,210, expiring October 2014. Transaction fees totalled $6,718 (2013 $5,306).
6.

Cash and Bank Advances
2014
$
Internally restricted cash
Unrestricted cash
Bank advances

36,895
(988,176)
(951,281)

2013
$
26,104
3,888
(1,161,983)
(1,131,991)

Restricted cash was a demand deposit held for future capital repairs
Bank advances consist of a revolving line of credit, fully guaranteed by the province, in an
amount not exceeding $8 million together with interest at the rate of prime less 0.25 percent,
or a Banker’s Acceptance fee of 1.30 percent, subject to a minimum fee of $500 per
availment.
There are no repayment terms. Advances are repayable upon expiry of the province’s
guarantee on July 31, 2015, or on demand, whichever comes first.
7.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued vacation pay
Accrued grain purchases

2014
$

2013
$

207,156
95,438
30,930
74,967
408,491

85,770
112,046
32,122
202,917
432,855
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8.

Employee Future Benefits
a) Sick Leave
All unionized employees are credited 1.25 days per month for months in which the
employee works at least ten days for use as paid absences in the year, due to illness or
injury. Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the extent that the employee’s
illness or injury exceeds the current year’s earned credits. The maximum accumulation is
1,612.5 or 1,720 hours depending on the applicable agreement. The use of accumulated
sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on termination of employment and there is
no obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. Most non-unionized
employees follow similar provisions. A liability has not been calculated and no accrual
has been recorded in these financial statements based on analysis which indicated the
liability was not significant.
b) Accrued Retirement Allowance
Employees earn two weeks pay for every year of service worked before June 1, 2003,
and one week for every year thereafter to a maximum of forty weeks pay. All employees
who have five or more years of continuous service are entitled to this benefit on
termination, provided such termination meets eligibility criteria. The accrued retirement
allowance liability includes the obligation at year-end and any unamortized actuarial
gains or losses. Unrealized gains and losses are amortized over eleven years. The cost
of the retirement allowance, as indicated in the reconciliation below, is presented in the
statement of operations and is allocated to salaries and benefits and interest expense.

Balance, beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest accrued on liability
Amortization of actuarial loss
Less payments made
Balance, end of year

2014
$

2013
$

143,063
5,286
7,252
6,552
(61,893)
100,260

125,010
5,142
7,501
5,410
143,063

The obligation for the retirement allowance as at July 31, 2014, is based on an actuarial
valuation for accounting purposes as at July 31, 2013, with adjustments based on
additional activity during the year. The liability is unfunded. Unamortized actuarial losses
totalled $43,883 at July 31, 2014 (2013 - $50,438).
The economic assumptions used in the valuation are:
Wages and salary escalation
Discount rate on accrued benefit obligation

2.50%
4.39%
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8.

Employee Future Benefits (continued...)
c) Pension - Defined Benefit
Permanent employees of the Corporation participate in the Province of Prince Edward
Island Civil Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer
contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement
based on two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times the number
of years of pensionable service for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of the
career average salary indexed with cost-of-living adjustments for service after 2013.
Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December 31, 2016. The Plan is
administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Corporation’s annual portion
of contributions to the Plan for the period was $29,169 (2013 - $26,069). Any unfunded
liability of the Plan is the responsibility of the province and, therefore, no liability has
been recognized in these financial statements. For additional information on the Plan,
including any surplus or deficit, see the province’s consolidated financial statements.
d) Pension - Defined Contribution
Four employees of the Corporation participate in a defined contribution plan. The
Corporation matches the employee contributions to a maximum of five percent of the
employee’s salary. The Corporation’s liability is limited to its required contribution in
accordance with the employment contract. The Corporation’s share of contributions for
the period was $9,079 (2013 - $9,268).
e) Insured Benefits
The Public Sector Group Insurance Plan provides life insurance, long-term disability,
health, and dental benefits to eligible employees of the Corporation. The Plan is
administered by a multi-employer, multi-union Board of Trustees who are responsible for
any unfunded liabilities of the plan. The costs of insured benefits reflected in these
financial statements are the employer’s portion of the insurance premiums owed for
coverage of employees during the period. The total for the period is $18,953 (2013 $18,409).

9.

Operating Surplus (Deficit)
Distributions due to pool participants are dependent on the current year’s operating results.
Distributions to pool participants are recorded to cost of goods sold. Initial and interim
payments are made during the year based on budgeted figures. Final distributions to pool
participants are determined by the Board based on actual results.

Earnings before distributions
Distributions to participants
Annual operating surplus (deficit)

2014
$

2013
$

9,959,630
9,508,668
450,962

9,281,862
9,475,830
(193,968)
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10.

Long-term Debt
Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

Demand loan payable to Scotiabank, bearing interest at a
Banker’s Acceptance fee of 1.00 percent, subject to a
minimum fee of $500 per availment, repayable in monthly
principal amounts of $18,500 plus interest, due April 2015,
amortized over 14 years.

2014
$

2013
$

2,812,337

3,034,337

Debt is secured by a full guarantee provided by the Province of Prince Edward Island. There
is a general security agreement to the bank over all present and future corporate property
with appropriate insurance coverage with loss, if any, payable to the bank and expires upon
the due date noted above.
The guarantee from the province expires August 31, 2017.
Anticipated annual principal repayments over the next year and thereafter are as follows:
Amount
$

Year

2015
Thereafter

222,000
2,590,337
2,812,337

Interest expense for the year on outstanding long-term debt was $73,261 (2013 - $77,154).
11.

Tangible Capital Assets

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Closing balance
Accumulated
Amortization
Opening balance
Amortization
Disposals
Closing balance
Net Book Value

Elevator
Equipment
$

Computer
Hardware
and
Software
$

Motor
Vehicles
$

2014
Total
$

2013
Total
$

5,374,402
38,254
5,412,656

86,693
86,693

321,456
321,456

5,782,551
38,254
5,820,805

4,915,054
867,497
5,782,551

796,305
216,307
1,012,612
4,400,044

75,024
2,501
77,525
9,168

308,295
3,807
312,102
9,354

1,179,624
222,615
1,402,239
4,418,566

950,465
229,159
1,179,624
4,602,927
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12.

Contractual Obligations
The Corporation has entered into future contracts for the purchase of grain from producers.
These contractual obligations will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the
contracts are met. Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts. Future pool
prices are estimated. Actual costs to the Corporation to purchase pooled contracts are not
determinable at this time. Current prices used in the estimates are based on inventory values
at year-end.

Open market - future contracts
Pool participants - future contracts

13.

2014
$

2013
$

6,063,136
2,230,231
8,293,367

5,640,545
2,517,745
8,158,290

Related Party Transactions
The Corporation had the following transactions and balances with the Province of Prince
Edward Island:

Revenues
Expenses
Accounts receivable

2014
$
26,271
4,730
2,223

2013
$
2,354
-

The province provides elevator facilities to the Corporation at an annual nominal fee of one
dollar.
The Corporation received revenues of $1,936 from Innovation PEI, a Crown Corporation of
the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Office accommodation costs and network support incurred by the province on behalf of the
Corporation are not reflected in these financial statements.
During the year, two Board Members had ownership in organizations that had sales to the
Corporation totalling $203,978. There were two Board members who had contracts worth
$122,225 to sell product to the Corporation subsequent to year-end.
One Board member provided services during the year to the Corporation totalling $27,884.
These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business and on the same
terms as unrelated parties.
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14.

15.

Gross Profit
2014
$

2013
$

Open Market Grain
Sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

16,226,022
14,927,860
1,298,162

15,501,418
14,634,996
866,422

Pooled Grain
Sales
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

10,898,597
10,160,498
738,099

10,357,512
9,803,865
553,647

Other Income
2014
$
Handling and drying
Storage fees
Custom extruding
Custom roasting
Miscellaneous
Interest
Project grants
Freight

16.

736,035
14,502
74,683
67,913
20,649
25,448
38,218
84,338
1,061,786

2013
$
669,875
45,058
64,650
74,586
22,335
27,248
61,316
965,068

General Expenses
General expenses include travel, professional fees, advertising, supplies, and surplus
storage.

17.

Risk Management
The Corporation is exposed to a number of risks as a result of the financial instruments on its
statement of financial position that can affect its operating performance. These risks include
credit, liquidity, and market risk. Market risk is comprised of foreign exchange, interest rate,
and price risk.
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17.

Risk Management (continued...)
a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Corporation will suffer a financial loss because another
party will fail to discharge an obligation. Credit risk arises primarily from the Corporation’s
accounts receivable. The Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk at
July 31, 2014, is $1,785,263.
The Corporation has a collection policy and monitoring processes intended to mitigate
potential credit losses. The Corporation maintains provisions for potential credit losses
that are assessed on an on-going basis. The provision for doubtful accounts is disclosed
in Note 3.
The Corporation considers trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be
of good credit quality. Trade receivables past due but unimpaired are as follows:
2014
$
30-60 days
61-90 days
More than 90 days

368,375
39,266
106,311
513,952

b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to convert financial assets to
cash in order to meet financial liabilities. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the level of
financial assets in relation to amounts due and implementing fiscal restraint when
necessary. The Corporation has committed a line of credit that it can access to meet
liquidity needs. A maturity analysis has not been prepared as all financial instruments,
except employee future benefits, are due within one year. The only financial instruments
with fixed maturity dates are short-term investments and long-term debt.
c) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from the holding of cash and investments denominated in
foreign currency (US). Risk is measured by considering the impact on fluctuations of
foreign exchange rates on transactions and year-end balances. The Corporation does
not hedge this currency risk as it is considered insignificant. The carrying amounts of the
Corporation’s foreign currency denominated financial assets are its maximum exposure
to foreign exchange risk, and the balances at July 31, 2014, are as follows:
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17.

Risk Management (continued...)
c) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued...)
2014
(Cdn$)
(US$)
Cash
Short-term investments

35,795
198,525

32,869
180,775

2013
(Cdn$)
(US$)
2,788
132,942

2,679
128,400

The approximate sensitivity due to changes in foreign exchange rates between the
Canadian and the US dollar is summarized in the table below. The change is due to the
effect of exchange rate changes on the Corporation’s financial instruments denominated
in US dollars, calculated based on year-end holdings.
2014

Change

5%
increase/decrease
in US to CDN FX
rate
+/- $9,843

d) Interest Rate Risk
Interest risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk relating
to bank advances and long-term debt. Maximum exposures are noted on the statement
of financial position.
The Corporation mitigates this risk by monitoring fluctuations in interest rates and
evaluating the impact on meeting debt service requirements. Risk is measured by
considering the impact on fluctuations of interest rates on year-end balances.
The approximate sensitivity due to changes in interest rates is summarized in the table
below, calculated based on the average debt balances for the year.
2014

Change

1%
increase/decrease
in interest rate
+/- $39,984

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

309

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
July 31, 2014

17.

Risk Management (continued...)
e) Price Risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market. Price risk exists in the short-term
investments.
The Corporation owns inventory at year-end that is classified as a commodity, and the
market prices fluctuate on a daily basis. The Corporation manages this fluctuation by
using short-term investments to protect the future sale price of inventories for sale. The
maximum exposure for short-term investments is the carrying amount. Risk is measured
by considering market value price fluctuations on option holdings.
The approximate sensitivity due to changes in the market value of the options is
summarized in the table below, calculated based on year-end holdings.
2014

Change
18.

10%
increase/decrease
in market value of
options
+/- $19,686

Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year-end, the corn put options were sold or expired for $118,052 for a gain of
$54,945, the wheat put options were sold for $45,156 for a gain of $21,198, and the soybean
put options were sold for $90,312 for a gain of $54,102, resulting in a total net gain of
$130,245 on these options. This amount does not include any applicable transaction fees.

19.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures provided for comparative purposes were derived from the estimates
approved by the Board of Directors.

20.

Contingent Liability
An employee of the Corporation has submitted a claim to the Prince Edward Island Human
Rights Commission. No loss provision has been recorded as the cost to the Corporation
resulting from legal actions cannot be determined because the outcome of this action is
uncertain.

310

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
GRAIN ELEVATORS CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
July 31, 2014

21.

Prior Period Comparative Figures
Certain prior period comparative figures have been restated to conform to the presentation
format adopted in the current period.
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring that
this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Minister of Family and Human Services is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control. The Minister reviews internal financial reports
on a regular basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor General
has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward Island Housing
Corporation to meet when required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Housing Corporation

____________________________________
Sonya L. Cobb, CPA, CA
Acting Director of Housing Services

June 29, 2015

___________________________________
Deanna Estabrooks, CPA, CMA
Acting Manager, Financial Services and Audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister of the
Department of Family and Human Services
Province of Prince Edward Island
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Housing Corporation, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statement of operations and
accumulated surplus, changes in net debt, and cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Corporation as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net debt, and cash flow
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Ewdard Island
June 29, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$
Financial Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (Note 3)
Loans receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 4)
Long-term debt (Note 5)

Net Debt
Non Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 6)
Property holdings

Accumulated Surplus

2014
$

421,200
3,511,100
6,700
3,939,000

5,712,000
3,860,500
4,700
9,577,200

5,706,100
15,098,700
20,804,800

10,185,100
17,273,800
27,458,900

(16,865,800)

(17,881,700)

24,450,300
234,900
24,685,200

25,701,000
234,900
25,935,900

7,819,400

8,054,200

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Housing Corporation

_________________________________________
Minister, Department of Family and Human Services
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
Budget
$
Revenues
Rental income
Grants
Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 7)
- Operations
- Capital
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
- Operations (Note 8)
- Affordable Housing (Note 11)
Other income
Gain on disposal of assets
Expenses
Administration
Equipment
Grants (Note 9)
Operating costs (Note 10)
Property taxes
Travel and training

Amortization of tangible capital assets
Interest charges on debt

2015
$

2014
$

5,670,000

5,568,200

5,408,100

2,414,200

2,371,300

1,674,800

750,000

626,400

513,400

3,127,000
1,490,000
20,000
13,471,200

3,447,300
1,118,000
17,200
19,100
13,167,500

3,377,000
332,900
45,600
249,700
11,601,500

141,600
8,000
2,589,500
6,996,500
1,078,300
112,200
10,926,100

152,200
5,200
2,350,400
7,176,900
1,102,300
98,600
10,885,600

144,000
11,800
1,262,100
6,689,300
1,101,300
79,800
9,288,300

2,123,100
422,000
13,471,200

2,050,400
466,300
13,402,300

2,000,200
597,300
11,885,800

Annual Deficit
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

8,054,200

(234,800)
8,054,200

(284,300)
8,338,500

Accumulated Surplus, end of year

8,054,200

7,819,400

8,054,200

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
for the year ended March 31, 2015
2015
Budget
$
Net Debt, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual deficit
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Net book value of tangible capital asset disposals
Change in Net Debt
Net Debt, end of year

2015
$

2014
$

(17,881,700)

(17,881,700)

(19,205,700)

(750,000)
2,123,100
1,373,100

(234,800)
(799,700)
2,050,400
1,015,900

(284,300)
(513,400)
2,000,200
121,500
1,324,000

(16,508,600)

(16,865,800)

(17,881,700)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

(234,800)
2,050,400
(19,100)

(284,300)
2,000,200
(249,700)

349,400
(2,000)
(4,479,000)
(2,335,100)

(516,600)
(900)
5,205,600
7,800
6,162,100

19,100
(799,700)
(780,600)

371,200
(513,400)
(142,200)

Financing Activities
Long-term debt repayment
Cash used by financing activities

(2,175,100)
(2,175,100)

(1,781,900)
(1,781,900)

Change in cash
Cash, beginning of year

(5,290,800)
5,712,000

4,238,000
1,474,000

Operating Activities
Annual deficit
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of assets
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Assets held for sale
Cash (used) provided by operating activities
Capital Activities
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Cash used by capital activities

Cash, end of year

421,200

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

5,712,000
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Housing Corporation (the Corporation) operates under the authority of
the Housing Corporation Act of Prince Edward Island. The Corporation’s general objectives are
to establish housing projects, construct, acquire, or renovate housing accommodations for sale
or rent, and promote measures which will contribute to the availability of adequate and improved
housing for low income families and individuals, elderly persons, or other groups that require
assistance. The Corporation also works towards improving the quality of housing and amenities
related to housing.
The Minister, having overall responsibility for the administration of the Act, has designated a
senior public officer to supervise the administration and management of the Corporation and
perform such duties as the Minister may assign. The Corporation's operations are staffed by the
Department of Family and Human Services and the Department of Finance.
The Corporation is a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the federal Income Tax Act.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. The Prince Edward Island Housing Corporation complies with the
recommendations of the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA) wherever applicable. PSAB standards are
supplemented, where appropriate, by other accounting pronouncements.
Since the Corporation has no unrealized remeasurement gains or losses attributed to
foreign exchange, derivates, portfolio investments, or other financial instruments, a
statement of remeasurement gains and losses is not prepared.
For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Corporation adopted the new Public Sector
Accounting Standard PS3260 “Liability for Contaminated Sites,” which establishes standards
on accounting for and reporting liabilities associated with the remediation of contaminated
sites. The adoption of the new PS3260 standard has not resulted in any changes to the
measurement and recognition of liabilities in the Corporation’s financial statements. The
responsibility for remediation of contamination, if any, is the responsibility of the Province of
Prince Edward Island’s (the Province) Department of Transportation Infrastructure and
Energy.
b) Financial Assets
Financial assets are those assets on hand at the end of an accounting period which could
provide resources to discharge existing liabilities or finance future operations.
Cash represents cash position including bank balances.
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any specific provision when collection is in
doubt.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued…)
b) Financial Assets (continued…)
Loans receivable are recorded at cost less adjustments for impairment in value and
concessionary terms. Where concessionary terms apply, loans are reported at their net
present value. Loans usually bear interest at approximate market rates and normally have
fixed repayment terms. A provision for loss is established for doubtful accounts. Interest
revenue is recognized on an accrual basis until such time that the collectability of either
principal or interest is not reasonably assured.
c) Liabilities
Payables and accruals are recorded for all amounts due for work performed, goods or
services received, and other charges incurred in the fiscal year.
Long-term debt is recorded at cost, which approximates market value.
d) Net Debt
The net debt of the Corporation is determined as its liabilities less its financial assets.
e) Non Financial Assets
Non financial assets are acquired, constructed, or developed assets that do not normally
provide resources to discharge existing liabilities. They are normally employed to deliver
government services and may be consumed in the normal course of operations.
Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated cost where historical
cost information is not available, subject to established thresholds. Interest, if any, on capital
projects is expensed as incurred.
The cost of the tangible capital asset, excluding land, is amortized monthly on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Renovations
Equipment

40 yrs
10 yrs
5 -15 yrs

Amortization is pro-rated on a monthly basis starting with the date the asset is placed in
service. Amortization ends when the total amortization of the asset equals the cost or on the
date of disposal, whichever comes first. No amortization is recorded if an asset is taken out
of service and disposed.
Property holdings consist of land held for development and leased properties and are
recorded at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Inventories of supplies are expensed when purchased.

320

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Revenues
Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event
that gave rise to the revenue occurred. When accruals cannot be determined with a
reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable, revenues are
recorded as received.
Transfers (revenues from non-exchange transactions) are recognized as revenue when the
transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made.
Federal contributions provided by the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC)
are restricted in accordance with the provisions of the Affordable Housing Program
Agreements. Accordingly, federal contributions are recognized as revenue when the related
expenses are incurred.

g) Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or event
that gave rise to the expense occurred.
Grants are recognized as an expense when an application for assistance has been
approved and performance requirements have been met. Conditional grants are provided to
homeowners, developers, landlords, co-operatives, and non-profit housing sponsors.
h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consists of cash, accounts receivable, loans receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, and long-term debt. All financial instruments, are recorded at
cost or amortized cost, which approximates their fair value. The Corporation is exposed to
market, credit, and liquidity risk in relation to their financial instruments as disclosed in Note
12.
i)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the carrying
amount and amortization of investments in properties and underlying assessments of
service potential, useful life of tangible capital assets, the valuation of land held for future
development, the carrying amount of loans receivable, and the underlying estimates of the
provision for loan impairment and doubtful accounts.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
i)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty (continued…)
Estimates are based on the best available information at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results could
differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.

3.

Accounts Receivable

CMHC
General
Less: provision for doubtful accounts

Current
61-90 days
90-120 days
Greater than 120 days

4.

2015
$

2014
$

3,024,400
502,200
3,526,600
15,500
3,511,100

3,619,700
249,900
3,869,600
9,100
3,860,500

2015
$

2014
$

656,700
149,500
32,400
2,688,000
3,526,600

912,700
1,500
35,700
2,919,700
3,869,600

2015
$

2014
$

59,500
4,800,400
726,500
119,700
5,706,100

106,900
9,282,300
652,700
143,200
10,185,100

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accrued interest
Province of Prince Edward Island
General
Deferred Revenue
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HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

5.

Long-term Debt
Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

Mortgages and debentures payable to Canada
Mortgage Housing Corporation with maturity dates
ranging from 2016 to 2029, with interest rates ranging
from 1.12 percent to 7.88 percent and are secured
by properties.
Mortgages payable
Debentures payable
Debenture payable to the Province of Prince Edward
Island, at an interest rate of 8.86% and secured by
properties, matured in 2015.

2015
$

2014
$

12,639,100
2,459,600

14,188,400
2,631,000

15,098,700

454,400
17,273,800

Principal Repayments
Anticipated annual principal repayments over each of the next five years and thereafter are as
follows:
Fiscal Year

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

Amount
$
1,772,100
3,668,300
1,468,900
6,205,300
454,000
1,530,100
15,098,700

Interest expense for the year on outstanding mortgages was $310,100 (2014 - $392,600) and
outstanding debentures was $156,200 (2014 - $204,700).

6.

3,120,500
772,100
3,892,600
4,210,100

36,684,400
17,710,600

2,517,900

7,476,300
626,400
8,102,700

Renovations
$

36,152,900
1,274,700
(743,200)

54,964,900
173,300
(743,200)
54,395,000

Buildings
$

-

2,517,900
2,517,900

Land
$

13,600
11,700

10,000
3,600
-

25,300
25,300

Equipment
$

40,590,600
24,450,300

39,283,400
2,050,400
(743,200)

64,984,400
799,700
(743,200)
65,040,900

2015
Total
$

39,283,400
25,701,000

38,500,500
2,000,200
(1,217,300)

65,809,800
513,400
(1,338,800)
64,984,400

2014
Total
$

Tangible capital assets represent the Corporation’s ownership interest in housing projects constructed or acquired pursuant to partnership
agreements. The Corporation’s cost is net of amounts provided by CMHC in consideration for an ownership interest in the housing
projects. Buildings funded through partnership agreements are subject to restrictions to operate for the benefit of individuals, seniors, and
families with limited income. CMHC approval is required for changes in asset use or disposal for properties which it shares ownership
interest. Disposals related to renovations are only recognized when the related building is removed from service. The unamortized
balance is amortized over the remaining useful life of the building.

Accumulated amortization,
beginning of year
Amortization
Disposals / write-downs
Accumulated amortization, end
of year
Net book value

Cost, beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals / write-downs
Cost, end of year

Tangible Capital Assets

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

7.

Province of Prince Edward Island
The Province of Prince Edward Island provides annual operating and capital grants to the
Corporation. The operating grant is provided to fund the operations of the Corporation. The
capital grant is used to fund the purchase of tangible capital assets and is recognized as
revenue in the year the capital transfer is authorized and eligibility criteria, if any, are met.

8.

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation
The Corporation is eligible for subsidy assistance from CMHC. Subsidy assistance is paid by
project, based on agreement terms and conditions, and is equal to the difference between
eligible annual operating costs and project revenues for designated units. The various
agreements expire between 2015 and 2037.

9.

Grants

Housing renovation program agreement
Family housing boards
PEI Home Renovation Programs

10.

2015
$

2014
$

1,042,300
1,308,100

151,900
1,060,200
50,000

2,350,400

1,262,100

2015
$

2014
$

2,355,900
145,100
1,440,300
1,257,000
1,978,600
7,176,900

2,059,600
132,900
1,226,800
1,227,400
2,042,600
6,689,300

Operating Costs

Materials, supplies, and services
Renovations
Rent supplement
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

11.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
a) Investment in Affordable Housing 2011-2014 Agreement
In July 2011, the Corporation and CMHC signed Supplementary Agreement No. 4 to enable
the Corporation to access funding for the 2011-2014 extension of the Affordable Housing
Initiative. This agreement enabled the Corporation to receive $1.5 million for eligible
expenditures, $0.5 million for each of the 2011-2012, 2012-2013, and 2013-2014 fiscal
years.
In April 2013, the Agreement for Investment in Affordable Housing 2011-2014 was signed.
This agreement superseded and replaced all previous Affordable Housing Renovation
Program Agreements, including Supplementary Agreement No.4. As a result of the
agreement changes, the Agreement for Investment in Affordable Housing 2011-2014 will
provide $2.48 million for eligible expenditures as follows: 2011-2012 - $0.5 million, 20122013 - $0.5 million, and 2013-2014 - $1.48 million. The agreement expired March 31, 2014.
The Corporation has four years from the date of commitment to disburse funding available
through the agreement. As of March 31, 2015, $2,017,500 (March 31, 2014 - $909,600)
was disbursed.
Funding through the Investment in Affordable Housing Agreement has been provided by
CMHC to improve access to affordable, sound, suitable, and sustainable housing in Prince
Edward Island. CMHC will make matching contributions to those projects meeting eligibility
requirements in accordance with the Agreement.
b) Investment in Affordable Housing 2015-2019 Agreement
In April 2014, the Agreement for Investment in Affordable Housing 2015-2019 was signed.
CMHC will provide $1.48 million annually for eligible expenditures over five years. This
agreement superseded all previous Affordable Housing Renovation Program Agreements.
The Corporation has four years from the date of commitment to disburse funding available
through the agreement. At March 31, 2015 $10,100 was disbursed.
Funding through the Investment in Affordable Housing Agreement has been provided by
CMHC to improve access to affordable, sound, suitable, and sustainable housing in Prince
Edward Island. CMHC will make matching contributions to those projects meeting eligibility
requirements in accordance with the Agreement.
c) Unilateral Program
Under the Renovation and Retrofit of Social Housing initiative pursuant to Section 51 of the
National Housing Act, CMHC made contributions to the Prince Edward Island Housing
Corporation in the 2010 and 2011 fiscal years for the purpose of renovating, general
improvement, energy efficiency upgrades or conversions, modifications to support persons
with disabilities and/or the regeneration of existing social housing projects. Projects totaling
$530,000 for renovation and retrofit expenses greater than $25,000 were required to enter
into 10 year mortgages with CMHC and provide collateral security. Mortgages are
repayable if certain conditions are not satisfied. All conditions have been met as of March
31, 2015.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HOUSING CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

11.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments (continued...)
d) Property Lease Agreements
The Corporation has entered into ten year lease agreements with six property owners to
provide 104 affordable housing units through rent supplement arrangements. The leases
expire in the fiscal year 2021-2022. These leases are not classified as capital leases as the
Corporation has not assumed the majority of the risk associated with the properties. The
estimated lease obligations are calculated by using the known rent and assuming a three
percent annual rental increase. Under the terms of the agreements, the agreed affordable
rent can only be adjusted upward to reflect any increase that is permitted by the Island
Regulatory and Appeals Commission in accordance with the Rental of Residential Property
Act and are not guaranteed. The estimated obligations for the next five years and beyond
are:
Fiscal Year

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

12.

Amount
$
823,600
848,300
873,800
900,000
927,000
1,573,800
5,946,500

Financial Management
The Corporation is exposed to market, credit, and liquidity risk from its financial instruments. An
analysis of these risks is provided below.
Market Risk
Market risk is comprised of three types: currency, interest, and price risk. The Corporation does
not hold nor operate in foreign currency and thus market risk is derived from interest rate and
price risk. Changes in interest rates, prices for goods, services, and rents significantly impact
the Corporation and thus could increase the cost of operations and require increase funds from
government. The risk is managed by participating in government purchasing, determining if
maintenance is done internally or tendered, cost sharing operations with CMHC, and
establishing long-term lease agreements and rent controlled by IRAC.
Credit Risk
The Corporation is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable and loans
receivable. The Corporation mitigates this risk through a regular monitoring process. Credit risk
is also mitigated due to the fact that the majority of the receivables are due from the Canada
Mortgage and Housing Corporation.
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12.

Financial Management (continued…)
Liquidity Risk
The Corporation has contractual obligations and financial liabilities and, therefore, is exposed to
liquidity risk. The Corporation manages its liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash and credit
facilities, by updating and reviewing multi-year cash flow projections on a regular and on an as
needed basis, and by matching its long-term financing arrangements with its cash flow needs.

13.

Related Party Transactions
These financial statements include the results of transactions with various provincial government
controlled departments, agencies, and Crown corporations with which the Corporation is
considered related. Transactions with related parties are settled at prevailing market prices
under normal trade terms.
The Province of Prince Edward Island has assumed responsibility for certain operating costs that
are shared with other departments such as property insurance, provincial portion of property tax,
office facilities, management salaries, and benefits. These expenses are not reflected in the
Corporation’s financial statements.
The Province of Prince Edward Island employs all staff working within the Corporation and on an
annual basis department allocations are made to the Corporation for its share of the salary and
benefits.

14.

Contingent Liabilities
The Corporation is subject to legal actions arising in the normal course of business. At March 31,
2015, there were no outstanding legal claims against the Corporation. Costs related to any
outstanding claims are funded by the Prince Edward Island Self-Insurance and Risk
Management Fund. The Fund provides general liability, errors and omissions, primary property,
and crime insurance. The Fund is administered by the Province and responsibility for liabilities of
the Fund is that of the Province.

15.

Budgeted Figures
Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from the
estimates approved by the Legislative Assembly of the Province.

16.

Prior Period Comparatives
Certain prior period comparatives have been restated to conform to the presentation format
adopted in the current period.
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Board of Commissioners is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities
for financial reporting and internal control. The Board reviews internal financial reports on a regular
basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Human Rights Commission to meet as required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Human Rights Commission

____________________________________
Brenda J. Picard, Q.C.
Executive Director

May 28, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Commissioners of the
Prince Edward Island Human Rights Commission
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Human Rights Commission,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements of
operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash flow for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial
assets, and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
May 28, 2015
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2015
$

2014
$

44,292
8,619
52,911

46,280
2,008
48,288

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 3)

16,232

52,397

Net Financial Assets (Debt)

36,679

(4,109)

Non Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses

2,255

5,745

Accumulated Surplus

38,934

1,636

Financial Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Human Rights Commission

_________________________
Commission Chair

Commissioner
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Revenues
Grants - Province of Prince Edward Island
Other grants (Note 7)

Expenses
Commissioner per diems (Note 6)
Conferences and training
Equipment
Hearing expenses
Dues and fees
Miscellaneous
Office and special projects
Photocopying
Professional fees
Project - Made in PEI (Note 7)
Rent
Salaries and benefits (Note 8)
Travel - staff
- commissioners
Telephone

Annual Surplus
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year
Accumulated Surplus, end of year

Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

393,400
42,000
435,400

413,400
49,500
462,900

403,693
26,550
430,243

43,000
9,000
2,000
1,500
2,200
2,400
9,300
4,000
1,000
45,000
21,500
273,500
5,500
12,500
3,000
435,400

18,370
2,943
575
1,575
2,977
1,280
13,153
3,857
300
53,822
21,500
288,844
4,775
8,858
2,773
425,602

30,945
9,054
6,310
2,103
1,967
13,916
3,847
400
17,301
21,500
287,768
3,250
11,399
2,994
412,754

-

37,298

17,489

1,636

(15,853)

38,934

1,636

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$
Net Debt, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual surplus
Prepaid expenses
Change in Net Financial Assets
Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year

(4,109)

(4,109)

2015
$

2014
$

(4,109)

(19,519)

37,298
3,490
40,788

17,489
(2,079)
15,410

36,679

(4,109)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

37,298

17,489

(6,611)
(36,165)
3,490
(1,988)

(1,578)
22,551
(2,079)
36,383

Cash, beginning of year

46,280

9,897

Cash, end of year

44,292

46,280

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Annual surplus
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Cash provided (used) by operating activities

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Purpose of the Organization
The Prince Edward Island Human Rights Commission (the Commission) is a corporate body
established under section 16(1) of the Human Rights Act of Prince Edward Island. The
Commission is responsible for administering and enforcing the Human Rights Act and
providing education and public information in the field of human rights. The Commission also
inquires into and endeavours to effect a settlement of any complaint of a violation of the
Human Rights Act filed with the Commission as prescribed by the Act.
The Commission is a non taxable entity under the provisions of the federal Income Tax Act.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. Since the Commission has no unrealized remeasurement gains or
losses attributed to foreign exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments, or other financial
instruments, a statement of remeasurement gains and losses is not prepared.
The following accounting policies are considered significant.
a) Cash
Cash consists of balances on deposit with a financial institution.
b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any specific provision when collection is in
doubt.
c) Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit.
d) Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded for all amounts due for work
performed and goods or services received during the year.
e) Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost provided the threshold of $2,000 is met and
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life. Tangible capital
asset purchases that do not meet the threshold are expensed. No capital assets have
been recognized because purchases did not meet the threshold for capitalization.
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March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Revenues
Revenues from other grants are recognized in the period in which the transaction or
event that gave rise to the revenue occurred. Revenues are recorded on an accrual
basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of
certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.
Transfers from the Province of Prince Edward Island (revenues from non-exchange
transactions) are recognized as revenue when the transfer is authorized, any eligibility
criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

g) Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction or
event that gave rise to the expense occurred.
h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued
liabilities. They are carried at cost or amortized cost, less any provisions on accounts
receivable. Provisions are calculated on a specific basis. Due to their short-term nature,
the carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value.
i)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates include accrued liabilities, sick leave, and allocation of salaries and benefits to
projects.
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the difference could be material.
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3.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accounts payable - Province of Prince Edward Island
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued vacation pay

4.

2015
$

2014
$

2,226
5,880
8,126
16,232

2,209
37,374
4,718
8,096
52,397

Related Party Transactions
The Commission had the following transactions with the Province of Prince Edward Island:

Grants from the province

2015
$

2014
$

413,400

403,693

Included in salaries and benefits is salary expense of $110,252 (2014 - $69,545) and benefit
expenses of $18,462 (2014 - $5,706) related to staff seconded from the province.
5.

Contractual Obligations
The Commission has entered into a number of multi-year contracts which will become
liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts are met. Disclosure relates to the
unperformed portion of the contracts.

Future operating lease payments

6.

2016
$

2017
$

23,791

7,094

Commissioner Per Diems
Commissioner per diems include panels of inquiry, reviews, meetings, educational
presentations, training and seminars, and other Commission business.
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March 31, 2015

7.

Project - Made in PEI
The Commission entered into grant agreements with the Law Foundation of Prince Edward
Island to fund the project entitled “Made in PEI: Rights, Responsibilities, Relationships, and
Resources”. The first part of the project ran from December 1, 2013 to November 30, 2014
and the second part commenced on January 1, 2015 and ends on December 31, 2015.
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of the agreements. Total revenue
recognized for the project during the year and included with other grants was $49,500
(2014 - $14,000). Total expenses recognized related to the project were $53,822 (2014 $17,301).

8.

Employee Benefits
a) Sick Leave
All employees are credited 1.5 days per month for use as paid absences in the year, due
to illness or injury. Under existing employment agreements, employees are allowed to
accumulate unused sick day credits each year up to the allowable maximum.
Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the extent that the employee’s illness
or injury exceeds the current year’s allocation. The use of accumulated sick days for sick
leave compensation ceases on termination of employment and there is no obligation to
settle these amounts with cash payments. A liability has not been calculated and no
accrual has been recorded in these financial statements based on an analysis which
indicated the liability was not significant.
b) Pension Benefits
Employees of the Commission participate in a defined contribution pension plan. The
Commission makes contributions amounting to 8.09 percent on that part of the salary on
which Canada Pension Plan contributions are made and 9.75 percent on salary when
Canada Pension Plan contributions are not required. The employee is not required to
match or contribute to the plan. These contributions are paid to a Registered Retirement
Savings Plan (RRSP) or Registered Disability Savings Plan (RDSP) as selected by the
employee.
During the year, the Commission incurred $20,957 (2014 - $12,750) in expenses for
contributions to these plans.
c) Retirement Allowance
The Commission provides a retirement allowance to its permanent employees. The
amount paid to eligible employees at retirement is equal to one week’s pay for every year
of service to a maximum of 30 weeks. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the
allowance are the responsibility of the Commission but have been assumed by the
province. Therefore, no liability has been recognized in these financial statements.
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9.

Financial Management
The Commission’s risk exposure, as a result of the financial instruments on its statement of
financial position at March 31, 2015, is limited to liquidity and credit risk. The Commission’s
financial instruments are not subject to significant market risk.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission will not be able to meet all its cash outflow
obligations as they come due. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the level of financial assets
in relation to amounts due and implementing fiscal restraint when necessary.
Credit Risk
The Commission is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable. The
Commission mitigates this risk through a regular monitoring process. The Commission has
no impaired accounts receivable at March 31, 2015.

10.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and were derived from
estimates approved by the Commission.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Commissioners of the
Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Liquor Control
Commission which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
statement of comprehensive income and changes in retained earnings, and the statement of cash
flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and changes in cash flow for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 15, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

2,514,863
777,034
7,458,810
106,325
10,857,032

1,786,650
1,157,310
7,584,881
212,841
10,741,682

6,409,164

6,816,207

17,266,196

17,557,889

2,137,858
12,279,437
129,149
34,576
329,379
14,910,399

2,509,055
12,180,649
122,372
32,249
352,007
15,196,332

1,338,820
1,016,977
2,355,797

1,015,201
1,346,356
2,361,557

17,266,196

17,557,889

Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (Note 5)
Inventory (Note 6)
Prepaid expenses
Non Current Assets
Property, plant, and equipment (Note 7)
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 15)
Deferred revenue
Current portion of obligations under finance leases (Note 12)
Current portion of debentures payable (Note 9)

Non Current Liabilities
Obligations under finance leases (Note 12)
Debentures payable (Note 9)

Total Liabilities

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Authorized on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission

_______________________________
Chair

_______________________________
Commissioner
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LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Changes in Retained Earnings
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Revenue
Sales (Note 13)
Cost of goods sold (Note 6)
Gross profit
Expenses
Amortization
Insurance and property taxes (Note 15)
Interest on long-term debt (Notes 9, 15)
Interest on finance leases (Note 12)
Operating leases (Note 12)
Other operating expenses (Note 16)
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and benefits (Notes 14, 15)
Store and office expenses
Travel
Utilities

Income from operations
Other income (Note 3(c))
Loss on disposal of non current assets

2015
$

2014
$

70,581,370
38,891,110
31,690,260

68,999,435
38,107,265
30,892,170

889,337
202,020
70,633
119,861
632,021
1,030,616
620,361
9,180,002
571,421
133,239
772,060
14,221,571

971,092
177,452
78,074
30,257
759,284
859,448
592,310
9,261,089
507,411
117,363
755,450
14,109,230

17,468,689

16,782,940

2,293,232
(55,446)

2,282,828
(47,651)

Comprehensive income

19,706,475

19,018,117

Retained earnings, beginning of year
Distributions to the Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 15)

19,706,475

19,018,117

-

-

Retained earnings, end of year

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

19,706,475
55,446
889,337
20,651,258

19,018,117
47,651
971,092
20,036,860

380,276
126,071
106,516
(371,197)
6,777
20,899,701

(373,467)
(535,572)
(69,188)
532,436
26,901
19,617,970

(19,607,687)
(24,771)
(352,007)
(19,984,465)

(19,668,449)
(17,243)
400,000
(455,962)
(19,741,654)

78,500
(265,523)
(187,023)

(796,352)
(796,352)

728,213

(920,036)

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss on disposal of assets
Amortization
Change in working capital:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Cash provided by operating activities
Financing Activities
Payments to the Province of Prince Edward Island
Payments of obligations under finance leases
Loan from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Debenture repayments
Cash used by financing activities
Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment
Cash used by investing activities
Change in cash
Cash, beginning of year

1,786,650

2,706,686

Cash, end of year

2,514,863

1,786,650

186,478

108,331

Supplementary disclosure
Interest paid

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

General Information and Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission (the Commission) is a wholly owned
Crown corporation of the Province of Prince Edward Island responsible for managing the
importation, sale, and distribution of beverage alcohol throughout Prince Edward Island. The
head office is located at 3 Garfield Street in Charlottetown with outlets in various locations
across the province.

2.

Statement of Compliance and Approval
The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared by management in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Commissioners on
May 26, 2015.

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies specified by
IFRS, issued and in effect as of March 31, 2015. The significant accounting policies used
in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.
These accounting policies have been used throughout all of the periods presented.
An overview of the standards, amendments, and interpretations on the conversion to
IFRS, which are issued but not yet in effect, are presented in Note 3(g).
b) Presentation of the Financial Statements
The financial statements are presented in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 1 (IAS 1), “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The Commission has elected
to present a single statement of comprehensive income. The financial statements have
been prepared on a historical cost basis and are presented in Canadian dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Commission.
c) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is derived from the sale of goods and other income from the rendering of
services. Reconciliation between gross receipts and revenue is shown in Note 13.
Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable by the Commission for the goods or services supplied, exclusive of sales tax,
deposits, health tax, rebates, and trade discounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
c) Revenue Recognition (continued...)
Sales
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, collection is probable, the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured, and when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer.
Significant risks and rewards are generally considered to be transferred to the buyer
when the customer has taken legal title and possession of the goods and contractual
obligations have been met.
Other Income
Other income includes permit, license, and marketing fees, and limited time offer
promotions. Revenue from other income is recognized when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Commission,
the stage of completion can be reliably measured, and the costs incurred to date and the
costs required to complete the transaction can be reliably measured.
Deferred Revenue
The Commission sells gift cards to its customers and initially records the amount to
deferred revenue. Revenue is recognized as the gift cards are redeemed. If, in the
opinion of management, the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed is remote then the
revenue will be recognized immediately.
d) Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transaction
or event that gave rise to the expense occurred.
e) Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis.
Inventory costs include the purchase price, duty and excise taxes, and standard freight
rates for goods received.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
impairment losses. All capital asset additions over $1,000 are capitalized. Capital assets
are broken down into components when the components are significant and have
differing useful lives than the rest of the asset. Amortization is calculated on a straight
line basis at the following rates:
Asset
Buildings
Leased property
Equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Financial information system

Rate
2.5%,3.33%,5%,6.66%
5%
20%
20%
5% and 10%
20% and 100%

In the year of acquisition, one half of the amortization rate is applied.
g) International Financial Reporting Standards Not Yet In Effect
At the date of issuance of these statements certain new standards, amendments, and
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet in effect. The
Commission has chosen not to adopt these early, as allowed by IFRS. Management
anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted as the Commission’s policy
is to adopt in the first period following the effective date. A list of applicable
pronouncements and their effective dates are as follows:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with an effective date of the first fiscal period beginning on
or after January 1, 2015.
IAS 16 Property, Plant, and Equipment focusing on clarification of acceptable methods of
amortization with an effective date of the first fiscal period beginning on or after January
1, 2016.
The estimated impact of the above pronouncements on the financial statements has not
been determined at this time.
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3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
h) Finance Leases
A property lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. The Commission currently leases three such
properties that are required to be set up as a leased property asset and an obligation
under finance lease liability based on IAS 17 Leases. The values of finance lease assets
and liabilities are determined using the lower of the net present value of future lease
payments and the estimated fair market value of property leased. The estimated fair
market value is calculated using an income based approach which converts expected
future income of the property to present market value using market established
capitalization rates. The asset is then amortized over the useful life of the asset and the
liability over the life of the lease, which includes all renewal options. The Commission’s
amortization policy has been disclosed in Note 3(f). The liability is amortized using the
effective interest rate method. Lease payments made during the year are allocated to
interest on finance leases and a reduction in the obligation under finance leases.
i)

Capital Management
The Commission’s objective when managing capital is to keep minimal capital on hand.
This objective is achieved by accruing all comprehensive income to the Province of
Prince Edward Island and transferring it on a continuous basis as excess capital
becomes available.

j)

Cash
Cash consists of cash on hand and amounts on deposit with financial institutions.

k) Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provision when collection is in doubt.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are recorded for all amounts due for work
performed and goods or services received during the fiscal year.
4.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgements, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses. The actual results may materially differ from management’s
estimation. Items requiring the use of significant estimates include property, plant, and
equipment carried at $6,409,164 (2014 - $6,816,207), accrued liabilities of $469,554 (2014 $554,955), standard inventory freight rates of $223,764 (2014 - $227,546) and obligations
under finance leases of $1,373,396 (2014 - $1,047,450).
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5.

Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables
Province of Prince Edward Island

2015
$

2014
$

702,115
74,919
777,034

1,081,971
75,339
1,157,310

All amounts in the accounts receivable balance are short-term. The net carrying value of
trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The receivable due from the Province of Prince Edward Island relates to a wage
reimbursement for one employee on secondment to the Commission. The carrying amount
of the receivable is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value as this financial
asset is expected to be paid within the year, such that the time value of money is not
significant.
All of the Commission’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. It is management’s assessment that all amounts are collectable and none are
impaired.
6.

Inventories

Warehouses
Stores

2015
$

2014
$

4,110,822
3,347,988
7,458,810

4,454,733
3,130,148
7,584,881

Inventories recognized in the statement of financial position consist of liquor products held
for sale. In 2015, a total of $38,891,110 of inventories was included in the statement of
comprehensive income as a cost of goods sold (2014 - $38,107,265).
There were no write-downs of inventories. No reversals of previous write-downs were
recognized as a reduction of expense in 2015 or 2014. None of the inventories are pledged
as security for liabilities.
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7.

Property, Plant, and Equipment
The Commission's property, plant, and equipment is comprised of land, buildings, leased
property, equipment, vehicles, leasehold improvements, and a financial information system.
The carrying amounts are as follows for the current fiscal year:

Land
$

Leased
Property
$

Buildings
$

Equipment
$

Vehicles
$

Leasehold
Financial
Improve- Information
ments
System
$
$

2015
Total
$

Cost
Balance, April 1, 2014

69,859 6,178,283 1,064,693

Additions
Disposals
Balance, March 31, 2015

2,870,960

216,717

5,956,860

3,488,338

19,845,710

50,140

34,287

43,995

87,348

615,960

-

49,753

350,437

5,951

328,110

-

33,453

15,937

-

-

383,451

63,908 5,899,926 1,415,130

2,887,647

235,067

6,000,855

3,575,686

20,078,219

Accumulated Amortization
Balance, April 1, 2014

- 3,192,825

29,109

2,238,065

129,291

4,296,689

3,143,524

13,029,503

Amortization

-

183,340

47,713

226,502

38,120

267,872

125,790

889,337

Disposals

-

205,209

-

32,625

11,951

-

-

249,785

Balance, March 31, 2015

- 3,170,956

76,822

2,431,942

155,460

4,564,561

3,269,314

13,669,055

63,908 2,728,970 1,338,308

455,705

79,607

1,436,294

306,372

6,409,164

Net Book Value,
March 31, 2015

The Commission has not pledged any of its property, plant, and equipment as security.
The carrying amounts are as follows for the previous fiscal year:

Land
$

Leased
Property Equipment Vehicles
$
$
$

Buildings
$

Leasehold
Financial
Improve- Information
ments
System
$
$

2014
Total
$

Cost
Balance, April 1, 2013

69,859

Additions

-

Disposals

-

Balance, March 31, 2014

69,859

6,116,334

-

2,735,886

116,787

5,815,794

3,364,806

18,219,466

61,949 1,064,693

1,861,045

161,538

99,930

349,403

123,532

-

26,464

-

208,337

-

234,801

6,178,283 1,064,693

2,870,960

216,717

5,956,860

3,488,338

19,845,710

-

Accumulated Amortization
Balance, April 1, 2013

-

2,994,654

-

2,042,231

108,021

4,162,195

2,938,460

12,245,561

Amortization

-

198,171

29,109

221,003

21,270

296,475

205,064

971,092

Disposals

-

-

-

25,169

-

161,981

-

187,150

Balance, March 31, 2014

-

3,192,825

29,109

2,238,065

129,291

4,296,689

3,143,524

13,029,503

2,985,458 1,035,584

632,895

87,426

1,660,171

344,814

6,816,207

Net Book Value,
March 31, 2014

69,859
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8.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Trade payables and accruals
Province of Prince Edward Island

9.

2015
$

2014
$

1,917,324
220,534
2,137,858

2,289,390
219,665
2,509,055

2015
$

2014
$

-

37,030

36,727

71,770

119,616

175,338

189,727

278,200

44,452

57,809

138,316

162,603

450,726

515,613

366,792

400,000

1,346,356
329,379
1,016,977

1,698,363
352,007
1,346,356

Debentures Payable

Charlottetown (Head Office), repayable in equal annual
installments of $38,889 including interest, 5.02%, matures
March 7, 2015.
Sherbrooke, repayable in equal annual installments of
$38,493 including interest, 4.81%, matures February 28,
2016.
West Royalty, repayable in equal annual installments of
$64,156 including interest, 4.81%, matures August 30,
2016.
Souris, repayable in equal annual installments of $101,660
including interest, 4.74%, matures March 30, 2017.
Charlottetown (Oak Tree), repayable in equal annual
installments of $16,409 including interest, 5.28%, matures
June 27, 2017.
Charlottetown (Head Office and Warehouse), repayable in
equal annual installments of $31,393 including interest,
4.37%, matures January 20, 2020.
Stratford, repayable in equal annual installments of $86,542
including interest, 4.20%, matures September 13, 2020.
O’Leary, repayable in equal annual installments of $49,488
including interest, 4.07%, matures January 2, 2024.
Total
Less current portion
Long-term portion

All debentures are payable to the Province of Prince Edward Island.
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9.

Debentures Payable (continued...)
Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
Fiscal Year

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

10.

Amount
$
329,379
305,950
154,039
144,267
150,324
262,397
1,346,356

Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
The Commission’s financial assets include cash and accounts receivable. Cash has been
classified as fair value through profit and loss and receivables have been classified as loans
and receivables.
Cash is designated as held for trading and it is measured at fair value. Any gains or losses
from this measurement are recognized through profit or loss.
Loans and receivables are financial assets with a fixed or determinate payment that are not
quoted on an active market. These are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method less a provision for any impairment. Discounting has been omitted as
any effect on the carrying balance is not significant.
Financial Liabilities
The Commission’s financial liabilities consist of accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
amounts due to the Province of Prince Edward Island, obligations under finance leases, and
debentures payable. These liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Fair Value
Financial assets and liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition,
except for certain related party transactions. Measurement in subsequent periods is based
on classification as held-for-trading, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities.
Financial assets and liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position at fair market
value are categorized based on the fair value hierarchy of inputs. The Level 1 hierarchy is
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. This level of
inputs is used to measure fair value of cash.
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10.

Financial Instruments (continued...)
Fair Value (continued...)
Fair values for accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and amounts due
to the Province of Prince Edward Island approximate their carrying amounts due to their
short-term nature.
The fair values of debentures payable and obligations under finance leases are not
materially different from their carrying value as there has not been a significant fluctuation in
interest rates.
Transaction Costs
Transaction costs for fair value through profit or loss instruments are recognized as profit or
loss immediately while transaction costs for other financial instruments form part of the
original value of the financial instrument.
De-recognition
De-recognition of a financial instrument occurs when the contractual rights to the cash flow
generated by the asset expire, when the financial asset and substantially all of the risks and
rewards are transferred to a third party, or when the obligation in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, or expires.
The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and liabilities:
2015
$

2014
$

2,514,863

1,786,650

777,034
3,291,897

1,157,310
2,943,960

Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, designated
as held for trading
Cash
Loans and receivables measured at amortized cost
Accounts receivable (Note 5)

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

355

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
LIQUOR CONTROL COMMISSION
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

10.

Financial Instruments (continued...)
2015
$

2014
$

1,338,820
1,016,977
2,355,797

1,015,201
1,346,356
2,361,557

12,279,437
2,137,858
34,576
329,379
14,781,250
17,137,047

12,180,649
2,509,055
32,249
352,007
15,073,960
17,435,517

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Non current
Obligations under finance leases (Note 12)
Debentures payable (Note 9)

Current
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 8)
Current portion of obligations under finance leases (Note 12)
Current portion of debentures payable (Note 9)

A description of the Commission's risk management objectives and policies for financial
instruments is included in Note 11.
11.

Financial Risk Management
The Commission is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The
Commission's financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 10. The
main types of risks are market, credit, and liquidity risk.
Market Risk
Market risk consists of three types: currency, interest rate, and price risk. The Commission's
market risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial and economic markets
and seeks to minimize potential effects on the Commission's financial performance. In
common with many organizations that purchase in foreign currencies, the Commission may
be exposed to a marginal degree of currency risk. Management has mitigated the exposure
to this risk by limiting the number of purchase transactions originating in foreign currency.
The Commission’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term
financing. Long-term borrowing is at fixed rates.
The Commission’s financial instruments are not subject to significant price risk.
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11.

Financial Risk Management (continued...)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk the Commission will incur a loss because a customer fails to meet an
obligation. The Commission is exposed to this risk for financial instruments classified as
loans and receivables by granting credit to customers. The Commission's maximum
exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of loans and receivables recognized
at the reporting date as summarized below:

Loans and receivables

2015
$

2014
$

777,034

1,157,310

The Commission has mitigated its exposure to this risk through the limited extension of credit
and its contractual relationships with its business partners. The Commission’s management
considers all of the above loans and receivables to be unimpaired for each of the reporting
dates and are of good credit quality.
Some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date. Trade
receivables past due but unimpaired are as follows:

Current
Less than 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 days - 1 year
More than 1 year

2015
$

2014
$

286,528
116,958
190,450
183,098
777,034

355,920
315,985
209,613
242,311
33,481
1,157,310

With respect to trade and other receivables, the Commission is not exposed to any
significant credit risk exposure to any single supplier or country of origin. Trade receivables
consist of a large number of customers in various industries and geographical areas. Based
on historical information about customer default rates management considers the credit
quality of trade receivables to be good.
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11.

Financial Risk Management (continued...)
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission would be unable to meet its obligations. The
Commission manages its liquidity needs by monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments
for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash inflows and outflows due in day-to-day
business. The data used for analyzing these cash flows is consistent with that used in the
contractual maturity analysis below. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on
a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day outlook. Net
cash requirements are compared to available borrowing facilities in order to determine any
surplus or shortfall.
The Commission's objective is to maintain cash and marketable securities to meet its
liquidity requirements for a minimum 30 day period. This objective was met for the reporting
period. Funding for long-term liquidity needs are secured by adequate amounts of committed
credit facilities. The Commission's existing cash resources, trade receivables, and cash
generated from operations significantly exceed the current cash outflow requirements.
The Commission’s contractual financial liabilities as at March 31, 2015, mature as follows:
Current
Within 6 months
6 to 12 Months
$
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Due to the Province
Obligations under
finance leases
Debentures

Non Current
1 to 5 Years
After 5 Years
$
$

2,137,858
12,279,437
16,942
140,076
14,574,313

17,634
189,303
206,937

167,833
754,581
922,414

1,170,987
262,396
1,433,383

The Commission’s contractual financial liabilities as at March 31, 2014, matured as follows:
Current
Within 6 months
6 to 12 Months
$
$
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Due to the Province
Obligations under
finance leases
Debentures

Non Current
1 to 5 Years
After 5 Years
$
$

2,509,055
12,180,649
15,918
133,966
14,839,588

16,331
218,041
234,372

146,886
933,636
1,080,522

868,315
412,720
1,281,035
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12.

Leases and Commitments
The Commission leases fourteen retail outlets. Eleven of those outlets are classified as
operating leases and three retail outlets are classified as finance leases.
Finance Leases
The following are the future minimum lease payments and present values for the finance
leases as at March 31, 2015:
Within 1 Year
$

1 to 5 Years
$

After 5 Years
$

Total
$

143,502
132,670

574,008
437,957

1,960,807
802,769

2,678,317
1,373,396

Minimum lease payments
Present value

The present value was calculated by discounting the minimum lease payments using the
estimated interest rates implicit in the lease over the same period as the length of the lease
including any renewal options. Estimated interest rates implicit in the lease range between
7.27 and 9.27 percent.
Operating Leases
The following are the Commission’s future minimum lease payments for the operating
leases:

March 31, 2015
March 31, 2014

Within 1 Year
$

1 to 5 Years
$

After 5 Years
$

Renewal Options
$

Total
$

471,429
639,837

839,479
1,195,132

559,746
671,508

4,468,560
5,545,150

6,339,214
8,051,627

Total future minimum operating lease payments include lease renewal options which can be
exercised by the Commission for periods above their current lease contract. Lease payments
recognized as an expense during the period are $632,021 (2014 - $759,284). Dependent on
the terms of the lease, other costs incurred by the Commission associated with property
leases generally include insurance, taxes, repairs and maintenance, and leasehold
improvements.
Commitments
The Commission has entered into contracts with various suppliers for hardware
maintenance, software support services, internet access, marketing and security services.
The total of these contracts is $783,935 and they expire in one to three years.
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13.

Sales

Gross receipts
Less taxes collected and remitted
Provincial Health Tax
Harmonized Sales Tax
Sales
14.

2015
$

2014
$

101,441,045

99,210,557

17,977,790
12,881,885
70,581,370

17,586,902
12,624,220
68,999,435

Employee Benefits
a) Pension Benefits
Permanent employees of the Commission participate in the Province of Prince Edward
Island Civil Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer
contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement
based on two percent of the average salary for the highest three years times the number
of years of pensionable service for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of the
career average salary indexed with cost of living adjustments for service after 2013.
Indexing is subject to the funded level of the plan after December 31, 2016. The Plan is
administered by the Province of Prince Edward Island. The Commission’s annual portion
of contributions to the Plan of $435,098 (2014 - $459,941) was paid by the province and
not reflected in these financial statements. Any unfunded liability of the Plan is the
responsibility of the province and therefore no liability has been recognized in these
financial statements. For additional information on the Plan, see the province’s
consolidated financial statements.
b) Retiring Allowance
The Commission provides a retirement allowance to its permanent employees. The
amount paid to eligible employees at retirement is based on the number of years of
service and the rate of pay in effect at the retirement date. The benefit costs and
liabilities related to the allowance are assumed by the province and are not included in
these financial statements.
c) Sick Leave
Classified employees are credited 1.25 (1.5 - excluded employees) days per month for
use as paid absences in the year, due to illness or injury. Under existing employment
agreements, employees are allowed to accumulate unused sick day credits each year up
to the allowable maximum. Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the
extent the employee’s illness or injury exceeds the current year’s allocation. The use of
accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on termination of
employment and there is no obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. A
liability has not been calculated and no accrual has been recorded in these financial
statements. The related liability is recorded by the province. Salary expense is included
in these financial statements.
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15.

Related Party Transactions
These financial statements include the results of normal operating transactions with various
provincial departments, Crown corporations, and agencies with which the Commission is
related. Operating transactions with related parties, such as insurance and property taxes of
$202,020 (2014 - $177,452) and interest on debentures of $70,633 (2014 - $78,074), are
recorded at rates as determined by the Province of Prince Edward Island.
Key management received $561,397 (2014 - $578,699) during the year for salaries and
benefits. Long-term benefits such as pensions and senior management compensation plan
are the responsibility of the province and are not included in these financial statements.
The Commission’s employee salaries and benefits are paid by the province and
subsequently reimbursed by the Commission.
Comprehensive income earned during the period is payable to the province. The outstanding
amount due to the province at year-end is $12,279,437 (2014 - $12,180,649).

16.

Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses include debit and credit card fees, consulting, legal, vehicle, and
security expenses.

17.

Subsequent Event
Subsequent to year-end, the Prince Edward Island Liquor Control Commission renewed their
lease at the Oaktree location for an additional ten years under similar terms and conditions
as the previous lease.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of the
Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Lotteries
Commission which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholder deficiency, and cash flow for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations and changes in cash flow for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
July 24, 2015
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2015
$

2014
$

209,877
209,877

187,032
187,032

1

1

209,878

187,033

209,877
209,877

87,032
100,000
187,032

9,979,594
10,189,471

8,140,437
8,327,469

101
1,283,923
(11,263,617)
(9,979,593)

101
791,404
(8,931,941)
(8,140,436)

Assets
Current Assets
Accounts receivable (Note 10)
Province of Prince Edward Island
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.
Non Current Assets
Investment in Interprovincial Lottery Corporation
Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholder Deficiency
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Province of Prince Edward Island
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.
City of Charlottetown
Non Current Liabilities
Investment in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (Note 6)
Shareholder Deficiency
Contributed surplus (Note 3)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Deficit

209,878

Total Liabilities and Shareholder Deficiency

187,033

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission

____________________________________
Chairman

_____________________________________
Member
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Revenues
Distributions of Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. net profit (Note 15)
Lottery ticket sales
Video lottery sales
Entertainment centres net profit (loss)
Red Shores Racetrack & Casino at Charlottetown
Driving Park
Red Shores at Summerside Raceway
Expenses
Grants to the harness racing industry (Note 8)
Grants in support of Bingo (Note 9)
Grant to the City of Charlottetown (Note 11)
Grant to PEI 2014 Inc.
Responsible Gaming Strategy (Note 12)
Professional services
Impairment loss (Note 14)
Other

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Commission share of other comprehensive income of Atlantic
Lottery Corporation Inc. (Note 6)
Comprehensive income

2015
$

2014
$

4,529,125
10,050,861

4,884,054
10,411,707

914,350
(231,120)
15,263,216

260,009
(240,611)
15,315,159

2,992,747
300,000
227,950
1,112
3,805,397
17,350
7,344,556

3,096,259
33,267
400,000
100,000
244,884
535,096
4,409,506

7,918,660

10,905,653

67,739

3,570,203

7,986,399

14,475,856

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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Balance, beginning of year
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
Distributions to the Province of
Prince Edward Island
Balance, end of year

Balance, beginning of year
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
Distributions to the Province of
Prince Edward Island
Balance, end of year

Contributed
Surplus
$

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
$

101

791,404

(8,931,941)

(8,140,436)

-

492,519
492,519

7,918,660
(424,780)
7,493,880

7,918,660
67,739
7,986,399

101

1,283,923

(9,825,556)
(11,263,617)

Contributed
Surplus
$

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
$

101

Deficit
$

Deficit
$

2015
Shareholder
Deficiency
$

(9,825,556)
(9,979,593)

2014
Shareholder
Deficiency
$

(1,329,000)

(10,954,100)

(12,282,999)

-

2,120,404
2,120,404

10,905,653
1,449,799
12,355,452

10,905,653
3,570,203
14,475,856

101

791,404

(10,333,293)
(8,931,941)

(10,333,293)
(8,140,436)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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2015
$

2014
$

14,966,307

15,593,051

(2,992,747)
(400,000)
(227,950)
(1,112)
(17,350)
11,327,148

(3,085,523)
(33,267)
(400,000)
(100,000)
(244,884)
11,729,377

(9,428,647)
(1,898,501)
(11,327,148)

(10,621,921)
(1,107,456)
(11,729,377)

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Cash received from Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc.
Cash paid to the harness racing industry
Cash paid in support of bingo
Cash paid to the City of Charlottetown
Cash paid to PEI 2014 Inc.
Cash paid for the Responsible Gaming Strategy
Cash paid for professional services
Cash paid for other services
Cash provided by operating activities
Financing Activities
Distributions to the Province of Prince Edward Island
Deficit Repayment (Note 6)
Cash used by financing activities
Change in cash

-

-

Cash, beginning of year

-

-

Cash, end of year

-

-

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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1.

Nature of Operations
The Government of Prince Edward Island operates no lotteries but the province, through its
ownership of the Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission (the Commission), is a
shareholder in the Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) and the Interprovincial Lottery
Corporation (ILC). ALC is jointly owned by the four Atlantic Provinces or their lottery agency
with each having 25 percent ownership. ALC is responsible to develop, organize, undertake,
conduct, and manage lotteries in Atlantic Canada. ALC also markets, and handles regionally,
the products of the ILC, which is jointly owned by the ten Canadian provinces. Net profits
(losses) of ALC and ILC are distributed to the shareholders.
An agreement between the Commission and ALC provides for ALC to develop, organize,
conduct, manage, and operate gaming entertainment centres as agent for and on behalf of
the Commission. In the event this agreement is terminated, all assets held by ALC on behalf
of the Commission shall be transferred to the Commission and any related loans or other
liabilities shall be assumed by and become obligations of the Commission.
ALC’s net profit is distributed to each of the four Atlantic Provinces or their lottery agency in
accordance with the Amended and Restated Unanimous Shareholders’ Agreement.
Distributions during the year are based on the estimated net profit for each province, less
any distributions made by ALC on behalf of the provinces, with an adjustment subsequent to
year-end to reflect the actual net profit for the year.
The Commission is owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island and is therefore a nontaxable entity under the provisions of the federal Income Tax Act. The head office of the
Commission is located at:
Office of the Minister of Finance
Second Floor South, Shaw Building
95 Rochford Street, P.O. Box 2000
Charlottetown, PE, C1A 7N8
The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Members on July 15, 2015.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission comply, in all
material respects, with IFRS as issued by the IASB in effect as at March 31, 2015.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
Basis of Measurement
The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The Commission’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Commission operates, which is also the
presentation currency of the financial statements.
a) Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the
transaction or event that gave rise to the revenue or expense occurred.
b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Commission’s risk management policies are part of the overall management of the
entity’s operations. Management’s direct involvement in day-to-day operations identifies
risks and variations from expectations leading to changes in risk management activities,
requirements, and actions. As part of the overall management of the entity’s operations,
management considers avoidance of undue concentrations of risk in managing the
Commission’s exposure.
c) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
judgments, assumptions, and estimates as at the date of the financial statements that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods
presented.
Measurement uncertainty exists when there is a variance between the recognized
amount and another reasonable amount. Some accounting measurements require
management’s best estimate, based on assumptions as at the financial statement date
that reflects the most probable set of economic conditions and planned courses of action.
Items requiring the use of significant estimates include provisions for doubtful accounts
of $102,042 (2014 - $102,042), impairment loss of $3,805,397 (2014 - $535,096), and
amounts recorded in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) financial statements such as
the useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, impairment of non financial assets,
accrued liabilities, employee future benefits, development costs, fair value of financial
instruments, liabilities for unclaimed prizes, and Player Loyalty Program which all impact
the net distribution and allocation of undistributed income or loss to the Commission.
Actual results could differ from the estimates made by management in these financial
statements, and these differences, which may be material, could require adjustments in
subsequent reporting periods.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
d) Investments
Investment in the Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) is an equity investment
accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognized at cost and subsequently the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the Commission’s share of income or losses from the investment
and reduced by distributions received. Income and losses from the investment are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Investment in the Interprovincial Lottery Corporation (ILC) is an equity investment with no
quoted price on an active market whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Investment in ILC is therefore carried at cost.
e) Future Accounting Pronouncements
At the date of signing these statements, certain new standards, amendments, and
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet in effect. The
Commission has chosen not to early adopt as allowed by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). Management anticipates that all relevant pronouncements
shall be adopted as the Commission’s policy in the first period following their effective
date. A list of applicable pronouncements and their effective dates are as follows:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits two classifications
for financial assets - fair value through profit or loss and amortized cost. IFRS 9 has an
effective date of the first fiscal period beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers provides a more structured approach
to measuring and recognizing revenues arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
has an effective date of the first fiscal period beginning on or after January 1, 2017.
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements includes the entities which use the equity method
to account for investments in associates. Additional guidance in regards to financial
statement preparation is provided for such entities. IAS 27 has an effective date of the
first fiscal period beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
Management is currently reviewing these changes.

3.

Contributed Surplus
Contributed surplus represents amounts paid by the Province of Prince Edward Island on
behalf of the Commission to the Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. and the Interprovincial
Lottery Corporation in exchange for share capital.
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4.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments reported on the Commission’s statement of financial position are
classified as follows:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

Loans and receivables
Other financial liabilities

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair market value. Subsequent
measurement of financial instruments is dependent on their classification.
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinate payments that are not
quoted on an active market. They are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method less a provision for any impairment. Due to their short-term nature, they are
considered to be carried at amounts which approximate their fair value.
Other financial liabilities are financial liabilities that are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Due to their short-term nature, they are considered to be
carried at amounts which approximate their fair value.
The Commission has adopted a policy of recognizing all transaction costs in comprehensive
income as incurred.
5.

Financial Risk Management
Credit risk management
The Commission is exposed to credit risk through its trade receivables. The Commission
mitigates this risk through a regular monitoring process. Credit risk is also mitigated due to the
fact that most of the non impaired receivables are due from the associate company Atlantic
Lottery Corporation Inc. Allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed at each financial
statement date.
The Commission has an impaired receivable totalling $102,042 (2014 - $102,042) as
described in Note 10. The Commission has reviewed this receivable for collectability and
assessed that based on the lack of collectability to date, and the financial situation of the
parties owing, that no funds will be collected.
Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission will not be able to meet all its cash outflow
obligations as they come due. The Commission mitigates this risk by monitoring cash activities
and expected outflows. The Commission does not have material liabilities that can be called
unexpectedly at the demand of a lender or claimant. The Commission has no material
commitments for capital expenditures and there is no need for such expenditures in the normal
course of operations. All current liabilities are fully funded by the current assets of the
Commission.
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5.

Financial Risk Management (continued...)
There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or
policies, procedures, and methods used to measure the risk.

6.

Investment in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC)
The Commission uses the equity method to account for its investment in ALC which involves
recognizing its share of income and losses less distributions. ALC reported the following
results in its financial statements:

Current assets
Non current assets
Current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Shareholder deficiency
Commission portion of shareholder deficiency

Revenues (net)
Expenses
Other losses
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income
Income allocated to shareholders
Dividends paid
Undistributed income (loss) to shareholders
Commission portion of undistributed income
(Note 14)

2015
$
(in thousands)

2014
$
(in thousands)

69,866
159,931
(175,329)
(90,658)

61,440
189,498
(158,223)
(126,619)

(36,190)

(33,904)

(9,980)

(8,140)

2015
$
(in thousands)

2014
$
(in thousands)

695,021
(286,595)
(40,210)
368,216
(7,730)
360,486
(376,867)
-

681,033
(284,360)
(28,236)
368,437
23,145
391,582
(368,287)
(150)

(16,381)

23,145

68

3,570
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6.

Investment in Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) (continued...)
The shareholder deficiency on ALC’s financial statements is a result of various adjustments
related to the conversion of its accounting framework to International Financial Reporting
Standards and the variation in the employee future benefit liability. ALC has recommended
and received board approval that shareholders fund their portion of the deficit as a deduction
of monthly profit payments which would reverse the deficit on the statement of financial
position. An amount of $158,208 has been withheld from the monthly profit distribution to the
Commission to fund the deficit. This arrangement commenced effective September 15, 2013,
and will continue until March 31, 2019. For the March 31, 2015, year-end, the total amount
withheld was $1,898,501.

7.

Gaming Entertainment Centres
On behalf of the province, the Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) constructed and
operates Red Shores Racetrack & Casino at Charlottetown Driving Park. ALC’s consolidated
financial statements include capital assets related to the Charlottetown gaming entertainment
centre having a net book value of $16,166,595 as at March 31, 2015, (2014 - $16,726,208).
Included in this are assets of $750,000 relating to the construction of a new stabling barn and
parking lot at Red Shores Racetrack & Casino at Charlottetown Driving Park. ALC is carrying
a loan of $500,000 related to the new barn, with interest on the loan at prime plus 1 percent.
ALC commenced operating Red Shores at Summerside Raceway in August 2009, occupying
facilities which are being leased from the City of Summerside. ALC’s consolidated financial
statements include capital assets related to the Summerside gaming entertainment centre
having a net book value of $1,908,341 as at March 31, 2015, (2014 - $2,259,321). This
amount includes leasehold improvements of $1,059,839 (2014 - $1,180,084), but it does not
include any amount for future lease payments. ALC’s consolidated financial statements
report the lease as an operating lease having future minimum lease payments of $335,000
for each of the next five years and minimum future aggregate lease payments to the end of
the 15 year lease term totalling $3,154,583.
ALC is carrying a loan related to the Charlottetown and Summerside gaming entertainment
centres in the amount of $9,687,000 (2014 - $10,539,000) maturing in August 2016,
repayable in monthly installments of $71,000 plus interest at variable interest rates and
hedged by a fixed interest rate swap bearing interest at 5.13 percent and a fixed interest rate
swap bearing interest at 2.88 percent, beginning August 2016 and maturing August 2026.
ALC is recovering its debt amortization costs through depreciation charges which, along with
the loan interest and Summerside centre lease charges, are included in the cost of operating
the gaming entertainment centres. ALC’s profit distributions to the Commission are adjusted
to reflect any profit or loss resulting from its operation of the gaming entertainment centres
and the new stabling barn.
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8.

Grants to the Harness Racing Industry
Grants to the harness racing industry provided through the Commission consist of the
following:

Grant to PEI Harness Racing Industry Association
Grant to Prince County Horsemen’s Club
Grant to Maritime Provinces Harness Racing Commission
Grants for sales tax due from pari-mutuel wagering
Grant to PEI Standardbred Horse Owners Association
Other

9.

2015
$

2014
$

2,170,000
80,000
116,578
626,169
2,992,747

2,100,000
77,500
112,178
655,726
150,000
855
3,096,259

Grants in Support of Bingo
Grants in support of bingo provided through the Commission consist of the following:

Bingo licensing fees to Department of Environment, Labour and
Justice
10.

2015
$

2014
$

-

33,267

Accounts Receivable
The Commission received an assignment of judgment from Harness Racing PEI Inc. in the
amount of $102,042 during a previous fiscal period. A provision for the full amount has been
recorded.

11.

Grant to the City of Charlottetown
The grant to the City of Charlottetown is pursuant to an arrangement between the City and
the Province of Prince Edward Island, whereby the City will receive $400,000 per annum for
ten years beginning with the year ended December 31, 2005. This amount is subject to
adjustment when the Charlottetown gaming entertainment centre operates less than 300
days in a given year. The arrangement ended in December 2014 and was not renewed.

12.

Responsible Gaming Strategy
Implementation of the Province’s Responsible Gaming Strategy began in 2010. The
objective of the strategy is to prevent and reduce problems associated with gaming, while
maximizing its potential social and economic aspects for Islanders.
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12.

Responsible Gaming Strategy (continued...)
The following is a summary of the Responsible Gaming Strategy costs incurred by the
Commission:
2014
2015
$
$
Gaming strategy project officer service contract
Activities carried out by Health PEI
Other

13.

3,900
223,996
54
227,950

500
243,656
728
244,884

Commitments
a) Responsible Gaming Strategy
The Commission has committed a maximum of $300,000 on an annual basis to support
the implementation of the Responsible Gaming Strategy.
b) Deficit Repayment
The Commission has entered into an arrangement with ALC in which an amount of
$158,208 will be withheld monthly from profit distribution in order to fund their portion of
ALC’s deficit. The total amount remaining to be withheld between April 1, 2015 and
March 31, 2019 is $7,593,984.

14.

Investment in Geonomics Global Games Limited (Formerly Roboreus Limited)
During the 2011-12 fiscal year the Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) invested $4.3
million on behalf of the province for an equity interest in Geonomics Global Games Limited
(formerly Roboreus Limited, a privately owned UK based internet gaming vendor). The
investment was made on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Lotteries Commission and is
held in ALC’s subsidiary company 7865813 Canada Inc. The Commission is responsible for
the loan relating to the investment and for all costs related to the investment. Costs are
deducted by ALC from the net distribution paid to the Commission. Costs deducted from the
Commission’s net distribution for the year ending March 31, 2015, were $79,508 (2014 $81,636). No income has been earned to date on this investment. Revenues and expenses
related to this investment accrue to the Commission. The investment is classified as
available for sale and is carried by 7865813 Canada Inc. at cost less impairment as there is
no quoted price in an active market.
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14.

Investment in Geonomics Global Games Limited (Formerly Roboreus Limited)
(continued...)
As a requirement of IAS36, an impairment test of the investment was completed by ALC.
Given the lack of an active market by which to determine a valuation, impairment has been
based on, among other factors, historical results. The investment has had a short history of
poor previous results and therefore any future return is presumed to not be probable of
realization for accounting purposes. As a result, the Commission has recognized a further
impairment of the investment by an additional $3.8 million (2014 - $535,096) thus increasing
the Commission’s investment liability in ALC by the same amount. The investment is fully
provided for at March 31, 2015 and is included in the Commission portion of undistributed
income.

15.

Related Party Transactions
The Commission is owned by the Province of Prince Edward Island. Any excess revenues
over expenses of the Commission are distributed to the province as shown on the statement
of changes in shareholder deficiency. Other transactions with the province, its Crown
corporations, and agencies are recorded at rates as determined by the province.
There are resources provided by the Province of Prince Edward Island such as office
facilities, support services, salaries, and employee future benefits. These costs are assumed
by the province and not reflected in these financial statements.
The Commission does not have a separate bank account. All transactions are processed
through the province’s bank account.
The following is a summary of operations conducted by the Atlantic Lottery Corporation
Inc. (ALC) on behalf of the Commission. Net profits were distributed to the Commission as
follows:
Lottery
Ticket
Sales
$

Video
Lottery
Sales
$

Red Shores
Charlottetown
$

Red Shores
Summerside
$

2015
$

2014
$

Gross profit

11,110,783

14,127,266

13,130,096

2,144,323

40,512,468

41,194,963

Expenses

(6,581,658)

(4,076,405)

(12,215,746)

(2,375,443)

(25,249,252)

(25,879,804)

Net profit

4,529,125

10,050,861

15,263,216

15,315,159

914,350

(231,120)

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the
exchange amount, which is the amount of net profit attributable to the Commission as
determined by the net profit of ALC in accordance with ALC’s financial reporting framework.
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16.

Pensions and Employee Benefits
Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. participates in a multiple-employer defined benefit
contributory pension plan. ALC also provides certain post-employment healthcare benefits,
long service awards, extended health and dental benefits, life insurance, and ad-hoc
supplementary pensions. The portion of expenditures allocated to the Commission through
ALC’s profit distributions related to pensions is $198,460 (2014 - $1,066,281) and $111,308
(2014 - $199,845) related to employee benefits.
In addition to the transactions above, ALC also made special pension payments during the
year of $9.5 million (2014 - $7.9 million). The Commission’s portion of these special
payments is funded through monthly withholdings from future profit distribution as stated in
Note 6.

17.

Capital Management
The Commission’s capital is made up of its equity and long-term debt which consists primarily
of the outstanding deficit and the long-term liability resulting from the investment in the Atlantic
Lottery Corporation Inc. The objective when managing capital is to provide an adequate return
to enable it to meet its funding obligations. The Commission sets the amount of capital in
proportion to risk and manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Commission may reduce its funding contributions
to the province. The Commission is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements
or financial debt covenants and does not presently utilize any quantitative measures to
maintain capital.

18.

Subsequent Event
In a meeting of July 15, 2015, Members of the Commission passed a resolution to repay the
full loan amount of $4.3 million to Atlantic Lottery Corporation Inc. (ALC) for the loan used to
fund the Commission’s share of the investment in Geonomics Global Games Limited. The loan
will be repaid by withholding future profit distribution receipts from ALC until the debt is repaid.
This transaction will reduce future cash flows.
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P.E.I. Pension Plan for Members of the Legislative Assembly

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Pension Plan for Members of the Legislative
Assembly for the year ended December 31, 2014 were not provided to the Office of the
Comptroller as required by Section 70 (4) of the Financial Administration Act.
Unaudited, draft financial statements were used in the preparation of the Public
Accounts.
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P.E.I. Public Trustee

Audited Financial Statements for P.E.I. Public Trustee for the year ended March 31,
2015 were not provided to the Office of the Comptroller as required by Section 70 (4) of
the Financial Administration Act. Unaudited, draft financial statements were used in the
preparation of the Public Accounts.
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
Treasury Board is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial
reporting and internal control. The Board reviews internal financial reports on a regular basis and
externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Self-Insurance and Risk Management Fund and can meet when required.

On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Self-Insurance and Risk Management Fund

________________________________
Linus Kelly
Risk Manager
June 1, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Treasury Board:
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Self-Insurance and Risk
Management Fund, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and
the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash
flow for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Fund as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets, and
cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 1, 2015
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SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

121,050
13,164,090
13,285,140

142,663
12,108,930
12,251,593

16,747
5,961,595
5,978,342

10,597
501,225
5,240,550
5,752,372

7,306,798

6,499,221

Non Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses

57,314

57,314

Accumulated Surplus

7,364,112

6,556,535

Financial Assets
Accounts receivable (Note 4)
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island (Note 5)

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned premiums
Reserve for unsettled claims (Note 7)

Net Financial Assets

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of Treasury Board:

____________________________________
Chair

____________________________________
Member
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015
Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

4,458,100
175,000
165,000
4,798,100

4,471,149
175,000
228,126
7,908
4,882,183

4,270,026
175,000
358,053
260
4,803,339

2,632,900
134,000
1,634,600
13,600
283,000
4,698,100

2,266,127
102,010
1,443,498
10,160
252,811
4,074,606

2,255,172
105,000
1,417,141
10,481
211,495
3,999,289

100,000

807,577

804,050

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

6,556,535

6,556,535

5,752,485

Accumulated Surplus, end of year

6,656,535

7,364,112

6,556,535

Revenues
Insurance premiums (Note 8)
Grant in lieu of interest (Note 5)
Claim recoveries (Note 9)
Interest

Expenses
Claims (Note 7)
Consulting (Note 10)
Insurance premiums (Note 11)
Office and travel
Salary and benefits

Annual Surplus

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year
Change in year:
Annual surplus
Net Financial Assets, end of year

Budget
2015
$

2015
$

2014
$

6,499,221

6,499,221

5,695,171

100,000

807,577

804,050

6,599,221

7,306,798

6,499,221

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

807,577

804,050

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities
Annual surplus
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned premiums
Reserve for unsettled claims
Cash provided by operating activities

21,613
(1,055,160)
6,150
(501,225)
721,045
-

(52,446)
(1,695,879)
1,064
56,269
886,942
-

Cash, beginning of year

-

-

Cash, end of year

-

-

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
The Prince Edward Island Self-Insurance and Risk Management Fund (the Fund) was
established under Part II of the Financial Administration Act. The Fund provides risk
management services as well as general liability, errors and omissions, primary property,
crime, and automobile liability insurance for government entities. The Fund has risk
management obligations that cause it to incur expenses related to claims. The Fund is
administered by Treasury Board.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. Since the Fund has no unrealized remeasurement gains or losses
attributed to foreign exchange, derivatives, portfolio investments, or other financial
instruments, a statement of remeasurement gains and losses is not prepared.
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of
these financial statements.
a) Unearned Premiums
Unearned premiums represent revenues received for insurance coverage beyond
March 31.
b) Reserve for Unsettled Claims
The reserve for unsettled claims represents management’s best estimate of the total
costs, including investigation, litigation, and the projected final settlement of specific
claims incurred as of the financial statement date. It also includes a general reserve to
cover possible claims incurred as of the financial statement date but not yet reported to
management.
c) Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses include payments for insurance and are expensed over the periods
expected to benefit.
d) Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the
transaction or event that gave rise to the revenue or expense occurred.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
e) Recoveries
Recoveries represents management’s best estimate of the full amount of costs that can
be recovered or are receivable, less any amounts that are uncollectible. Claim recoveries
include amounts recovered or receivable from both first and third parties in relation to
individual claims.
f)

Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of the Fund’s financial statements, in conformity with Canadian public
sector accounting standards, requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and the differences could be
material.
The items requiring the use of significant estimates are the reserve for unsettled claims
and claim recoveries. The reserve for unsettled claims arise from estimates of
anticipated costs such as professional expenses and damages to settle claims that are
currently open. The amount also represents an estimate for those incidents that have
been incurred but not reported to management as of the financial statement date.
Estimates are based on management’s professional judgement, as well as third party
professional advice.

3.

Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, due to the Province of Prince
Edward Island, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. They are carried at cost,
less any provisions on accounts receivable. Provisions are calculated on a specific
basis. Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of these financial instruments
approximates their fair value. The Fund is exposed to market, credit, and liquidity risk in
relation to their financial instruments as disclosed in Note 12.

4.

Accounts Receivable

Recoveries
Other

2015
$

2014
$

111,674
9,376
121,050

125,435
17,228
142,663
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

5.

Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island
The amount Due from the Province of Prince Edward Island of $13,164,090 (2014 $12,108,930) includes $6,887,571 that was invested in Provincial Deposit Receipts until
March 31, 1997. At that time, Treasury Board directed the investment be redeemed and
replaced by a non-interest bearing account receivable from the province. In lieu of interest on
investments, an annual payment of $175,000 is paid by the province to the Fund. The Fund
does not maintain its own bank account. All transactions of the Fund are processed through
the province’s bank account with the net change reflected in the Due from the Province of
Prince Edward Island account.

6.

Employee Future Benefits
a) Sick Leave
Employees are credited 1.25 (excluded employees 1.5) days per month for use as paid
absences in the year due to illness or injury under existing employment agreements.
Employees are allowed to accumulate unused sick day credits each year up to the
allowable maximum. Accumulated credits may be used in future years to the extent the
employee’s illness or injury exceeds the current year’s allocation. The use of
accumulated sick days for sick leave compensation ceases on termination of
employment and there is no obligation to settle these amounts with cash payments. A
liability has not been calculated and no accrual has been recorded in these financial
statements. The related liability is recorded by the province. Salary expense is included
in the financial statements.
b) Pension
Permanent employees of the Fund participate in the Province of Prince Edward Island
Civil Service Superannuation Pension Plan (the Plan) which is a multi-employer
contributory defined benefit pension plan. The Plan provides a pension on retirement
based on two percent of the average salary times the number of years pensionable
service for service to December 31, 2013, and two percent of the career average salary
indexed with cost of living adjustments after 2013. Indexing is subject to the funded level
of the plan after December 31, 2016. The Plan is administered by the Province of Prince
Edward Island. The Fund’s annual portion of the contributions to the Plan are paid by the
province and recognized on the province’s financial statements. Any unfunded liability is
the responsibility of the province and therefore no liability has been recognized in these
financial statements.
c) Retirement Allowance
The fund provides a retirement allowance to its classified employees. The amount paid to
eligible employees at retirement is based on the number of years of service and the rate
of pay in effect at the retirement date. The benefit costs and liabilities related to the
allowance are assumed by the Province and not included in these financial statements.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

7.

8.

Reserve for Unsettled Claims
Liability
$

Property
$

Auto
$

Total
2015
$

Total
2014
$

Reserve, beginning of year

4,882,452

278,049

80,049

5,240,550

4,353,608

Changes in year:
Settlement costs paid
Professional fees paid
Increase in claims expense
Net change in reserve

(397,218)
(829,720)
1,857,299
630,361

(94,236)
(35,528)
108,219
(21,545)

(147,156)
(41,224)
300,609
112,229

(638,610)
(906,472)
2,266,127
721,045

(667,286)
(700,944)
2,255,172
886,942

Reserves, end of year

5,512,813

256,504

192,278

5,961,595

5,240,550

Revenue - Insurance Premiums
2015
$

2014
$

2,125,667
1,617,922
575,560
152,000
4,471,149

2,015,751
1,541,879
572,396
140,000
4,270,026

2015
$

2014
$

General liability, errors, and omissions
Change in estimated recoveries

163,514
7,000
170,514

175,645
7,261
182,906

Primary property and crime
Change in estimated recoveries

28,582
(37,665)
(9,083)

19,849
83,500
103,349

Automobile liability
Change in estimated recoveries

49,791
16,904
66,695
228,126

76,144
(4,346)
71,798
358,053

General liability, errors, and omissions
Primary property and crime
Automobile liability
General government

9.

Claim Recoveries

The Fund has recorded recoveries of $154,066 (2014 - $122,331) from the province with
respect to one unsettled claim. The Province has committed to reimburse the Fund up to an
additional $92,776 recognized as expenses are incurred. Claim expenses, if any, in excess
of this amount are the responsibility of the Fund.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

10.

Consulting Expense

Consulting - risk management
Consulting - legal

11.

2014
$

57,010
45,000
102,010

60,000
45,000
105,000

2015
$

2014
$

718,120
575,888
149,490
1,443,498

695,557
572,094
149,490
1,417,141

Insurance Premiums

General liability, errors, and omissions
Primary property and crime
Automobile liability

12.

2015
$

Financial Management
The Fund is exposed to market, credit, and liquidity risk from its financial instruments. An
analysis of these risks is provided below.
Market Risk
Market risk is comprised of currency, interest rate, and price risk. The Fund does not hold or
operate in foreign currency and thus market risk is derived from interest rate and price risk.
Changes in interest rates significantly impact insurance companies and thus could increase
the cost of premiums paid by the Fund. This risk is mitigated through the use of independent
consultants and brokers to negotiate rates from reputable insurers and to monitor the market
place for changes that could impact the Fund.
Credit Risk
The Fund is exposed to credit risk with respect to accounts receivable. The Fund mitigates
this risk through a regular monitoring process. Credit risk is also mitigated due to the fact that
the majority of the receivables are due from the Province of Prince Edward Island who
controls 100 percent of the Fund. The Fund has no impaired accounts receivable at
March 31, 2015.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet all its cash outflow obligations
as they come due. The Fund mitigates this risk by monitoring the level of their financial
assets and the growth of the same and by purchasing excess insurance to provide additional
liability coverage on individual claims.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
SELF-INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

12.

Financial Management (continued...)
The self retention limits for the Fund per claim in the current fiscal year were:
Liability
Property
Auto

$5,000,000
$ 250,000
$1,000,000

and
and

$1,000,000 (Medical Malpractice)
$ 100,000 (Health PEI), $25,000 (QEH)

Additional coverage from excess insurers:
Liability
Property
Auto
13.

$10,000,000
$50,000,000
$19,000,000

and
and

$ 19,000,000 (Medical Malpractice)
$295,000,000 (QEH)

Related Party Transactions
Premiums collected and first party claims paid are with government entities. Certain costs
incurred by the Province on behalf of the Fund are not reflected in these financial
statements. These costs include office accommodations, equipment and support, other
employee benefits, and administrative expenses.

14.

Budgeted Figures
Budgeted figures have been provided for comparative purposes and were derived from the
estimates approved by Treasury Board.

15.

Prior Period Comparative Figures
Certain prior period comparatives have been restated to conform to the presentation format
adopted in the current period.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Financial Statements
June 30, 2014
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for pension plans and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management’s responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements
and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained
in the financial statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Teachers’ Superannuation Commission is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its
responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control. The Commission reviews internal financial
reports on a regular basis and externally audited financial statements yearly.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Prince Edward
Island Teachers’ Superannuation Fund to meet as required.
On behalf of the Prince Edward Island Teachers’ Superannuation Fund

_________________________________
Mr. David Arsenault, FCPA, FCA
Deputy Minister, Department of Finance

June 18, 2015

__________________________________
Mr. Terry Hogan
Manager, Pensions and Benefits
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Commissioners of the
Prince Edward Island Teachers’ Superannuation Fund
I have audited the financial statements of the Prince Edward Island Teachers’ Superannuation Fund
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2014, and the statements of changes in
net assets available for benefits and changes in pension obligation for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension plans and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Fund as at June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets available for benefits and its pension
obligation for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension plans.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
June 18, 2015
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2014

2014
$

2013
$

1,214,570
643,185,296
64,295,200

5,393,906
538,608,981
88,332,100

1,957,970
2,014,656
3,871,643
164,640,100
335,492

22,283
71,100
665,901
198,310

881,514,927

633,292,581

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Investment fees payable
Other remittances payable
Due to the Province of Prince Edward Island

2,022,651
580,557
666,710
226,343
233,502

75,288
571,468
674,023
224,348
229,116

Total Liabilities

3,729,763

1,774,243

Net Assets Available for Benefits

877,785,164

631,518,338

Accrued Pension Obligation (Note 4)

877,785,164

716,450,180

Assets
Cash
Investments (Note 3)
Notes receivable (Note 5)
Receivables
Contributions - employee
- employer
Accrued interest
Employer special contribution (Note 5)
Other
Total Assets

-

Net Surplus (Deficit)

(84,931,842)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Prince Edward Island Teachers’ Superannuation Fund

___________________________________
Chair

___________________________________
Commissioner
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Benefits
for the year ended June 30, 2014

2014
$

2013
$

5,589,144
12,696,832
82,150,158
100,436,134

5,614,539
8,428,523
47,535,557
61,578,619

6,019,991

4,115,822

10,685,888
10,685,888
1,132,019
226,087
164,640,100
293,826,107

9,948,453
9,949,353
857,639
343,783
80,369,000
167,162,669

42,254,107
2,971,119
2,040,206
293,849
47,559,281

41,749,836
2,911,751
227,937
469,293
45,358,817

Change in Net Assets

246,266,826

121,803,852

Net Assets Available for Benefits, beginning of year

631,518,338

509,714,486

Net Assets Available for Benefits, end of year

877,785,164

631,518,338

Increase in Assets
Investment income (Note 3(a))
Interest
Dividends
Change in fair value of investments

Interest income on note receivable and other
Contributions
Employee
Employer
Transfers from other plans
Purchased service
Employer special contribution (Note 5)

Decrease in Assets
Benefits paid
Operating expenses (Note 6)
Refunds (Note 2(f))
Transfers

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Statement of Changes in Pension Obligation
for the year ended June 30, 2014

Accrued Pension Obligation, beginning of year
Change in Accrued Pension Obligation
Reclassification of outstanding non-vested refunds1
Interest accrued on benefits
Benefits accrued
Increase due to purchased service
Benefits paid
Losses on experience and assumption changes
Increase due to contingent indexation
Plan amendments:
Gain on benefit design changes (before
recognition of ABO for contingent indexation)
Loss on recognition of ABO for contingent indexation

2014
$

2013
$

716,450,180

653,890,261

(1,931,285)
48,727,724
15,586,738
1,358,106
(42,656,877)
103,246,383
21,444,495

47,227,123
15,069,551
1,201,422
(42,447,066)
41,508,889

(133,371,400)
148,931,100

-

Change in Accrued Pension Obligation

161,334,984

62,559,919

Accrued Pension Obligation, end of year (Note 4)

877,785,164

716,450,180

1 Refunds owing to non-vested members have been reclassified from the accrued benefit obligation to accounts payable.

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

1.

Plan Description
The following description of the Prince Edward Island Teachers’ Superannuation Pension
Plan (the Plan) is a summary only. For more complete information, reference should be
made to the Teachers’ Superannuation Act and Regulations.
a) General
The Plan is a contributory defined benefit plan covering members as defined in the
Teachers’ Superannuation Act.
Changes were made to the Teachers’ Superannuation Act effective January 1, 2014
(“conversion date”). The Plan was amended to address financial challenges regarding
the sustainability of the Plan. The most substantial change was the transition of inflation
protection provided after the conversion date for both active and inactive members from
the previous guaranteed basis to a rules-based formula under which inflation protection
is contingent on the Plan’s financial strength. Other Plan modifications included the
introduction of a rules-based funding strategy and a gradual transition to delayed
eligibility for an unreduced retirement pension. In addition to setting the Plan on a more
stable and sustainable financial footing, these amendments were designed to be
consistent with the principle that, measured over the long-term and in the normal course
of events, benefits should be cost shared roughly equally between members and
participating employers. However, to help establish a sound initial financial footing for the
Plan, the Province committed to make an additional one-time transitional contribution to
the Plan before the end of 2014 as described in Note 5.
b) Contributions
Under the Plan, members make contributions amounting to 8.3 percent of that part of the
members salary up to the amount of the year’s maximum pensionable earnings (YMPE)
as defined in the Canada Pension Plan Act and 10.0 percent on the amount that exceeds
the YMPE. Participating employers match member contributions. Herein these are
considered the base contributions. For 2014 to 2016, contributions will remain fixed
unless they are deemed ineligible based on the maximum contributions allowed under
the federal Income Tax Act (ITA). As part of the conversion, variable contributions have
been introduced based on the funded benefits ratio as defined below (note that
contribution changes by funded level are total and not cumulative).
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

1.

Plan Description (continued...)
b) Contributions (continued...)
Funded Benefits
Ratio

Employee Contributions1

Participating Employer
Contributions1

<100% 2

Base Contributions plus 1%

Base Contributions plus 4%

Base Contributions plus 1%

Base Contributions plus 2%

Base Contributions

Base Contributions

Base Contributions less 1%

Base Contributions less 2%

Base Contributions less 1%

Base Contributions less 4%

100% to 110%

3

110% to 135%
135% to 145%
145% +
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

4

5

Subject to the Income Tax Act Rules for maximum contributions.
If triggered, contributions based on funded benefits ratio <100% remain in effect until funded benefits ratio of ≥ 105% is attained.
If triggered, contributions based on funded benefits ratio <110% remain in effect until funded benefits ratio of ≥ 115% is attained.
If triggered, contributions based on funded benefits ratio ≥135% remain in effect until funded benefits ratio of ≤ 130% is attained.
If triggered, contributions based on funded benefits ratio ≥145% remain in effect until funded benefits ratio of ≤ 140% is attained.

c) Retirement Benefits
Pension Formula: The annual pension under the pre-conversion Plan design was based
on the number of years of service times two percent of the best five years’ average salary
with an offset at age 65 for estimated Canada Pension Plan (CPP) benefits. Under the
post-conversion Plan design, the basic pension formula is maintained. However, in place
of the five-year best average salary base for benefit determination, pension amounts will
be based on an indexed average earnings formula in which the indexation is contingent
on the Plan’s financial health. A key aspect of the transition to rules-based, contingent
inflation protection under the new design was that the dollars of pension benefits earned
prior to the conversion not be reduced. This was accomplished by calculating member
benefits at the conversion date based on the best five-year average salary up to the end
of 2013 and using this as the starting point for future benefit determination. The
legislation requires that the salary amount used in benefit calculations as determined at
December 31, 2013 never be reduced. Further, annual accruals after 2013 and any
indexation that may be awarded in the future will, once awarded, also become part of the
base pension and will not be reduced if the Plan’s funded position deteriorates in the
future.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

1.

Plan Description (continued...)
c) Retirement Benefits (continued...)
Pre-Retirement Indexation: Prior to conversion, pre-retirement inflation protection was
enabled by using members’ highest five-year average salary in the benefit calculation
formula. Post-conversion, indexation has become conditional on the funded level of the
Plan. However, there are some transitional indexation rules for the first three years. For
indexation awarded during 2014 to 2016, pensionable salaries and the year’s maximum
pensionable earnings will be automatically indexed at 1.5 percent per annum. As this
indexation is guaranteed, it is included in the base benefits, which are the guaranteed
Plan benefits prior to any future contingent indexation. In 2017 and beyond, preretirement indexation will only be awarded if the funded benefits ratio (as determined at
the April 1st immediately prior to the calendar year in which indexation is to be awarded)
is greater than 100 percent. If the funded benefits ratio is below 100 percent then no
indexation will be awarded in that year. If there are years that full indexation is not
awarded, and if the funded benefits ratio subsequently reaches 115 percent, then a
portion of Plan funds is available to make up for missed indexation in the past. The
maximum indexation is 100 percent of the increase in the Average Industrial Wage
(“AIW”) in Canada. However, if in any year the assets available to be spent on inflation
protection are not adequate to provide the full amount, partial indexation will be awarded.
Post-Retirement Indexation: Prior to conversion, the post-retirement benefit was
automatically increased every year by 60 percent of the increase in CPI as measured
over the previous year, to a maximum of four percent. Post-conversion, indexation has
become conditional on the funded level of the Plan. However, there are some transitional
indexation rules for the first three years. For 2014 to 2016, post-retirement indexation will
automatically be awarded at 0.9 percent per annum. As this indexation is guaranteed, it
is included in the base benefits, which are the Plan benefits prior to any future contingent
indexation. In 2017 and beyond, post-retirement indexation will only be awarded if the
funded benefits ratio (as determined at the April 1st immediately prior to the calendar
year in which indexation is to be awarded) is greater than 110 percent. If the funded
benefits ratio is below 110 percent, then no post-retirement indexation will be awarded in
that year. If there are years that full post-retirement indexation is not awarded, and if the
funded benefit ratio subsequently reaches 118 percent, then a portion of Plan funds is
available to make up for missed past indexation on a go-forward basis (i.e. no retroactive
payments). The maximum indexation is 100 percent of CPI; however, if the Plan cannot
afford that amount, partial indexation will be awarded. Indexation also applies to deferred
vested benefits and is applied in the same manner as the post-retirement indexation
described above.
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PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

1)

Plan Description (continued...)
c) Retirement Benefits (continued...)
Retirement Age: For pensionable service prior to January 1, 2019 (5 years after the
conversion date), the earliest unreduced retirement age remains at the earlier of 30 years
of pensionable service (minimum of age 55) and attained age 60. For pensionable
service after December 31, 2018, the earliest unreduced retirement age will be the earlier
of 32 years of pensionable service (minimum of age 55) and attained age 62. The earliest
retirement age remains at age 55 with two years of continuous service both prior to and
after the conversion date. The early retirement reduction factor continues to be 0.25
percent per month for each month by which the early retirement date precedes the
members earliest unreduced retirement age.
d) Disability Benefits
Disability benefits are available at any age to a member who retires from teaching
service because of total and permanent disability provided the member contributed to the
Plan for two or more years.
e) Death Benefits
Less than two years of continuous service: On the death of a member prior to
completing two years of pensionable service, or after completing two years of service but
leaving no surviving spouse or dependant children, the member’s accumulated
contributions with interest will be refunded.
Greater than or equal to two years of continuous service: If a member dies prior to
retirement but after completing two years of service, the member’s spouse is entitled to
an immediate pension equal to 60 percent of the accrued, unreduced pension of the
member at the time of death. In addition to the spousal pension, an allowance equal to
one quarter of the remaining 40 percent of pension is payable in respect of each
dependant child until the child attains the age of 16 or until the age of 25 if the child is
attending school full-time. In no case shall payment to such children exceed 75 percent
of the remaining 40 percent of pension.
If the spouse of the member dies before the member, or where having survived the
member the surviving spouse dies leaving children by the member, the 60 per cent
pension that was payable to the spouse will be paid to the dependant children until the
child attains the age of 16 or until the age of 25 if the child is attending school full time.
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1)

Plan Description (continued...)
f)

Termination and Portability of Benefits
In the event of termination of employment for reasons other than retirement or death, a
member may elect to receive either:
-

a refund of the member’s own contributions with interest; or
if the member has completed at least two years of service, a deferred pension
subject to the provisions outlined in the Retirement Age section above.

Where there are portability arrangements between the Plan and other plans, members
may be able to carry certain pension benefits to those other plans or transfer
contributions and service from those other plans to increase pension benefits under the
Plan.
g) Marriage Breakdown
Upon application, the pension benefits to which a person is entitled may be divided
between the person and the spouse or former spouse.
h) Income Tax
The Fund is a registered pension plan as defined under the federal Income Tax Act and
is not subject to taxation.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for pension plans as outlined in the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA) Handbook Section 4600, Pension
Plans. For accounting policies that do not relate to either investments or pension obligations,
the Fund has elected to comply on a consistent basis with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) in part 1 of the CPA Handbook. To the extent that IFRS in Part I is
inconsistent with Section 4600, Section 4600 takes precedence.
Included in the determination of the accrued benefit obligation for pension retirement benefits
is a liability for contingent indexation. Pension plan amendments effective January 1, 2014,
provided for the removal of guaranteed pension indexation. Indexation is now contingent on
the funded status of the Fund.
For the year ended June 30, 2014, the contingent indexation liability is calculated based on
total plan assets less the accrued benefit obligation on base benefits assuming no further
contingent indexation. This calculation does not incorporate the potential impact of future
events such as contributions, gains and losses on asset returns, and new benefit accruals.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
Significant judgement is involved in the accounting treatment of contingent indexation.
Management recognizes that the contingent indexation liability represents a new challenge
for pensions in Canada. Going forward, management will continue to monitor developments
in the accounting standards and practices when assessing the most appropriate accounting
treatment for plans with a contingent indexation liability component.
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and present the
aggregate financial position of the Fund as a separate reporting entity.
a) Use of Estimates and Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting
standards for pension plans requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Items requiring the use of significant
estimates include investments, accrued interest, accrued liabilities, and the accrued
pension obligation.
Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of preparation of the
financial statements and are reviewed annually to reflect new information as it becomes
available. Measurement uncertainty exists in these financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.
b) Foreign Currency Translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at
the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date. The fair value of foreign
investments and cash held at year-end are translated at the rates in effect at that date.
The resulting gain or loss from changes in these rates is included in the current period
change in fair value of investments.
c) Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction on the
measurement date.
When available, the Fund measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
c) Fair Value Measurement (continued...)
If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Fund establishes fair value
using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the
current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, and/or discounted
cash flow analysis.
d) Financial Instruments
The Fund’s financial instruments include cash, contributions and other receivables,
accrued interest, notes receivable, investments, accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
amounts due to the Province of Prince Edward Island, income taxes payable, investment
fees payable, and other remittances payable. Due to their nature, the Fund’s financial
instruments, with the exception of investments, are carried at cost which approximate
their fair values. Investments are carried at fair value and are subject to interest, credit,
currency, price, and liquidity risks as described in Note 3.
e) Investments
Investments represent a pool of assets held in a master trust and allocated to each
member by units of participation. The Prince Edward Island Master Trust represents a
contract between the members (contributors) and the trustee (Minister of Finance). All
investments held by the Master Trust are classified as held for trading. Investments are
designated at fair value through the statement of changes in net assets available for
benefits. Investment purchase and sale decisions are based on their fair value in
accordance with the Master Trust’s Statement of Investment Policies and Procedures.
Significant accounting policies for the pool of assets held in the Master Trust consist of:
(i) Investment transactions
Investment transactions are recognized on the transaction date. Distributions are
recognized on the record date. Investments include receivables and payables at
June 30, 2014, for interest, dividends, and settled derivative contracts.
(ii) Income recognition
Income from investments is recorded on an accrual basis and includes interest and
dividends as well as realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
e) Investments (continued…)
(iii) Investment valuation
Equity and debt
Equity and debt investments are valued at fair value based on quoted market value.
Changes in the market value of investments, including realized and unrealized gains
and losses, are reflected in the financial statements as a change in the fair value of
investments.
Equity investment in real estate
Investment in real estate is represented by an equity investment in a corporation that
invests in real estate, participating mortgages, and property for development or
resale. Properties within the corporation are valued annually by independent
appraisers in accordance with generally accepted appraisal practices and
procedures. The appraisal methodology followed is an income approach which is
mainly based on discounted cash flows. In estimating future cash flows, certain
assumptions are made with respect to future economic conditions and rates of
return.
Pooled funds
Pooled funds are valued at the unit values supplied by the pooled fund administrator,
which represents the Fund’s proportionate share of underlying net assets at fair
values determined using closing market prices.
Derivative contracts
The derivative contracts held by the Fund are stated at fair value and are valued
using quoted market indices. Realized and unrealized gains or losses on investments
from derivative contracts are included in the change in the fair value of investments.
Investment in foreign infrastructure
The Fund owns units in a foreign infrastructure partnership. The partnership invests
in portfolio companies that own, operate, develop, manage, and support
infrastructure assets. Fair value is based upon a number of factors, including readily
available market quotes with appropriate adjustments for trading restrictions, the
most recent round of financings, earnings-multiple analysis using comparable
companies, or discounted cash flow analysis.
(iv) Transaction costs
Investment management fees are costs directly attributable to the external
management of the assets. Fees incurred on the management of equity holdings in
real estate and foreign infrastructure investments are paid directly as a reduction in
the fair value of the investment. Fees incurred on the management of other
investments are recorded as an investment expense.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
f)

Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the
transaction or event that gave rise to the revenue or expense occurred. Included in
refund expense are amounts owing to non-vested members that have been reclassified
from the accrued benefit obligation to accounts payable.

g) Accrued Pension Obligation
The value of the accrued pension obligation of the Fund is based on an actuarial
valuation prepared on an accounting basis by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method pro-rated on service and best estimate assumptions.
3.

Investments and Derivatives
a) Investments
Investments consist of units held in the Master Trust. At year-end, there were
432,737.564 units held in the Master Trust (2013 - 412,713.451) with a fair value of
$1,486.32 (2013 - $1,305.04) per unit.
Investments of the Master Trust consist of the following listed assets:

Canadian short-term investments
Other liquid assets
Bonds, debentures, and notes
Canadian equity securities
Equity investments in real estate
Foreign equity securities
Foreign infrastructure
Currency forwards
Accrued income
Total
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund investments **
** Rounded

2014
$

%

64,502,115
6,834,347
467,715,324
479,391,040
84,180,745
843,690,312
14,735,932
5,437,608
4,527,337
1,971,014,760
32.6322%

3.3
0.3
23.7
24.3
4.3
42.8
0.8
0.3
0.2
100.0

643,185,296

2013
$
13,104,205
9,862,402
484,552,200
363,807,347
79,174,462
678,031,664
12,698,150
(5,377,295)
3,723,006
1,639,576,141
32.8505%
538,608,981

%

0.7
0.6
29.6
22.2
4.8
41.4
0.8
(0.3)
0.2
100.0
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
a) Investments (continued...)
Investment income and realized and unrealized gains (losses) of the Master Trust
consist of the following:
Investment
Income
(Losses)
2014
$
Canadian short-term investments
Other liquid assets
Bonds, debentures, and notes
Canadian equity securities
Foreign equity securities
Equity investments in real estate
Foreign infrastructure
Currency forwards
Total
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund investments **

420,425
15,089,947
13,653,967
25,143,624
1,693,464
210,075
56,211,502
32.5307%
18,285,976

Realized/
Unrealized
Gains
(Losses)*
2014
$

Investment
Income
(Losses)
2013
$

Realized/
Unrealized
Gains
(Losses)*
2013
$

311
(5,622)
2,077,835
100,515,945
152,398,139
3,396,662
212,893
(6,086,161)
252,510,002
32.5334%
82,150,158

(9,471)
186,678
16,937,523
12,460,694
13,256,333
42,831,757
32.7866%
14,043,062

423
(705,160)
(16,378,517)
34,921,888
124,176,372
4,969,763
2,273,116
(6,640,908)
142,616,977
33.3309%
47,535,557

* Includes realized gains of $22.3 million (2013 - gains of $15 million) and unrealized gains of $230.2
million (2013 - gains of $127.6 million).
** Rounded

Investments include amounts which investment managers of the Master Trust have
invested in their own pooled funds. The fair values of these investments are as follows:

Beutel Goodman & Company Ltd.
Lazard Ltd.
Baillie Gifford Overseas Ltd.
Bentall Kennedy
Greystone Real Estate Fund Inc.
Global Infrastructure Partners
Total
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund’s pooled funds

2014
$

2013
$

28,691,462
279,669,632
291,905,875
44,500,745
39,680,000
14,735,932
699,183,646
32.6322%
228,159,006

16,665,115
218,349,527
229,391,757
42,802,727
36,371,537
12,698,150
556,278,813
32.8505%
182,740,371
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
b) Derivative Contracts
Derivative contracts are financial contracts, the value of which is “derived” from the value
of underlying assets or exchange rates. Derivative contracts provide flexibility in
implementing investment strategy.
Forward contracts are used to manage currency exposure and mitigate risk with respect
to investments held in foreign currencies. The net notional amount of the currency
forwards represents the volume of outstanding transactions and serves as the basis
upon which the return and market value of the contract is determined.
The following provides details of derivative contracts outstanding as of June 30, 2014.
2014
$
Notional Amount

328,172,276

Fair Value

5,437,608

2013
$
243,208,459
(5,377,295)

c) Fair Value Disclosure
Fund investment assets recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon a fair
value hierarchy on significant inputs used in measuring fair value. The following fair value
hierarchy table presents information about the Fund’s assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at June 30, 2014.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1: Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the investment manager has the ability to access at the measurement
date. Level 1 primarily includes publicly listed investments.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable either directly or indirectly,
including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. Level 2 primarily
includes debt securities and derivative contracts not traded in an open market.
Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. There is little, if any, market activity. Inputs into the
determination of fair value require significant management judgement and/or estimation.
Level 3 primarily consists of foreign infrastructure investments.
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
c) Fair Value Disclosure (continued...)
The following table illustrates the classifications of the Fund’s financial instruments using
the fair value hierarchy as at June 30.

Level 1
$
Canadian short-term investments
Other liquid assets
Bonds, debentures, and notes
Canadian equity securities
Foreign equity securities
Equity investments in real estate
Foreign infrastructure
Currency forwards
Totals
Accrued income
Total financial assets at fair value
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund investments*

62,106,480
6,834,347
479,391,040
837,422,428
1,385,754,295

Level 1
$
Canadian short-term investments
Other liquid assets
Bonds, debentures, and notes
Canadian equity securities
Foreign equity securities
Equity investments in real estate
Foreign infrastructure
Currency forwards
Totals
Accrued income
Total financial assets at fair value
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund investments*

10,908,903
9,862,402
363,807,347
678,031,664
1,062,610,316

2014
Level 2
$
2,395,635
467,715,324
6,267,884
84,180,745
5,437,608
565,997,196

2013
Level 2
$
2,195,302
464,623,221
79,174,265
(5,377,295)
540,615,493

Level 3
$

Total
$

14,735,932
14,735,932

64,502,115
6,834,347
467,715,324
479,391,040
843,690,312
84,180,745
14,735,932
5,437,608
1,966,487,423
4,527,337
1,971,014,760
32.6322%
643,185,296

Level 3
$

Total
$

19,928,979
197
12,698,150
32,627,326

13,104,205
9,862,402
484,552,200
363,807,347
678,031,664
79,174,462
12,698,150
(5,377,295)
1,635,853,135
3,723,006
1,639,576,141
32.8505%
538,608,981

* Rounded

There were no significant transfers between level 1 and level 2 financial instruments
during the year ended June 30, 2014.
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
c) Fair Value Disclosure (continued...)
The following table details changes in fair value measurement in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy:
Fixed
Income
$
Level 3 investments, July 1, 2013
Net purchases (sales)
Realized gains
Unrealized gains
Total financial assets at fair value
Fund’s pro-rated share
Level 3 investments, June 30, 2014

19,928,979
(19,928,979)
-

Fixed
Income
$
Level 3 investments, July 1, 2012
Net purchases (sales)
Realized gains
Unrealized gains
Total financial assets at fair value
Fund’s pro-rated share
Level 3 investments, June 30, 2013

20,166,845
(237,866)
19,928,979

Equity
$
197
(197)
-

Foreign
Infrastructure
$

Total
$

12,698,150
32,627,326
(1,249,840) (21,179,016)
685,335
685,335
2,602,287
2,602,287
14,735,932
14,735,932
32.6322%
4,808,659

Equity
$

Foreign
Infrastructure
$

197
197

10,425,034
36,395
2,236,721
12,698,150

Total
$
20,167,042
10,187,168
36,395
2,236,721
32,627,326
32.8505%
10,718,240

d) Investment Risk Management
Risk management relates to the understanding and active management of risks
associated with all areas of the business and the associated operating environment.
Investments are primarily exposed to foreign currency, interest rate volatility, market
price fluctuations, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Fund has set formal goals, policies,
and operating procedures that establish an asset mix among equity and fixed income,
require diversification of investments within categories, and set limits on the size of
exposure to individual investments and counter parties. Risk and credit considerations
are periodically assessed in consultation with external consultants, the Department of
Finance, and the Master Trust Investment Advisory Committee. Plan sponsor oversight,
procedures, and compliance functions are incorporated into Fund processes to achieve
consistent controls and to mitigate operational risk.
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
d) Investment Risk Management (continued...)
(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the fact that the Fund’s financial position will change with
market interest rate changes as fixed income securities are sensitive to changes in
nominal interest rates. Interest rate risk is inherent in the management of a pension
plan due to prolonged timing differences between cash flows related to the Fund’s
assets and liabilities.
Assuming all other variables are held constant, a one percentage point change in
nominal interest rates would change the fair value of the Fund by $8.7 million.

2014

Impact on
Fair Value
of the
Master Trust

Value of
Fixed
Income
Securities

Weighted
Average
Duration

$

yrs

%

$

5.67

1

26.5 m

467.7 m

Percentage
Point
Change

Fund’s
Pro-rated
Share

%
32.6322

Pro-rated
Impact on
Fair Value
of the Fund

$
8.7 m

(ii) Price Risk
Price risk is the risk of fluctuation in market values of investments from influences
specific to a particular investment or from influences on the market as a whole. Price
risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. Market price risk is managed
by the Fund through the use of diversified investment portfolios traded on various
markets and across various industries. Assuming all other variables are held
constant, a ten percent change in market values of all public equities would change
the fair value of the Fund by $45.9 million.
Value of
Public
Equities
$

2014

1,407.3 m

Percentage
Change
%

10

Impact on
Fair Value
of the
Master Trust
$

140.7

Fund’s
Pro-rated
Share
%

Pro-rated
Impact on
Fair Value
of the Fund
$

32.6322

45.9 m

(iii) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss in the event the counter party to a transaction fails to
discharge an obligation and causes the other party to incur a loss. Credit risk
associated with the Fund is periodically assessed in consultation with external
consultants, the Department of Finance, and the Master Trust Investment Advisory
Committee.
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
d) Investment Risk Management (continued...)
(iii) Credit Risk (continued…)
Fixed Income
The Fund is exposed to credit risk from the following interest earning investments at
June 30 as follows:

Federal government
Provincial government
Corporate
Total investment credit risk exposure
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund’s investment credit risk exposure
Provincial government promissory note
Fund’s total credit risk exposure

2014
(millions)
$

2013
(millions)
$

209.7
31.6
234.7
476.0
32.6322%
155.3
64.3
219.6

164.0
20.1
308.9
493.0
32.8505%
162.0
88.3
250.3

Security Lending
The Fund participates in a Securities Lending Program whereby it lends securities for
a fee to approved borrowers. To alleviate the credit risk, borrowers must provide
collateral with a value of 105 percent of the value of the securities lent. The market
value of the collateral is monitored by the custodian at least daily to ensure that the
105 percent threshold is maintained. In addition, security loans are allocated across
various borrowers within the program and the Fund holds indemnification coverage
which mitigates the credit and market risk on the collateral.
The fair value of the security loans outstanding and collateral held is as follows:
2014
$

2013
$

Total security loans outstanding
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund’s security loans outstanding

219,601,103
32.6322%
71,660,671

345,192,176
32.8505%
113,397,356

Total collateral held
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund’s collateral held

230,581,377
32.6322%
75,243,776

362,451,930
32.8505%
119,067,271
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
d) Investment Risk Management (continued...)
(iii) Credit Risk (continued…)
Derivatives
The Fund is exposed to credit related losses in the event of non performance by
counter parties to derivative financial instruments. In order to mitigate this risk, the
Fund deals only with highly rated counter parties, with whom International Swap and
Derivative Association agreements have been executed, normally major financial
institutions with a minimum credit standard of “A” rating, as supported by a
recognized credit rating agency.
Credit risk represents the maximum amount that would be at risk as at the reporting
date if the counter parties failed completely to perform under the contracts and if the
right of offset proved to be non enforceable. Credit risk exposure on derivative
financial instruments is represented by the receivable replacement cost of contracts
with counter parties, less any prepayment collateral or margin received as at the
reporting date.
(iv) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the future cash flow of the financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Consequently, the Fund is exposed to the risk that the exchange rates of the various
currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of the
portion of the Fund’s assets denominated in currencies other than the Canadian
dollar. Foreign currency exposure arises from the holding of investments
denominated in foreign currencies. A policy of hedging from 30 to 70 percent of the
currency exposure is used to mitigate this risk.
The Fund’s unhedged currency exposure from net investment assets as at June 30,
is summarized in the following table.
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3.

Investments and Derivatives (continued...)
d) Investment Risk Management (continued...)
(iv) Foreign Currency Risk (continued…)
2014
(millions)
$
Currency
Brazil
Switzerland
Euro Zone
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Japan
Sweden
United States
Other
Total
Fund’s pro-rated share
Fund’s foreign currency exposure

2.2
16.9
55.8
52.9
25.8
47.6
13.2
229.1
49.3
492.8
32.6322%
160.8

2013
(millions)
$
4.2
16.0
43.2
46.3
19.7
37.6
12.3
193.7
42.5
415.5
32.8505%
136.5

After the effect of hedging, and without a change in all other variables, a 10 percent
change in the Canadian dollar against all other currencies would change the fair
value of the Fund by $16.1 million.
(v) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of not meeting the cash obligations of the Fund in an efficient
manner. Cash obligations are fulfilled from contributions to the Fund, cash income of
the Fund, and dispositions of Fund assets as required. Cash requirements of the
Fund are reviewed on an ongoing basis to provide for the orderly availability of
resources to meet the financial obligations of the Fund.
The Fund’s cash management policy ensures that the quality and liquidity of the
investment vehicles within the portfolio are consistent with the needs of the Fund.
4.

Accrued Pension Obligation
a) Actuarial Valuation
The present value of the accrued pension obligation was determined using the projected
unit credit method pro-rated on services and management’s best estimate, as at the
valuation date, of future economic events and involves economic and non economic
assumptions. The non economic assumptions include considerations such as mortality
and retirement rates. The primary economic assumptions include the return on
investment, discount, inflation, and salary escalation rates.
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4.

Accrued Pension Obligation (continued...)
a) Actuarial Valuation (continued...)
The most recent actuarial valuation for accounting purposes, prepared by the actuarial
consulting firm Morneau Shepell, disclosed a funded surplus of $162,841,100 over the
base benefit liabilities as at April 1, 2014. The next actuarial valuation is scheduled to be
completed in 2015.
The total accrued benefit obligation consists of the following:
Base benefit liability
Contingent Indexation liability1
Total accrued benefit obligation

$699,677,600
162,841,100
$862,518,700

1

The contingent indexation liability is calculated based on total plan assets less the
accrued benefit obligation assuming no future contingent indexation. This calculation
does not incorporate the potential impact of future events such as contributions, gains
and losses on investments, or new benefit accruals.
The assumptions for the most recent valuations performed as at April 1, 2014 are as
follows:

Inflation
Discount Rate
Expected Rate of
Return of Plan
Assets
Salary Escalation
Pre-Retirement
Indexation
Post-Retirement
Indexation
(includes deferred
pensioners)
Mortality

Termination

2014
2.25%
5.75% for 10 years, 6.25%
thereafter
5.75% for 10 years, 6.25%
thereafter

2011
2.50%
7.37%, updated to 6.86%
on March 31, 2013
7.37%, updated to 6.86%
on March 31, 2013

Basic increase of 2.75% per
annum + promotional scale
1.50% per annum for 2014 - 2016,
2.75% per annum for 19 years, 0%
per annum thereafter
0.90% per annum for 2014 - 2016,
2.25% per annum for 11 years, 0%
per annum thereafter

2.50%

CPM2014Publ with future
improvements based on CPM
Scale B and adjustments of 1.0 for
males and 0.95 for females
Tenure-based scale

N/A
60% of Consumer Price
Index to a maximum of
4.00%
GAR94 projected to 2000
using Scale AA for both
males and females.
Age - based scale

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS VOLUME III 2014-2015

453
463

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TEACHERS’ SUPERANNUATION FUND
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

4.

Accrued Pension Obligation (continued...)
a) Actuarial Valuation (continued...)
Retirement Age
Proportion Married
Age Difference for
Spouses

Service and age - based scale
Age and gender - based scale
Males 2 years older than female
spouses

Service and age - based
scale.
Male 90%; Female 85%
Males assumed to be 3 years
older than females.

b) Extrapolation
The accrued benefit obligation at June 30, 2014 is estimated by the Fund, based on an
extrapolation of the April 1, 2014 actuarial valuation. The total accrued benefit obligation
at June 30, 2014 consists of the following:
Base benefit liability
Contingent indexation liability
Total accrued benefit obligation

$702,927,846
174,857,318
$877,785,164

c) Sensitivity of Changes in Major Assumptions
The Fund’s future experience may differ from the assumptions used in the actuarial
valuation and the extrapolation. Any differences between the actuarial assumptions and
future experience could be significant and will emerge as experience gains or losses in
future valuations which will affect the financial position of the Fund.
5.

Funding Policy
a) Prior to the Plan conversion, the province was committed to make payments if the assets
of the TSF were insufficient to provide for pension payments as they became due. In
addition, a funding policy existed which required the Province to make special
contributions when the TSF’s funded level declined below 90 percent.
Special contributions made under this funding policy were as follows:
(i) As a result of an unfunded liability at July 1, 2005, the Province of Prince Edward
Island made a special contribution through the signing of a $160,000,000 promissory
note. The note, which is held by the Fund, is receivable in ten equal annual
instalments of $16,000,000 beginning April 15, 2005. Interest on the note is accrued
at a rate of 4.35 percent per annum, and is receivable semi-annually on April 15, and
October 15.
The following is a schedule of principal and interest payments as disclosed in the
promissory note:
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5.

Funding Policy (continued...)
Interest Payments

Principal Payments
Date of Payment

Principal Payment
$

April 15
$

October 15
$

16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000
160,000,000

3,128,400
2,780,800
2,433,200
2,085,600
1,738,000
1,390,400
1,042,800
695,200
347,600
15,642,000

3,128,400
2,780,800
2,433,200
2,085,600
1,738,000
1,390,400
1,042,800
695,200
347,600
15,642,000

April 15, 2005
April 15, 2006
April 15, 2007
April 15, 2008
April 15, 2009
April 15, 2010
April 15, 2011
April 15, 2012
April 15, 2013
April 15, 2014

(ii) As a result of an unfunded liability at July 1, 2011, the province made a special
contribution through the signing of a $80,369,000 promissory note. The note, issued
December 11, 2012, is held by the Fund and is receivable in ten equal annual
instalments of $8,063,900 beginning April 1, 2013. Interest on the note is accrued from
April 1, 2012, at a rate of 2.9 percent per annum, and is receivable semi-annually on
April 1 and October 1.
The following is a schedule of principal and interest payments as disclosed in the
promissory note:
Interest Payments

Principal Payments
Date of Payment

April 1, 2012
April 1, 2013
April 1, 2014
April 1, 2015
April 1, 2016
April 1, 2017
April 1, 2018
April 1, 2019
April 1, 2020
April 1, 2021
April 1, 2022

Principal Payment
$

April 1
$

October 1
$

8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
8,036,900
80,369,000

1,165,351
1,048,815
932,281
815,746
699,210
582,675
466,140
349,605
233,070
116,535
6,409,428

1,165,351
1,048,815
932,281
815,746
699,210
582,675
466,140
349,605
233,070
116,535
6,409,428
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5.

Funding Policy (continued...)
b) As part of the Plan conversion, the province’s requirement to make payments if the
assets of TSF were insufficient to provide for pension payments as they became due
was removed and the funding policy was rescinded.
Beginning on April 1, 2016, if the funded benefits ratio of the Plan falls below 100 percent
(of base benefits) and, after reflecting the future contributions as described in Note 1(b),
the Plan is still not projected to achieve a funded benefits ratio of at least 100 percent
within five years, the province is required to make an additional contribution equal to one
fifth of the additional amount required to restore the funded benefits ratio to 100 percent
within five years. This is reviewed on an annual basis and the contribution amount will be
subject to change each year.
In addition, the Province committed to make a one-time transitional contribution
(transitional government funding amount) to the Plan on or before December 31, 2014
such that, if that contribution had been made on January 1, 2014, the total assets of the
Fund would have equalled:


122 percent of the total liabilities of the Fund excluding the liabilities for salary
indexing and pension indexing for any year after 2013; plus



100 percent of the liabilities for salary indexing and pension indexing for 2014, 2015,
and 2016.

The transitional government funding amount was contributed to the TSF by the Province
of Prince Edward Island through the signing of a $164,640,100 promissory note. The
note, issued December 22, 2014, is held by the Fund and is receivable in seven equal
annual instalments of $23,520,014 beginning January 1, 2023. Interest on the note is
accrued from January 1, 2014 at a rate of 4.14 percent per annum and is receivable
semi-annually on January 1 and July 1. At June 30, 2014, a receivable was recognized
for the outstanding note and classified as an employer special contribution.
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5.

Funding Policy (continued...)
The following is a schedule of principal and interest payments as disclosed in the promissory
note:
Principal Payments
Date of Payment

January 1, 2014
January 1, 2015
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2020
January 1, 2021
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2024
January 1, 2025
January 1, 2026
January 1, 2027
January 1, 2028
January 1, 2029

Interest Payments

Principal Payment
$

January 1
$

July 1
$

23,520,014
23,520,014
23,520,014
23,520,014
23,520,014
23,520,014
23,520,016
164,640,100

3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
2,921,186
2,434,321
1,947,457
1,460,593
973,729
486,865
40,896,601

3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
3,408,050
2,921,186
2,434,321
1,947,457
1,460,593
973,729
486,865
40,896,601

Subsection 9(5) of the Teachers Superannuation Act stipulates that none of the above
promissory notes may be cancelled or recalled by the Province prior to maturity unless the
Province contributes to the TSF assets equal to or greater than the value of the promissory
notes on the date of cancellation or recall. The notes are non-transferrable.
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6.

Operating Expenses
The Fund is charged with administrative and operating expenses. The following is a
summary of these expenses.

Administrative expenses

- pension section
- investment section

Consulting fees*
Actuarial fees
Investment expenses
Custodian
Monitoring
Management

2014
$

2013
$

285,305
60,403
345,708
274,590
35,168

273,721
54,483
328,204
243,015
-

103,529
78,585
2,133,539
2,971,119

87,722
68,917
2,183,893
2,911,751

* Includes other actuarial services

7.

Related Party Transactions
The Province of Prince Edward Island is the sponsor of the Plan. At the financial statement
date, the province has committed to the funding requirements as defined by the Funding
Policy (Note 5). As a participating employer, the province contributes regular bi-weekly
employee and eligible prior period service contributions. Employer contributions receivable
from the province as at June 30, 2014, totalled $2,013,010 (2013 - $69,001).
The province provides pension and investment administration services to the Fund. A portion
of the province’s costs relating to these services is recovered annually from the Fund. Costs
recovered for the pension section totalled $232,840 (2013 - $226,240) and recoveries related
to the investment section totalled $60,403 (2013 - $54,483). Other costs recovered by the
province totalled $35,448 (2013 - $34,432).
Total amount payable to the province at June 30, 2014, was $233,502 (2013 - $229,116).
Total notes, special contribution and interest receivable from the province at June 30, 2014,
was $232,806,943 (2013 - $88,998,001).
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8.

Capital Management
The main objective of the Fund is to sustain a level of net assets in order to meet the pension
obligations of the Fund. The Plan sponsor manages the contributions received and benefits
issued as required by the Teachers’ Superannuation Act.
In an effort to utilize economies of scale, contributions for the province’s three registered
pension plans are pooled and invested together in the Province’s Master Trust (the Master
Trust). Each pension plan holds units of the Master Trust in proportion to the value of
contributions made. The Province has developed a Statement of Investment Policies and
Procedures (SIP&P) to provide the framework for how the Master Trust’s assets are to be
invested, monitored, and evaluated. Assets are managed by engaging knowledgeable,
external investment managers who are charged with the responsibility of investing new and
existing funds in accordance with the SIP&P. A Master Trust Investment Advisory Committee
exists for the purpose of protecting the pension fund assets, monitoring asset mix, reviewing
costs, reviewing investment returns, and assessing investment manager performance, as
well as providing advice to the Minister of Finance who serves as Trustee for the province’s
three registered pension plans.

9.

Commitment
The Master Trust has entered into an arrangement where it has committed to invest $35
(US) million with Global Infrastructure Partners (GIP) Fund. GIP is an independent
infrastructure fund manager that invests in high quality infrastructure assets in the energy,
transport, water, and waste sectors. As at the financial statement release date, $13.9 (US)
million had been invested.

10.

Prior Period Comparatives
Certain prior period comparatives figures have been restated to conform to the presentation
format adopted in the current period.

11.

Subsequent Events
As a result of a plan asset study completed subsequent to year end, the discount rate
assumption was revised from 5.75 percent for 10 years and 6.25 percent thereafter to 5.6
percent for 10 years and 5.9 percent thereafter.
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Management’s Report
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management’s
responsibility. Management is responsible for the notes to the financial statements and for ensuring
that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the financial
statements.
Management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that reliable financial information is produced.
The Finance Committee is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal control. The Committee reviews internal financial reports on a regular
basis and externally audited financial statements annually.
The Auditor General conducts an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and expresses her opinion on the financial statements. The Auditor
General has full and free access to financial information and management of the Supreme Court of
Prince Edward Island Trust Accounts and can meet as required.
On behalf of the Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island Trust Accounts

_____________________________________
Judy Turpin
Court Services Manager and Deputy Registrar

May 12, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honourable H. Wade MacLauchlan
Attorney General
Province of Prince Edward Island
I have audited the financial statements of the Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island Trust
Accounts, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2015, and the statements
of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets, and cash flow for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
the audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Trust Accounts as at March 31, 2015, and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets,
and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

B. Jane MacAdam, CPA, CA
Auditor General

Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island
May 12, 2015
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2015

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Accounts receivable
Liabilities
Trust accounts (Note 4)
Net Financial Assets and Accumulated Surplus

2015
$

2014
$

305,017
134
305,151

301,961
179
302,140

228,190

228,190

76,961

73,950

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)

Approved on behalf of the Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island Trust Accounts

__________________________________
Attorney General
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

3,011

3,755

-

-

3,011

3,755

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

73,950

70,195

Accumulated surplus, end of year

76,961

73,950

Revenues
Interest income
Expenses
Annual surplus

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
for the year ended March 31, 2015

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year
Changes in year:
Annual surplus
Net Financial Assets, end of year

2015
$

2014
$

73,950

70,195

3,011

3,755

76,961

73,950

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended March 31, 2015

2015
$

2014
$

3,011

3,755

45
3,056

46
5,472
(86,139)
(76,866)

Cash provided (used) by:
Operating Activities:
Annual surplus
Changes in:
Accounts receivable
Trust account receipts
Trust account disbursements
Cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

301,961

378,827

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

305,017

301,961

1,837

2,535

Supplementary disclosure
Interest received

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.)
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

1.

Nature of Operations
The Supreme Court of Prince Edward Island maintains trust accounts for money paid into the
Court pursuant to section 28 of the Judicature Act, as a result of a court order or in
anticipation of settlement of a litigious matter.
A Finance Committee, appointed by the Lieutenant Governor in Council pursuant to
subsection 30(1) of the Judicature Act, is responsible for the control and management of the
trust accounts. This responsibility includes the investment of trust account money and the
payment of interest on the accounts.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Since there are no unrealized gains or losses attributed to foreign exchange, derivatives,
portfolio investments, or other financial instruments, a statement of remeasurement gains
and losses is not prepared.
The following accounting policies are considered significant.
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include deposits with a financial institution that are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value and funds on deposit with the Province of Prince
Edward Island which are carried at cost plus accrued interest.
b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at cost less any provision when collection is in doubt.
c) Revenues
Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transaction or event that gave rise to
the revenue occurred. All revenue is recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accrual cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when estimation
is impracticable.
d) Expenses
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis and are recognized in the period in which the
transaction or event which gave rise to the expense occurred. The cost of all goods
consumed and services received during the year is expensed.
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued...)
e) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and
trust accounts. They are carried at cost or amortized cost which approximates their fair
value.

3.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
2015
$
Cash
Funds on deposit - Province of Prince Edward Island*

175,877
129,140
305,017

2014
$
174,040
127,921
301,961

*Interest is earned at the Province’s floating call loan rate which ranged from .75 to 1 percent
during the year ended March 31, 2015.
4.

Trust Accounts
Trust accounts represent amounts paid into the Court pursuant to section 28 of the
Judicature Act plus interest earned. Amounts outstanding are due on demand.

5.

Related Party Transactions
Resources such as office facilities, support services, salaries, and employee future benefits
are provided by the Province of Prince Edward Island. These costs are assumed by the
Province and are not reflected in these financial statements.

6.

Financial Management
Risk exposure, as a result of the financial instruments on the statement of financial position
at March 31, 2015, is limited to market risk and liquidity risk. Financial instruments are not
subject to significant credit risk.
Market Risk
Market risk is limited to interest rate risk. There are no holdings, operations, or activities in
foreign currency. Revenue is earned through interest from funds on deposit and the bank
balance. Risk is mitigated by placing funds on deposit with the Province of Prince Edward
Island.
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SUPREME COURT OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND
TRUST ACCOUNTS
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015

6.

Financial Management (continued...)
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet all cash outflow obligations as
they come due. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the level of financial assets.

7.

Budgeted Figures
Due to the nature of trust activities and administrative expenses paid for by the Province of
Prince Edward Island, budgets are not prepared.
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